BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY

COMMISSION, NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. OF 2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

Essar Transco Limited ..PETITIONER
VERSUS
Central Transmission Utility of India Limited & Ors.
RESPONDENTS
INDEX
SN PARTICULAR PAGE NO.
1. | Memo of Parties 1-3
2. | Affidavit on Behalf of the Petitioner 4-5
3. | Petition for truing up of transmission tariff for FY 2019-20 6-32
to FY 2023-24 and for determination of transmission tariff
pertaining to FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29 along with
affidavit.
4, nexure - 1 33-68
Copy of order in Petition No. 24/TT/2023
5. | Annexure -2 69-96

Copy of order in Petition No. 187/MP/2023




SN PARTICULAR PAGE NO.
6. | Annexure -3 97-213
A Copy of the carved out Audited Financials (Balance
Sheet, P&L etc) for CERC Licensed Business of ETL for
FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24
7. | Annexure-4 214-217
Statutory Auditor s certificate certifying the Weighted
Average interest rate based on the actual loan portfolio for
FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24
8. | Annexure - SA nexure - SB 218-255
The True up Formats for the control period of FY 2019-20
to FY 2023-24
9. nexure - 256-273
CEA notification dated 20.09.2023
10. | Annexure - nexure - 7B 274-309
The Tariff determination Formats for the control period of
FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29
Petitioner
Place: Ahmedabad

Date:

21.11.2024



BEFORE THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION, NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. OF 2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

Approval under Regulation 23 of the CERC (Conduct of Business) Regulations,
2023 based on CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 &
CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2024 for Truing-up of
Transmission Tariff for the period from 01-April-2019 to 31-March-2024 &
Determination of tariff for the period from 01-April-2024 to 31-March-2029 for
Transmission system maintained and operated by Essar Transco Limited vide

Licence No. 4B/Transmission/2023/CERC

AND
IN THE MATTER OF:
Essar Transco Limited
...... PETITIONER
VERSUS
Central Transmission Utility of India Limited & Ors.
......... RESPONDENTS

MEMO OF PARTIES

Essar Transco Limited
(earlier in the name of Essar Power Transmission Company Limited)

Shop no 2 and 3 at Jalsa Complex,



Plot no 175/1, 175/1 Kha, 175/5,

Village Tali (Waidhan),

District Singruali, Waidhan, Sidhi, Singrauli Colliery,
Madhya Pradesh, India, 486886

Versus

1. Central Transmission Utility of India Limited,
Plot No. 2, Near IFFCO Chowk Metro Station,
Sector 29, Gurugram-122001

2. Power Grid Corporation of India Limited
Saudamini, Plot-2, Sector-29,
Near IFFCO Chowk,
Gurgaon-122001, Haryana

3. Power System Operation Corporation Limited
National Load Dispatch Centre
B-9, Qutab Industrial Area, Katwaria Sarai,
New Delhi-110 016

4. Western Regional Power Committee,
F-3, MIDC Area, Marol, Opp. SEEPZ,
Central Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400093

5. M. P. Power Management Company Limited
Block No.11, Shakti Bhawan,
Vidyut Nagar, Jabalpur-482008

PETITIONER



6. Western Regional Load Despatch Centre,
F-3, Krantiveer Lakhuji Salve Marg, SEEPZ,
Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra-400096

7. Mahan Energen Limited (formerly Essar Power M.P. Limited),
Adani House, C-105,

Anand Niketan, New Delhi-110021

.....RESPONDENTS

Petitioner

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 21.11.2024









BEFORE
THE HON’BLE CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION, NEW DELHI
PETITION NO. OF 2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

Approval under Regulation 23 of the CERC (Conduct of Business) Regulations,
2023 based on CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 &
CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2024 for Truing-up of
Transmission Tariff for the period from 01-April-2019 to 31-March-2024 &
Determination of tariff for the period from 01-April-2024 to 31-March-2029 for
Transmission system maintained and operated by Essar Transco Limited vide

Licence No. 4B/Transmission/2023/CERC
AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

Essar Transco Limited
...... PETITIONER

VERSUS

Central Transmission Utility of India Limited & Ors.
......... RESPONDENTS

PETITION FOR TRUING UP OF TRANMSISSION TARIFF FOR THE
PERIOD FROM (01-APRIL-2019 TO 31-MARCH-2024 AND
DETERMINATION OF TARIFF FOR THE PERIOD FROM 01-APRIL-
2024 TO 31-MARCH-2029

MOST RESPECTLFULLY SHEWETH:



Essar Transco Limited (earlier in the name of Essar Power Transmission
Company Limited (‘EPTCL")) (hereinafter referred to as 'ETL' / 'Petitioner’)
is a company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956

and is engaged in the business of transmission of power.

The Respondent No. 1 Central Transmission Utility of India Limited
(“CTUIL”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of PGCIL (Respondent No.2)
established as separate company to undertake function of a Central
Transmission Utility in terms of Section 38 of the Electricity Act, 2003 vide
Gazette Notification by the Ministry of Power dated 09.03.2021. CTUIL
performs the functions of planning and coordinating development of the
inter-state transmission systems projects under Section 38 of the Act. It is
also the statutory authority responsible for billing and collecting the
transmission charges pertaining to the ISTS network in terms of the

Regulations framed by this Hon’ble Commission.

Respondent No. 3, Power System Operation Corporation Limited is the

National Load Despatch Centre.

Respondent No. 4, Western Region Power Committee (hereinafter being
referred to as “WRPC”) is the regional committee under Section 2 (55) of
the Act established for the western region for facilitating the integrated

operation of the power systems in the region.

Respondent No. 5 - M.P Power Management Company Limited is engaged
in the business of electricity generation, transmission, and distribution

services in the State of Madhya Pradesh.

Respondent No. 6 - Western Regional Load Despatch Centre (hereinafter
being referred to as the “WRLDC”) is a statutory body constituted and
working under Section 27 of the Act and performing functions as

enumerated in Section 28 of Act.



Respondent No. 7, Mahan Energen Limited (formerly known as Essar Power
M.P. Limited) (hereinafter being referred to as “MEL”) is a company having
its address at Adani House, C-105, Anand Niketan, New Delhi- 110021.
MEL was an erstwhile subsidiary of Essar Power Limited. However,
presently, Respondent No. 2 has been taken over by the Adani Group of

Companies.

Pursuant to the application filed by EPTCL for grant of transmission licence
u/s 14 of the Electricity Act 2003, the Hon'ble Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (Hon'ble CERC) granted the transmission licence to EPTCL on
08.04.2008 (License No.4/Transmission/CERC) to implement the

transmission system being part of the Inter-State Transmission System.

The Hon'ble Commission vide its Order dated 10.04.2008 and subsequent
order dated 15.09.2009, authorised EPTCL to establish and operate the

following transmission infrastructure:
A. Transmission lines

I. LILO ofexisting 400 kV S/C Vindyanchal-Korba transmission line of
PGCIL at Mahan

II. 400 kV D/C (twin conductor) transmission line from Gandhar NTPC

switch yard to Hazira

1. 400 kV D/C (quad conductor) transmission line from Mahan to Sipat

Pooling sub-station
B. Substations
I.  3X500 MVA, 400/220kV sub-station at Hazira
II.  2x50 MVAR line reactors at Sipat pooling sub-station
III.  2x50 MVAR line reactors at Mahan

IV. 1x80 MVAR, 420 kV Switchable bus reactors at Mahan TPS along



V.

VI

VIIL

with its associated 400 kV bay
2 Nos. 400 kV line bays at Sipat pooling sub-station
2 Nos. 400 kV line bays at Gandhar (NTPC) switchyard

4 Nos. 400 kV line bays at Mahan TPS

Depending upon the date of completion of the various elements of the

project, transmission assets mentioned above, has been segregated into two

Stages viz. Stage [ and Stage II.

Table: Stage-wise classification of EPTCL assets

Stage-I
I Transmission Line Units
(km)
1) 400 kV D/C Twin conductor transmission line from | 104.60
Gandhar NTPC switchyard to Hazira
2) LILO of 400 kV S/C Vindhyanchal -Korba transmission | 22.40
line at Mahan
I 400/220 kV GIS Substation at Hazira Units
(in No.)
1) 500 MVA (400 kV / 220 kV) transformers at Hazira 3
2) 220 kV Bays at Hazira 2
3) 440 kV S/S & line bays (GIS) at Hazira 5
4) 400 kV line bays (GIS) at Gandhar 2
Stage-I1
I Transmission Line Units
(km)
1) 400 kV DIC Quad Moose transmission line from Mahan | 336.50




TPP to Sipat Substation

II Line Bays Units
(in No.)

1) 400 kV line bays at Mahan and Sipat 4

III | Reactors Units
(in No.)

1) 400 kV bays of 80 MVAR bus reactor at EPMPL 1

2) 50 MVAR switchable line reactors at EPMPL 2

10. EPTCL had filed a petition for determination of tariff before this Hon'ble
Commission numbered as 145/TT/2018 for determination of tariff for Stage-
IT assets from CoD (22.09.2018) to 31.03.2019. This Hon'ble Commission
vide order dated 14.03.2022 ("March 2022 Order") approved the capital cost
of EPTCL Stg-2 assets.

CERC in the tariff order has determined the capital cost in 2 parts. The 1%
part consists of capital cost and tariff to be received from PoC pool (76%),
and the 2™ part consists of tariff to be received from EPMPL (24%).
Following is the capital cost, as on CoD of 22.09.2018, approved by this
Hon’ble Commission vide March 2022 Order.

Capital Cost Capital Cost Total Capital
through PoC through Cost (Rs. Cr)
(Rs. Cr) EPMPL (Rs.
Cr)
Hard Cost 800.15 218.2 1018.4
Soft Cost 378.6 119.6 498.2
Total Cost 1,178.79 337.79 1,516.58
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11.

12.

EPTCL filed the Petition for determination of tariff numbered as 24/TT/2023
for Stage — II assets for control period of FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24. This
Hon'ble Commission vide order dated 22.11.2023 ("November 2023 Order")
the tariff for the control period of FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24. A copy of this
Hon’ble Commission’s order dated 22.11.2023 in Petition No. 24/TT/2023

is attached as Annexure-1.

Subsequently, EPTCL also filed a Petition No. 187/MP/2023 before this
Hon’ble Commission for amendment of its license No.
4/Transmission/CERC dated 08.04.2008 and permit the transfer of Stage-II
assets in order that the license corresponding to the said assets stand
transferred and vested in the Petitioner in terms of Section 17 of the EA,
2003. This Hon’ble Commission vide its order dated 23.11.2023 allowed the
transfer of Stage-II assets to the Petitioner. This Hon’ble Commission also
issued a fresh license No. 4B/Transmission/CERC for Stage-II to the
Petitioner. The relevant extract of order dated 23.11.2023 in Petition No.
187/MP/2023 is as under:

“37. In the exercise of our power under Section 18 (1) of the Act and

Regulation 19 (1) of the Transmission Licence Regulations, we
approve the transfer of Stage Il Assets [as detailed in Para 25 (a)
above] to ETL, subject to acquisition of the same by AESL
subsequently, and the removal of LILO [as detailed in Para 29(b)
above] from the licence granted to EPTCL The licence bearing No.
4/Transmission/CERC shall be split into 44/Transmission/CERC for
Stage I and 4B/Transmission/CERC for Stage II respectively. The
Staff of the Commission is, accordingly, directed to issue two
separate licences in the name of EPTCL and ETL respectively. It is
clarified that the said transaction is allowed subject to the approval
of the scheme by NCLT and shall be implemented prospectively from
the date of the two licences. The transmission licensees shall comply
with the provisions of the Act and the Regulations issued by the
Commission from time to time.”’

A copy of order dated 23.11.2023 in Petition No. 187/MP/2023 is attached

as Annexure-2.
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13. Inview of above, the Petitioner is filing the present petition seeking approval
under Regulation 23 of the CERC (Conduct of Business) Regulations, 2023
based on CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 &
CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2024 for Truing-up of
Transmission Tariff for the period from 01-April-2019 to 31-March-2024 &
Determination of tariff for the period from 01-April-2024 to 31-March-
2029.

14. It is stated that tariff approved by the Hon'ble Commission for the period
from FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 is as under:

(Rs. In lakh)

Part-A

Particulars | FY 2019- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2022- | FY 2023-
20 21 22 23 24

Depreciation | 6,224.02 | 6,224.02| 6,224.02| 6,224.02| 6,224.02

Interest on| 11,79222) 10,889.73 9,987.25| 9,084.77 8,182.28

Loan

Return on| 5,669.28 | 5,669.28| 5,669.28| 5,669.28| 5,669.28
Equity

Interest on 380.73 344.15 309.85 298.82 287.06
Working
Capital

0&M 563.14 582.81 603.28 624.53 646.33

Expenses

12



Part-A
Particulars | FY 2019- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2022- | FY 2023-
20 21 22 23 24
Total 24,629.39 | 23,709.99 | 22,793.68 | 21,901.42| 21,008.97
(Rs. In lakh)
Part-B
Particulars | FY 2019- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2022- | FY 2023-
20 21 22 23 24
Depreciation 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53
Interest on 3,379.13 3,120.52 2,861.91 2,603.29 2,344.68
Loan
Return  on 1,624.56 1,624.56 1,624.56 1,624.56 1,624.56
Equity
Interest on 106.72 96.32 86.57 83.33 79.88
Working
Capital
0&M 106.76 110.48 114.36 118.39 122.51
Expenses
Total 7,000.70 6,735.41 6,470.93 6,213.11 5,955.16

15. The application for true-up and determination of the tariff is being made in

accordance with Regulation 23 of CERC (Conduct of Business) Regulation,
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2023. Further, Regulation 9 (2) of Tariff Regulation, 2014 specifies that
existing transmission licences shall make application by 30.11.2024. Hence,

the present application is filed within the timeline.

16. The Hon’ble Commission has admitted total capital cost of Rs. 117,879
Lakh for Part-A as on 01.04.2019 & Rs. 33,779 Lakh for Part-B as on
01.04.2019. Accordingly, the Hon’ble Commission had determined tariff for
FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 considering admitted capital cost and estimated
additional capitalisation from 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2024.

17. Based on the above facts, the Petitioner is filing the present Petition for
truing-up of Transmission tariff for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 and
determination of tariff for the tariff block from FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29
along with requisite information and details in the formats specified by the
Hon'ble Commission as per Tariff Regulations, 2019 and Tariff Regulations,

2024 respectively.
True Up of Tariff for the tariff period 2019-24 (from 01.04.2019 to

31.03.2024)
18. Regulation 9 (3) of the Tariff Regulation, 2019 stipulates that capital cost

admitted by the commission as on 01.04.2019 duly trued up by excluding
liability, if any, as on 01.04.2019 shall be considered. The relevant portion

1s as under:

“(3) The Capital cost of an existing project shall include the
Jollowing:

(a) Capital cost admitted by the Commission prior to 1.4.2019 duly
trued up by excluding liability, if any, as on 1.4.2019;”

Accordingly, the Petitioner has considered the actual admitted capital cost
as on 01.04.2019 in line with the Hon’ble Commission’s order dated

22.11.2023 in Petition No. 24/TT/2023 for Part- A & B.
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19. The Hon’ble Commission in its order dated 22.11.2023 approved the capital
cost of Rs. 117879 Lakhs for Part-A and Rs. 33779 Lakhs for Part-B as on
31.03.2019. Accordingly, same has been considered as per Regulation 9(3)
of the Tariff Regulation, 2019.

20. Copy of carved out Audited Financials for licenced business of ETL for FY
2019-20 to FY 2023-24 are marked and attached as Annexure 3.

Depreciation

21. The Petitioner has calculated the depreciation charges for FY 2019-20to FY

2023-24 as prescribed in the Regulations 33 of CERC (Terms & Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations, 2019.

Interest on Loan

22,

23.

Interest on loan is calculated for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 as prescribed in
Regulations 32 of CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019.
The Petitioner has considered the actual loan portfolio for the purpose of
deriving actual weighted average interest rates during FY 2019-20 to FY
2023-24. The repayment is considered equal to the depreciation for the year.
The calculation of Weighted Average interest rate based on actual loan

portfolio is attached herewith as Form 9C of True up formats.

The copy of Statutory Auditor’s certificate certifying the Weighted Average
interest rate based on the actual loan portfolio for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-

24 is attached as Annexure-4.

Return on Eduity

24.

The Petitioner submits that the ROE has been calculated after grossing up
the ROE to the extent of MAT rate for the control period. As per the
Regulations 30 of CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019
applicable for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24, the Return on equity is considered

@ 15.5% per annum. The same is grossed up with applicable tax rate to

15
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arrive at Pre-tax ROE.

25. The Applicable MAT rate was 17.472% considering 12% surcharge and 4%
education cess on MAT rate of 15% for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24.
Accordingly, the Petitioner has considered the applicable Tax rate for FY
2019-20 to FY 2023-24. The applicable tax rate and resultant ROE is shown

in table below for ready reference.

Particulars FY FY FY FY FY
2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
MAT rate | 17.472% | 17.472% | 17.472% | 17.472% | 17.472%
ROE 18.78% | 18.78% | 18.78% | 18.78% | 18.78%
O&M Expenses

26. The Normative O&M Expenses for the control period from FY 2019-20 to
FY 2023-24 is specified in Regulation 35 (3) of Tariff Regulation, 2019. The
Operation and Maintenance expenses has been calculated by multiplying the
number of sub-station bays, transformer capacity of the transformer (in
MVA) and km of line length with the applicable norms for the operation and

maintenance expenses per bay, per MVA and per km respectively.
27. Inlight of the above, the normative O&M expenses claimed are as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Years Part-A Part-B
FY 2019-20 563 107
FY 2020-21 583 110




Years Part-A Part-B

FY 2021-22 603 114
FY 2022-23 625 118
FY 2023-24 646 123

Interest on Working Capital

28.

29.

The Working capital is calculated for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 as per
Regulation 34 (1) (c) of CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations,
2019. As per the Regulation, the Working Capital requirement includes

following components:
a) O&M expenses of one month
b) Maintenance spares @ 15% of O&M expenses
c) Receivables equivalent to 45 days of annual fixed cost

The bank rate as defined in Regulation 3 (7) of CERC (Terms & Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 is considered as the rate of interest for working
capital as per Regulation 34 (3) of CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff)
Regulations, 2019 for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24.

Annual Transmission Charges

30.

The Trued-up transmission tariff for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 has been

worked out as given in table below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)



Part-A
Particulars | FY 2019- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2022- | FY 2023-
20 21 22 23 24

Depreciation 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224
Interest on
Loan 11,792 10,890 9,987 9,085 8,182
Return  on
Equity 5,669 5,669 5,669 5,669 5,669
Interest on
Working
Capital 381 344 310 299 329
O&M

563 583 603 625 646
Expenses
Total 24,629 23,710 22,794 21,910 21,050

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Part-B
Particulars | FY 2019- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2022- | FY 2023-
20 21 22 23 24

Depreciation 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
Interest on 3,379 3,121 2,862 2,603 2,345
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Part-B
Particulars | FY 2019- | FY 2020- | FY 2021- | FY 2022- | FY 2023-
20 21 22 23 24

Loan
Return on
Equity 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625
Interest on
Working
Capital 107 96 87 83 91
o&M

107 110 114 118 123
Expenses
Total 7,001 6,735 6,471 6,213 5,967

31. The True up Formats along with other relevant information are annexed
herewith and marked as Annexure SA & Annexure 5B for Part-A & Part-
B respectively.

Tariff determination for the tariff period 2024-29 (from 01.04.2024 to

31.03.2029)

32. The Tariff for control period from FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29 has been filed
as per Annexure-I to the Tariff Regulation, 2024. The Transmission tariff has

been calculated considering trued up capital expenditure as on 31.03.2024.
the Petitioner has considered the estimated additional capital expenditure for

the control period from FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29.
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Additional Capital Expenditure

33. The Petitioner has claimed following Additional Capital Expenditure for the
control Period from FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29.

a) Online Dissolved Gas Analysis equipment procurement & installation for

Bus and line reactors: Healthiness of Critical assets (Transformers and

Reactors) are essential to maintain availability and reliability of assets.
With complexity in Power system network, new diagnostic technologies
are essential to monitor the real time healthiness of equipments. Dissolve
Gas Analysis is one such method to identify the incipient fault inside the
asset. However, periodic offline measurements do not serve the purpose
of identification of incipient faults. Online DGA serves the purpose
perfectly with real time gas monitoring and any gas rise shall alert the
operator for necessary corrective actions. This is a proven method and
has saved large number of assets across the globe by primary
identification of failure. This will increase the reliability of critical assets
and conscious decision making can be done well in time. Further, critical
assets will be more safe and secure as this shall prevent
transformer/reactor failure in the incipient stage of fire. Accordingly, the
petitioner will incur the additional capital expenditure of Rs. 1.50 Cr
towards installation of Online DGA equipment in FY 2025-26. The
Petitioner has claimed the additional capital expenditure of Rs. 1.50 Cr
towards installation of Online DGA equipment under Regulation 26(1)(i)
of Tariff Regulation, 2024 which provides for those expenditures which

has become necessary for efficient operation of transmission system.

b) Online Drying Unit (ODU) procurement & installation for Bus and line

reactors: Healthiness of Critical assets (Transformers and Reactors) are

essential to maintain availability and reliability of assets. With

complexity in Power system network, new diagnostic technologies are



d)

essential to monitor the real time healthiness of equipments. Online
drying unit system is essential to reduce the moisture content in the
installed units and hence, increases the life of Critical assets and prevents
failure. Further, CEA, vide notification no: 1/30428/2023 dated
20.09.2023 has also recommended installation of ODU system in the
Transformers and Reactors. This will increase the reliability of critical
assets and hence the system life. The Copy of CEA notification dated
20.09.2023 is attached as Annexure-6. Accordingly, the petitioner will
incur the additional capital expenditure of Rs. 0.80 Cr towards
installation of ODU system in FY 2025-26. The Petitioner has claimed
the additional capital expenditure of Rs. 0.80 Cr towards installation of
ODU system under Regulation 26(1)(i) of Tariff Regulation, 2024 which
provides for those expenditures which has become necessary for efficient

operation of transmission system.

Nitrogen Injection fire protection System (NIFPS) procurement and

installation for Bus and line reactors: Protection of critical oil filled assets

is required to ensure minimal damages in case of fire. Nitrogen Injection
fire protection System (NIFPS) is one such effective installation that
prevents fire before the occurrence. This will increase the asset
healthiness also. Accordingly, the petitioner will incur the additional
capital expenditure of Rs. 1.50 Cr towards installation of NIFPS in FY
2025-26. The Petitioner has claimed the additional capital expenditure of
Rs. 1.50 Cr towards installation of NIFPS under Regulation 26(1)(1) of
Tariff Regulation, 2024 which provides for those expenditures which has

become necessary for efficient operation of transmission system.

Upgradation of existing installed Spring Pneumatic Circuit breakers to

Spring type Circuit breakers: Installed Circuit breakers at the Petitioners

assets have Spring Pneumatic system which have been observed failure
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in operation due to lacuna in the pneumatic system. OEM has stopped
providing this type of Circuit breakers and have recommended to provide
the Spring type circuit breakers. This will enhance the system safety and
hence requested for approval. Accordingly, the petitioner will incur the
additional capital expenditure of Rs. 10.00 Cr towards installation of
Spring type Circuit breakers in FY 2026-27. The Petitioner has claimed
the additional capital expenditure of Rs. 10.00 Cr towards installation of
Spring type Circuit breakers under Regulation 26(1)(i) of Tariff
Regulation, 2024 which provides for those expenditures which has

become necessary for efficient operation of transmission system.

Installation of Travelling wave fault locator (TWFL) in Transmission

line: Faults in the Transmission lines are not easy to identify due to
various changes in the tower footing resistance and arc resistance. One
effective way to analyse the faults in the Transmission system is through
TWFL. The system pinpoints the fault location leading to faster
restoration and thereby enhancing the availability and reliability of the
Transmission system. Accordingly, the petitioner will incur the additional
capital expenditure of Rs. 2.00 Cr towards installation TWFL in FY 2025-
26. The Petitioner has claimed the additional capital expenditure of Rs.
2.00 Cr towards installation of TWFL under Regulation 26(1)(1) of Tariff
Regulation, 2024 which provides for those expenditures which has

become necessary for efficient operation of transmission system.

34. In view of above the Petitioner has claimed the following Additional

Capitalisation for the control period of FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29:

(Rs. In Lakh)
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reactors

Part-A
Sr. | Year | Head under | Amount Justification | Regulation
No which proposed under
claimed to be which
capitalised covered
1. |FY Substation 150 | Online Dissolved | Regulation
2025- | Equipment Gas Analysis | 26 (1) (i) of
26 equipment Tariff
procurement & | Regulation,
installation  for | 2024
Bus and line
reactors
2 |FY Substation 80 | Online  Drying | Regulation
2025- | Equipment Unit (ODU) | 26 (1) (i) of
26 procurement & | Tariff
installation  for | Regulation,
Bus and line | 2024
reactors
3 |FY Substation 150 | Nitrogen Regulation
2025- | Equipment Injection fire | 26 (1) (i) of
26 protection Tariff
System (NIFPS) | Regulation,
procurement and | 2024
installation  for
Bus and line
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Part-A
Sr. | Year | Head under | Amount Justification | Regulation
No which proposed under
claimed to be which
capitalised covered
4 |FY Transmission 200 | Installation of | Regulation
2025- | Line Travelling wave | 26 (1) (i) of
26 fault locator | Tariff
(TWFL) in | Regulation,
Transmission line | 2024
2. |FY Substation 1000 | Upgradation  of | Regulation
2026- | Equipment existing installed | 26 (1) (i) of
27 Spring Pneumatic | Tariff
Circuit breakers | Regulation,
to Spring type | 2024
Circuit breakers
Depreciation

35. the Petitioner has calculated the depreciation charges for FY 2024-25 to FY
2028-29 as prescribed in the Regulations 33 of CERC (Terms & Conditions
of Tariff) Regulations, 2024.

Interest on Loan

36. Interest on loan is calculated for FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29 as prescribed in
Regulations 32 of CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2024.
The Petitioner has considered the weighted average interest rate of FY 2023-
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24 for the purpose of interest rates during FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29. The

repayment is considered equal to the depreciation for the year.

O&M Expenses

37. The Normative O&M Expenses for the control period from FY 2024-25 to

38.

FY 2028-29 is specified in Regulation 36 (3) of Tariff Regulation, 2024. The
Operation and Maintenance expenses has been calculated by multiplying the
number of sub-station bays, transformer capacity of the
transformer/reactor/Static = Var ~ Compensator/Static Synchronous
Compensator (in MVA/MVAr) and km of line length with the applicable
norms for the operation and maintenance expenses per bay, per MVA/MVAr

and per km respectively.

It is pertinent to note that Regulation 36 (3) (d) of Tariff Regulation, 2024
provides for Security Expenses, Capital spares and Insurance expenses shall
be allowed as O&M expenses for Transmission system. Hence, the
Petitioner has estimated the Security Expenses, Capital spares & Insurance
expenses for the control Period from FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29. The
Petitioner has claimed following Capital Spares as part of O&M expenses.

a) Procurement of tower material spare for various type of towers: Towers
are the lifeline of the Transmission system and necessary spares are
required to mitigate any failure of towers as the duration of restoration is
directly proportional with the availability of spares. To meet the same,
450 metric tonne of tower material is required to maintain the required

spares as per CEA guidelines.

b) Procurement of various type of test kits and relays: Following testing kits

are required:

e Capacitance and Tan delta measurement kit: To diagnose any incipient

failure of insulation.
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e Dynamic Contact Resistance Measurement (DCRM) of Circuit

Breakers: To identify any deterioration in the Circuit breaker contacts.

e Corona Camera: To identify the corona impact in the Transmission

line and Substations.

Further, protection relays installed in the system do not have any spare

and hence spares for the same is required.
39. In light of the above, the normative O&M expenses claimed are as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Years Part-A Part-B
FY 2024-25 1,136 135
FY 2025-26 1,818 332
FY 2026-27 2,291 146
FY 2027-28 1,378 152
FY 2028-29 1,472 158

Return on Equity

40. The Petitioner submits that it has paid 17.472% for FY 2023-24. Hence,
current MAT rate of 17.472% has been considered by the Petitioner which
results into RoE of 18.78% for the entire control period of FY 2024-25 to
FY 2028-29 as per Regulation 30 & 31 of CERC (Terms & Conditions of
Tariff) Regulation, 2024.

Interest on Working Capital

41. The Working capital is calculated for FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29 as per



Regulation 34 (1) (d) of CERC (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations,

2024. As per the Regulation, the Working Capital requirement includes

following components:

a) O&M expenses of one month

b) Maintenance spares @ 15% of O&M expenses

c) Receivables equivalent to 45 days of annual fixed cost

42. The Reference rate as defined in Regulation 3 (66) of CERC (Terms &

Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2024 is considered as the rate of interest

for working capital as per Regulation 34 (3) of CERC (Terms & Conditions

of Tariff) Regulations, 2024 for FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29.

Annual Transmission Charges

43. The transmission tariff for FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29 has been worked out

as given in table below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Part-A
Particulars | FY 2024- | FY 2025- | FY 2026- | FY 2027- | FY 2028-
25 26 27 28 29
Depreciation 6,224 6,239 6,281 6,307 6,307
Interest on
Loan 7,280 6,407 5,585 4,726 3,812
Return  on
Equity 5,669 5,683 5,721 5,745 5,745
Interest on
Working 334 351 361 308 300
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Part-A

Particulars | FY 2024- | FY 2025- | FY 2026- | FY 2027- | FY 2028-
25 26 27 28 29
Capital
O0&M
1,136 1,818 2,291 1,378 1,472
Expenses
Total 20,644 20,500 20,238 18,465 17,635

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Part-B
Particulars | FY 2024- | FY 2025- | FY 2026- | FY 2027- | FY 2028-
25 26 27 28 29

Depreciation 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
Interest on
Loan 2,086 1,827 1,569 1,310 1,052
Return on
Equity 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625
Interest on
Working
Capital 88 92 80 77 73
O&M

135 332 146 152 158
Expenses




Part-B

Particulars | FY 2024- | FY 2025- | FY 2026- | FY 2027- | FY 2028-

25 26 27 28 29

Total 5,716 5,660 5,203 4,947 4,691

44. The Tariff determination Formats along with other relevant information are

annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-7A & Annexure-7B for Part-A

& Part-B respectively.

GST

45. The Government of India has exempted the charges of transmission of

electricity vide notification no. 12/2017 — Central Tax (Rate) dated
28.06.2017 at serial no. 25 under the heading “Transmission or distribution
of electricity by an electric transmission or distribution utility” by giving
applicable GST rate as NIL and accordingly the Transmission Charges
indicated above, are exclusive of GST and same shall be changed, billed
separately by the Petitioner if at any time the transmission charges are
withdrawn from the list of NIL GST and will be borne and additionally paid
by the respondents to the Petitioner. Further, any additional taxes to be paid
by the Petitioner on account of demand from any Government/Statutory

authorities, the same may be allowed to be recovered from the beneficiaries

Other Expenses

46. The application filing fee, expenses incurred on publication of notices in

Newspapers may be allowed to be recovered separately from the
respondents in terms of Regulation 94 (1) of the Tariff Regulations, 2024,
The fees and charges to be paid by the Petitioner as ISTS licensee (deemed
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47.

ISTS licensee) under CERC (Fees and Charges of RLDC and other matters)
Regulations as amended from time to time and License Fees paid by the
Petitioner as Inter State Transmission Licensee (deemed ISTS licensee) in
terms of CERC (Payment of Fees) Regulations, 2012 shall be recoverable
from the DICs as provided under clause 92(2) (3) & (4) of the Tariff
regulation, 2024.

The Transmission Charges and other related Charges indicated above, are
exclusive of incentive, late payment surcharge, FERY, any statutory taxes,
levies, duties, cess, filing fees, Licence fee, RLDC fees and charges or any
other kind of imposition (s) and/ or other surcharges etc. whatsoever
imposed / charged by any Government (Central/State) and / or any other
local bodies/authorities/regulatory authorities in relation to transmission of
electricity/environmental protection, and/or in respect of any of its
installation associated with the Transmission System and the same shall be
borne and additionally paid by the respondent(s) to the Petitioner and the
same shall be charged, billed separately by the Petitioner on the

Respondents.

Sharing of Transmission Charges

48.

49.

Tariff for Transmission of Electricity (Annual Fixed Cost) shall be recovered
on monthly basis in accordance with Regulation 78 of Tariff Regulations,
2024 and shall be shared by the beneficiaries and long-term transmission
customers in Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Inter
State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2020 dated

04.05.2020 and amendment to these Regulations issued from time to time.

In the circumstances mentioned above it will be just and proper that the
transmission tariff and charges for the assets covered under this Petition be

allowed to be charged from the Respondents on the basis set out above.
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50. Further, the Petitioner requests the Hon’ble Commission to invoke
Regulation 102 “Power to Relax” under CERC Terms and Conditions of
Tariff Regulations 2024 respectively if the circumstances arise for any

matter mentioned herewith in the petition.

The present petition is made bonafide and in the interest of justice. The Hon’ble
Commission has jurisdiction to entertain the present matter and pass orders in
terms of jurisdiction vested under section 61, 62, read with section 79 and section

94 of the Electricity Act, 2003.
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PRAYER

In view of the aforementioned facts and circumstances of the present case it is,

therefore, most respectfully prayed that this Hon’ble Commission may graciously

be pleased to:

a)

b)

d)

Approve the Trued up Transmission Tariff for the Period of FY 2019-20 to
FY 2023-24 for the assets covered under this Petition;

Approve the Transmission Tariff for the tariff block FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-

29 for the assets covered under this Petition, claimed in this petition.

Approve the Additional capitalisation projected to be incurred during the
tariff block of FY 2024-25 to F'Y 2028-29 as claimed in the Petition.

Approve the reimbursement of expenditure by the beneficiaries towards
Petition filing fee, and expenditure on publishing of notices in newspapers in
terms of Tariff Regulations and other expenditure (if any) in relation to the

filing of Petition;

Allow the Petitioner to bill and recover the Licence fee and RLDC fees and

charges, separately from the respondents in terms of Tariff Regulations: and

Pass such other and further order or orders as this Hon’ble Commission may
deem fit and proper under the facts and circumstances of the present case and

in the interest of justice.

For, Essar Transco Limited

Place: Ahmedabad

(Authorised Signatory)

Date: 21.11.2024
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Annexure-1

CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION
NEW DELHI
Petition No. 24/TT/2023

Coram:

Shri Jishnu Barua, Chairperson
Shri l. S. Jha, Member

Shri Arun Goyal, Member

Shri P. K. Singh, Member

Date of Order: 22.11.2023

In the matter of:

Determination of transmission tariff for the 2019-24 tariff period for the Stage-ll
transmission assets of the transmission system associated with Mahan Thermal Power
Plant (MTPP) of EPTCL.

And in the matter of:

Essar Power Transmission Company Limited,

Lower Ground Floor,

Hotel Conclave Boutigue,

A-20, Kailash Colony,

New Delhi-110048. . Petitioner

Vs

1.  Central Transmission Utility of India Limited,
Plot No. 2, Near IFFCO Chowk Metro Station,
Sector 29, Gurugram-122001.

2. Power Grid Corporation of India Limited,
B-9, Qutub Institutional Area,
Katwaria Saral, New Delhi-110016.

3. Power System Operation Corporation Limited,
National Load Despatch Centre,
B-9, Qutub Institutional Area,
Katwaria Sarai, New Dethi-110016.

4. Western Region Power Committee,
F-3, MIDC Area, Marol, Opp. SEEPZ,
Central Road, Andheri East,
Mumbai-400093.

5. M. P. Power Management Company Limited,

Block No.11, Shakti Bhawan,
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Vidyut Nagar, Jabalpur-482008.

6. Western Regional Load Despatch Centre,
F-3, Krantiveer Lakhuji Salve Marg, SEEPZ,
Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra-400096.

7. Mahan Energen Limited (formerly Essar Power M.P. Limited),
Adani House, C-105,
Anand Niketan, New Delhi-110021. ...Respondents

For Petitioner: Ms. Swapna Seshadri, Advocate, EPTCL
Ms. Shivani Verma, Advocate, EPTCL
Shri Paritosh Bhasin, Advocate, EPTCL

For Respondent: Shri Hemant Singh, Advocate, MEL
Shri Robin Kumar, Advocate, MEL

ORDER

The present petition has been filed by Essar Power Transmission Company
Limited (EPTCL) for the determination of transmission tariff for the 2019-24 tariff period
for the Stage-ll transmission assets of the transmission system associated with Mahan

Thermal Power Plant (MTPP) of EPTCL.

2. The Petitioner has made the following prayers in the petition:

“l. Admit the application for determination of transmission tariff / provisional transmission
tariff (annual fixed cost) for the mentioned assets in the petition i.e. Stage - 2 of Essar
Power Transmission Company Limited (EPTCL), which shall form part of the inter-state
fransmission system for FY-2019-20 to FY 2034-24

Il. Determine the Annual fixed cost and transmission tariff / provisional transmission tanff
for the mentioned assets in the petition i.e. Stage - 2 of Essar Power Transmission
Company Limited (EPTCL)for FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24.

lll. Direct EPMPL/MEL to provide letter of credit for the portion of tariff to be bome by
EPMPL/MEL.

IV. Without prejudice to the Petitioner's case in Appeal No. 71/2023 before the Hon'ble
Tribunal to direct that MEL'’s portion of the tariff be paid out of the PoC pool in the event
that MEL succeeds in Appeal No. 71/2023;

V. Condone arty inadvertent omissions, errors, short comings and permit the petitioner

fo add/ change/ modify/ alter this filing and make further submissions as may be required
at a future date; and
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Vi. Pass such order and further orders as are deemed fit and proper in the facts and
circumstances of the case.”

Background

3. EPTCL was granted a transmission licence by the Commission vide order dated
10.4.2008 in Petition No. 157 of 2007 to develop the transmission system associated
with MTPP. The scope of work under the transmission system as per the order dated

10.4.2018 in Petition No. 157/2007 is as follows:

Transmission Lines

i) 400 kV D/C (quad conductor) transmission line from Mahan to Sipat Pooling
Sub-station

ii) LILO of existing 400 kV S/C Vindyanchal-Korba transmission line of PGCIL
at Mahan

iii) 400 kV D/C (twin conductor) transmission line from Gandhar NTPC switch
yard to Hazira

Sub-stations

i) 3X500 MVA, 400/220 kV sub-station at Hazira

i) 2x50 MVAR line reactors at Sipat pooling sub-station

iif) 2x50 MVAR line reactors at Mahan

iv) 1x80 MVAR, 420 kV Switchable bus reactors at Mahan TPS along with its
associated 400 kV bay

V) 2 numbers 400 kV line bays at Sipat pooling sub-station

vi) 2 numbers 400 kV line bays at Gandhar (NTPC) switchyard

vii) 4 numbers 400 kV line bays at Mahan TPS

4. The transmission licence was amended on the request of the Petitioner in order
to accommodate the proposed third unit of 600 MW of its subsidiary company, i.e. Essar
Power Madhya Pradesh Ltd. (EPMPL), at Mahan TPP. Accordingly, the configuration
of the Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line was upgraded from 400 kV D/C triple moose
conductor to 400 kV D/C gquad moose conductor vide order dated 15.9.2009 by the

Commission on the condition that the increased cost on account of the upgradation shall

not be passed on to the consumers. The relevant portion of the order dated 15.9.2009
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is as follows:

“2. The licensee vide is affidavit dated 29.8.2009 has submitted that one of its group
company, namely Essar Power M.P. Limited (EPMPL) is in the process of setting up 2
x 600 MW pit head coal fired thermal power project in the State of M.P. for which licensee
is constructing the transmission system. The licensee has further submitted that at the
request of EPMPL, it has decided to change the configuration of 400 kV D/C Triple,
Mahan-Sipat transmission line from Triple conductor to Quad Moose conductor, keeping
in view future expansion for the following reasons, namely:

(i) To minimize the usage of forest area, and
(i) To optimize the right of way (ROW).

3. According to the licensee, the Central Transmission Ulility vide letter
No.C/ENG/SEF/W/06/MAHAN, dated 8.5.2009 has conveyed it's no objection to the
change of configuration from Triple conductor to Quad Moose conductor. EPMPL vide
letter dated 21.8.2009 has confirmed that the additional tariff on account of increase in
the construction cost of the transmission system because of change in configuration
from Triple conductor to Quad Moose conductors shall not be passed on the consumers
in the State of Madhya Pradesh, for transmission of power allocated from the generating
station.

4. We have considered the request of the applicant and approve the modification in the
configuration from Triple conductor to Quad Moose conductor for 400 kV D/C Mahan-
Sipat transmission line.”

5. The assets covered in the transmission licence were put into commercial
operation by the Petitioner in two stages i.e. Stage-l and Stage-Il. The details of the
transmission assets under Stage-I and the transmission assets under Stage-Il are given
in the following table. The Petitioner has filed the instant petition for the determination

of the tariff for Stage-Il transmission assets for the 2019-24 tariff period.

Stage-I
| | Transmission Lines Units (in km)
1 | 400 kV D/C (twin conductor) transmission line from 104.60
Gandhar (NTPC) switchyard to Hazira

Il | 400/220 kV GIS Sub-station at Hazira Units (in numbers)
1 | 500 MVA (400 kV / 220 kV) transformers at Hazira 3*

2 | 220 kV Bays at Hazira 2

3 | 400 kV Sub-station and line bays (GIS) at Hazira 5

4 | 400 kV line bays (GIS) at Gandhar 2#

5 | 400 kV LILO line Bays at Mahan 2

*2 out of 3 transformers commissioned
#2 Bays at Gandhar developed, owned and maintained by NTPC Ltd.
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Stage-ll
| | Transmission Lines Units (in km)
1 | 400 kV D/C Quad Moose transmission line from Mahan 336.70
TPP to Sipat Substation

Il | Line Bays Units (in
Numbers)

1 | 400 kV line bays at Mahan and Sipat 4

Il | Reactors Units (in
Numbers)

1 | 400 kV 80 MVAR switchable bus reactor at EPMPL 1

2 | 50 MVAR switchable line reactors at MPMPL 2

3 | 50 MVAR line reactors at Sipat PS 2

6. The transmission assets under Stage-l were put into commercial operation on

1.4.2013, and the Petitioner claimed its tariff from COD to 31.3.2014 in Petition
No.173/TT/2013 and truing-up of the same for the 2009-14 period was done in Petition
No.111/TT/2015. Both the petitions were disposed of vide combined order dated
15.6.2016, granting tariff for the transmission assets under Stage-|. Aggrieved with the
order dated 15.6.2016, the Petitioner filed Review Petition No. 33/RP/2016 and the
Commission vide order dated 28.2.2018 disposed of the Review Petition No.
33/RP/2016. The Petitioner has filed an appeal against the order dated 28.2.2018
before the Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL) and the same is pending

adjudication.

7. The instant tariff petition covers transmission assets of Stage-ll which are as
follows:
Stage-I|
1 | Transmission Lines Units (in km)
1 | 400 kV D/C Quad Moose transmission line from Mahan 336.70
TPP to Sipat Substation .
Il | Line Bays “Units (in
Numbers)
1 | 400 kV line bays at Mahan and Sipat ' 4
lll | Reactors Units (in
Numbers)
1 | 400 kV 80 MVAR switchable bus reactor at EPMPL 1
2 | 50 MVAR switchable line reactors at MPMPL 2
3 | 50 MVAR line reactors at Sipat PS 2
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8. As per the Commission’s order dated 10.4.2008 in Petition No. 157/2007, the
instant transmission system was scheduled to be put into commercial operation in
October 2010. Accordingly, the scheduled COD of the transmission assets under Stage-
Ilwas 1.11.2010 (the first day of the next month in terms of the 2009 Tariff Regulations).
However, the transmission assets under Stage-Il were put into commercial operation

on 22.9.2018.

9. The Commission vide order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018 granted
a tariff from COD on 22.9.2018 to 31.3.2019 for the Stage-Il of transmission assets. The
Commission, in an order dated 14.3.2022, taking into consideration EPMPL’s letter
dated 21.8.2009, wherein EPMPL had agreed to bear the additional tariff on account of
change in the conductor configuration of the Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line, held that
the additional tariff on account of increase in the cost of Mahan Sipat Transmission Line
due to change in conductor configuration from triple moose conductor to quad moose
conductor will be exclusively borne by EPMPL. The relevant portion of the order dated

14.3.2022 is as follows:

“45. We, thus, note that vide letter dated 21.8.2009, EPMPL had agreed to bear
additional tariff on account of change in conductor configuration (from triple moose to
quad moose) of the 400 kV Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line. The Commission, taking
cognizance of the said letter dated 21.8.2009 of EPMPL as well as taking into
consideration no objection of CTU vide letter dated 8.5.2009, approved amendment to
the transmission license of the Petitioner vide order dated 15.9.2009. Therefore,
additional tanff on account of change in the configuration of conductor is required to be
borne by EPMPL as committed by EPMPL in its letter dated 21.8.2009.”
10.  In terms of the Commission’s order dated 14.3.2022, the transmission charges
in respect of 76% of the capital cost (referred to as “Part-A of the tariff’) of the Stage-II
transmission assets are included in PoC computation and liability corresponding to the
remaining 24% of the capital cost (referred to as “Part-B of the tariff’) is not included in

the PoC computation and has to be borne by EPMPL/Mahan Energy Limited (MEL).
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11.  Annual Fixed Charges (AFC) approved by the Commission in respect of the
transmission assets under Stage-ll for the 2014-19 tariff period in the order dated

14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018 are as follows:

Part-A of the tariff
(¥ in lakh)
Particulars 2018-19
(pro-rata for 191
days)
Depreciation 3256.96
Interest on Loan 6626.56
Return on Equity 3120.83
O & M Expenses 413.61
Interest on Working Capital 290.51
Total 13708.47
Part-B of the tariff
(X in lakh)
Particulars 201819
{pro-rata for 191
days)
Depreciation 933.29
interest on Loan 1898.85
Return on Equity 894.28
O & M Expenses 51.14
Interest on Working Capital 79.89
Total 3857.44

12.  The Petitioner has served the copy of the petition upon the Respondents, and
notice regarding the filing of this tariff application has been published in the newspapers
in accordance with Section 64 of the Electricity Act, 2003. No comments or suggestions
have been received from the general public in response to the notices published by the
Petitioner under Section 64 of the Electricity Act, 2003. Reply to the petition has been

filed by MEL, Respondent No. 7.
13.  The hearing in this matter was held on 26.7.2023 and the order was reserved.

14.  This order is being issued considering the submissions made by the Petitioner in
the petition, the Petitioner’s affidavits dated 20.4.2023, 7.6.2023 and the reply filed by

MEL, Respondent No. 7 vide affidavit dated 17.5.2023 and the Petitioner’s rejoinder
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vide affidavit dated 15.6.2023 and Written Submissions dated 17.8.2023.

15.  Having heard the learned counsels of the Petitioner and the Respondents and

having perused the material on record, we proceed to dispose of the petition.

16. The Commission, vide order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018
allowed the tariff in respect of Stage-ll transmission assets from COD to 31.3.2019

period subject to truing up on the following tariff parameters:

i) Debt-Equity ratio of 74.39:25.61 as on COD and as on 31.3.2019

if) Weighted Average rate of Depreciation (WAROD) of 5.28%. Further, the
Stage-l assets will complete 12 years beyond the 2019-24 tariff period.

iii) Weighted Average rate of Interest on Loan of 14.71%.

iv) RoE as per Base Rate of 15.50%, MAT rate (2018-19) of 21.549% and Rate
of RoE (pre-tax) of 19.758%.

V) O&M Expenses for 336.50 km Mahan-Sipat double circuit (bundled conductor
with four or more sub-conductors), 3 numbers of 400 kV reactor bays and 4

numbers of line bays.

17.  The Commission directed the Petitioner to submit a petition for truing up of the
transmission charges allowed vide order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/T7/2018
for the period from COD to 31.3.2019 and determination of tariff for the 2019-24 tariff
period as per the applicable tariff regulations within a period of 60 days, impleading all
the beneficiaries and the DICs as Respondents. Accordingly, the Petitioner has filed the
instant petition for the determination of the transmission tariff of the transmission assets
under Stage-li for the 2019-24 tariff period in accordance with the 2019 Tariff

Regulations.
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The Petitioner has made the following submissions in the instant petition:

a) The Commission vide order dated 14.3.2022 divided the tariff payments
between PoC pool (76% of the capital cost approved) and EPMPL (24%) of the
capital cost approved. Accordingly, the present petition has been filed for (a) tariff
to be recovered through PoC and (b) tariff recoverable from EPMPL. EPMPL has

since been renamed as MEL.

b) The details of the actual project cost and other details sought by the
Commission were submitted during the adjudication of Petition No. 145/TT/2018.
Accordingly, the tariff was determined in an order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No.
145/TT/2018 on the basis of actuals and not on the basis of projections. Since
there are no new costs associated with the Stage-Il transmission assets, there is
no need for true-up of the tariff determined vide order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition

No. 145/TT/2018.

c) The capital cost of Stage-ll of the transmission system claimed from the
common pool is ¥117879.26 lakh and from EPML (now MEL) is ¥33776.98 lakh,

as determined vide order dated 14.3.2022 as on COD.

d) Debt-Equity of 74.39:25.61, i.e. same as the 2014-19 period, is as follows:

(T in lakh

Particulars PoC Part EPMPL/MEL Part
Debt 87694.60 25129.39
Equity 30184.66 8649.59
Total 117879.26 33778.98

e) The Return on Equity (RoE) has been calculated @18.872% after grossing

up the RoE with a MAT rate of 17.472% based on the formula given in Regulation

31(2) of the 2019 Tariff Regulations for the 2019-24 tariff period.

"Order in Petition No.24/TT/2023
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f) Interest on the loan for the 2019-24 tariff period has been calculated based
on the actual rate of interest on the term applicable for the year and the Auditor's

Certificate certifying the interest rate on the term loan has been attached.

g) Depreciation has been calculated as specified under Regulation 33 of the
2019 Tariff Regulations on the value base of the order dated 14.3.2022.
Depreciation has been calculated annually based on the Straight Line Method

and at rates specified in Appendix-| to the said Regulations.

h) O&M Expenses for the 2019-24 period have been claimed as per line length
and a number of bays allowed in an order dated 14.3.2022 and norms as per
Regulation 35(3)(a) of the 2019 Tarif Regulations. The Petitioner has claimed the

insurance expenses for the Stage-ll assets under the O&M head and has

submitted document proof in support of the same.

19.  Accordingly, following tariff has been claimed by the Petitioner for the 2019-24
period:

Part-A of the tariff (X in lakh
Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 |2021-22 [2022-23 |2023-24
Depreciation 6224.02) 6224.02| 6224.02) 6224.02 6224.02
Interest on Loan 11792.22| 10889.73] 9987.25 9084.77| 8182.28
Return on Equity 5669.13| 5669.13 5669.13 5669.13] 5669.13
Interest on Working Capital 385.99 383.97 373.27 344.12 330.07
O & M Expenses 683.76 926.19 992.80 636.63 646.33
Total 24755.120 24093.04| 23246.47, 21958.67| 21051.83
Part-B of the tariff (¥ in lakh)
Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 |2021-22 |2022-23 2023-24
Depreciation 1783.63] 1783.53] 1783.53| 1783.53] 1783.53
Interest on Loan 3379.13 3120.52| 2861.90, 2603.29] 2344.68
Return on Equity 1624.52) 1624.52] 1624.52] 1624.52) 1624.52
Interest on Working Capital 106.72 103.27 99.54 95.82 91.85
O & M Expenses 106.76 110.48 114.36 118.39 122.51
Totai 7000.66] 6742.32| 6483.85 6225.56| 5967.09

20.
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as 22.9.2018. Further, the Commission has already condoned the time over-run of 2314

days out of 2882 days in order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018.

Capital Cost
21.  Regulations 19 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations provides as follows:

“19. Capital Cost: (1) The Capital cost of the generating station or the transmission
system, as the case may be, as determined by the Commission after prudence check in
accordance with these regulations shall form the basis for determination of tanff for
existing and new projects.

(2) The Capital Cost of a new project shall include the following:

(a) The expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred up to the date of commercial
operation of the project;

(b) Interest during construction and financing charges, on the loans (i) being equal to
70% of the funds deployed, in the event of the actual equity in excess of 30% of the
funds deployed, by treating the excess equity as normative loan, or (i) being equal to
the actual amount of loan in the event of the actual equity less than 30% of the funds
deployed;

(c) Any gain or loss on account of foreign exchange risk vanation pertaining to the loan
amount availed during the construction period;

(d) Interest during construction and incidental expenditure during construction as
computed in accordance with these regulations;

(e) Capitalised initial spares subject to the ceiling rates in accordance with these
regulations;

() Expenditure on account of additional capitalization and de-capitalisation determined
in accordance with these regulations;

(g) Adjustment of revenue due to sale of infirm power in excess of fuel cost prior to the
date of commercial operation as specified under Regulation 7 of these regulations;

(h) Adjustment of revenue earned by the transmission licensee by using the assels
before the date of commercial operation;

(i) Capital expenditure on account of ash disposal and utilization including handling and
transportation facility;

(i) Capital expenditure incurred towards railway infrastructure and its augmentation for
transportation of coal upto the receiving end of the generating station but does naot
include the transportation cost and any other appurtenant cost paid to the railway;

(k) Capital expenditure on account of biomass handling equipment and facilities, for co-
firing;

() Capital expenditure on account of emission control system necessary to meet the
revised emission standards and sewage treatment plant;

(m) Expenditure on account of fulfilment of any conditions for obtaining environment
clearance for the project;

(n) Expenditure on account of change in law and force majeure events; and

(o) Capital cost incurred or projected to be incurred by a thermal generating station, on
account of implementation of the norms under Perform, Achieve and Trade (PAT)
scheme of Government of India shall be considered by the Commission subject to
sharing of benefits accrued under the PAT scheme with the beneficiaries.

(3) The Capital cost of an existing project shall include the following:
(a) Capital cost admitted by the Commission prior to 1.4.2019 duly trued-up by excluding
liability, if any, as on 1.4.2019; '
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44

(b) Additional capitalization and de-capitalization for the respective year of tanff as
determined in accordance with these regulations;

(c) Capital expenditure on account of renovation and modernisation as admitted by this
Commission in accordance with these regulations;

(d) Capital expenditure on account of ash disposal and utilization including handling and
transportation facility;

(e) Capital expenditure incurred towards railway infrastructure and its augmentation for
transportation of coal upto the receiving end of generating station but does not include
the transportation cost and any other appurtenant cost paid to the railway; and

(f) Capital cost incurred or projected to be incurred by a thermal generating station, on
account of implementation of the norms under Perform, Achieve and Trade (PAT)
scheme of Government of India shall be considered by the Commission subject to
sharing of benefits accrued under the PAT scheme with the beneficiaries.

(4) The capital cost in case of existing or new hydro generating station shall also include:
(a) cost of approved rehabiiitation and reseftlement (R&R) plan of the project in
conformity with National R&R Policy and R&R package as approved; and

(b) cost of the developer's 10% contribution towards Rajiv Gandhi Grameen
Vidyutikaran Yojana (RGGVY) and Deendayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoli Yojana
(DDUGJY) project in the affected area.

(5) The following shall be excluded from the capital cost of the existing and new projects:
(a) The assets forming part of the project, but not in use, as declared in the tariff petition;
(b) De-capitalised Assets after the date of commercial operation on account of
replacement or removal on account of obsolescence or shifting from one project to
another project:

Provided that in case replacement of transmission asset is recommended by Regional
Power Committee, such asset shall be de-capitalised only after its redeployment;

Provided further that unless shifting of an asset from one project to another is of
permanent nature, there shall be no de-capitalization of the concerned assets.

(c) In case of hydro generating stations, any expenditure incurred or committed to be
incurred by a project developer for getting the project site allotted by the State
Government by following a transparent process;

(d) Proportionate cost of land of the existing project which is being used for generating
power from generating station based on renewable energy; and

(e) Any grant received from the Central or State Government or any statutory body or
authority for the execution of the project which does not carry any liability of repayment.”

The Petitioner has claimed the following capital cost of Stage-ll transmission

assets for the 2019-24 period and has submitted an Auditor certificate dated 2.5.2022

in support of its claim:

(T in lakh)
Particulars Incurred  upto | Incurred for the | Incurred
31.3.2020 period 2020-21 | upto
31.3.2021
A | Direct cost (Hard cost)

a)Hard cost capitalised 109537.08 319.57 109856.65
after COD
b) Hard cost (Right of Way 4772.51 - 4772.51
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and Forest Clearance
Expenses capitalised up to
31.3.2014

B | Interest during construction
paid to Bank/Financial
institutions

C | Finance Charges

D | Incidental Expenditure
during Construction

Total 197007.07

77567.21 - 77567.21

710.62 -
4420.25 -

710.62
4420.25

319.57 197326.64

23. The Petitioner has submitted that 76% of the capital cost of the transmission
assets under Stage-ll as on 31.3.2019 and 31.3.2024 has to be recovered from

common pool, which is about ¥117879.26 lakh and the details of the same is as follows:

{¥ in lakh)
. Projected ACE Estimated
Capital cost .
as on completion
31.3.2018 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | cost as on
h 31.3.2024
Notional
Loan 87694.60 - - - - 87694.60
Notional 30184.66 - - - -] 30184.66
Equity
Total 117879.26 - - 117879.26

The Petitioner has submitted that 24% of the capital cost of the transmission

assets under Stage-ll as on 31.3.2019 and 31.3.2024 has to be recovered from

EPMPL/MEL, which is about Z33778.98 lakh and the details of the same is as follows:

(T in lakh)
. Projected ACE Estimated
Cap ';al EOSt completion
3 133 ;’0 qg | 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | costas on
o 31.3.2024
Notionai 2512940 ] ; ; S| 2512940
Loan
Notional 8649.58 - - ; - 8649.58
Equity
Total 33778.98 - - 33778.98

We have considered the submissions of the Petitioner. The capital cost has been

dealt with in line with Regulation 19(3) of the 2019 Tariff Regulations. The capital cost
as admitted by the Commission as on 31.3.2019 for the transmission assets is

considered for the transmission assets as on 1.4.2019 and tha cama jg gs follows:
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(¥ in lakh)
r Particulars Capital cost for considered
as on 31.3.2019
a) Capital cost of Stage-il of the transmission 117879.26
system to be part of PoC
b) Capital cost of Stage-Il of the transmission 33778.98
system to be claimed from EPMPL/MEL

26. As stated above, taking into consideration EPMPL's letter dated 21.8.2009,
wherein EMPMPL had agreed to bear the additional tariff on account of change in the
conductor configuration of the Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line, the Commission in order
dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018 held that the additional tariff on account of
increase in cost of Mahan Sipat Transmission Line due to change in conductor
configuration from triple moose conductor to quad moose conductor will be exclusively
borne by EPMPL. The relevant portions of the Commission's order dated 14.3.2022 is

as follows:

“45. We, thus, note that vide letter dated 21.8.2009, EPMPL had agreed to bear
additional tariff on account of change in conductor configuration (from triple moose to
quad moose) of the 400 kV Mahan- Sipat Transmission Line. The Commission, taking
cognizance of the said letter dated 21.8.2009 of EPMPL as well as taking into
consideration no objection of CTU vide letter dated 8.5.2009, approved amendment to
the transmission license of the Petitioner vide order dated 15.9.2008. Therefore,
additional tariff on account of change in the configuration of conductor is required to be
borne by EPMPL as committed by EPMPL in its letter dated 21.8.2009.

46. In terms of above, additional tariff on account of increase in cost of Mahan Sipat
Transmission Line due to change in conductor configuration from triple moose conductor
to quad moose conductor, is required to be determined that will be borne by EPMPL.”

“48. It is observed that the difference between the cost of D/C transmission lines with
quad moose conductor and D/C transmission lines with triple moose conductor is about
238 lakh in 2018-19, i.e. the year in which the Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line achieved
COD (it is about ¥39 lakh in January 2022). Thus, the capital cost of D/C quad moose
conductor is about 24% more than D/C triple moose conductor. Accordingly, in order to
arrive at the capital cost corresponding to transmission line having configuration of triple
conductlor, 24% of the capital cost is required to be further reduced. Tariff corresponding
to this 24% of capital cost is to be borne by EPMPL. Tariff corresponding to the
remaining 76% of the capital cost thus arrived shall be included in POC.”

27. MEL filed Review Petition No. 27/RP/2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018. The
Commission vide order dated 16.1.2023 rejected the Review Petition No. 27/RP/2022

and the relevant portion of the order is as follows:
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“28. We have considered the above contentions of the parties and have perused the
impugned order. The Review Petitioner’s contention is that it cannot be saddled with any
new liability after completion of CIRP. As stated above, the additional cost pertaining to
quad moose conductor was agreed to be borne by EPMPL vide letter date 21.8.2009,
on the basis of which the transmission licence of EPTCL was amended. Perusal of
record reflects that there is categorical admission on the part of erstwhile EPMPL to bear
the additional taniff on account of change in conductor configuration from triple moose
conductor to quad moose conductor of 400 kV Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line through
letter dated 21.8.2009 and CTUIL had also approved the amendment of the transmission
licence vide letter dated 8.5.2009. Accordingly, the Commission had rightly arnived at
the finding that ‘additional tariff on account of increase in cost of Mahan-Sipat
Transmission Line due to change in conductor configuration from triple moose conductor
to quad moose conductor, is required to be determined that will be borne by EPMPL’.

29. As regards relinquishment, EPMPL relinquished the entire LTA of 750 MW and 450
MW vide its letters dated 10.4.2017 and 30.4.2018 respectively. the said relinquishment
was duly accepted by CTUIL vide its letters dated 19.5.2017 and 30.5.2018 for 750 MW
(with effect from 12.4.2017 and 450 MW with effect from 4.5.2018, respectively). The
amount claimed by CTUIL as dues in IBC proceedings pertained to relinquishment
charges for triple moose conductor in terms of order dated 8.3.2019 in Petition No.
92/MP/2015.

30. Had the facts relating to execution of TSA dated 20.8.2008 alongwith its
amendments, execution of fresh TSA dated 17.8.2012 on promulgation of the 2010
Sharing Regulations, termination of earlier TSA dated 20.8.2008 with amendments
Order in Review Petition No. 27/RP/2022 Page 28 of 29 by deed of termination on
29.3.2014 or the fact that EPMPL was before the NCLT in CIRP, would have come in
our knowledge at the time when we were adjudicating Petition No. 145/TT/2018, no
material change would have been there in our findings as the Commission imposed
liability on the erstwhile EPMPL based on the consent letter dated 21.8.2009 given by
EPMPL to EPTCL. Further, the payment liability for period prior to culmination of IBC
proceedings in terms of the impugned order dated 14.3.2022 is beyond the scope of the
review jurisdiction.”

Additional Capital Expenditure
28. The Petitioner has claimed an amount of ¥15.17 lakh of ACE in 2019-20. The

Petitioner was directed to submit the details of ACE and justification of the proposed
ACE. The Petitioner has neither submitted the details of the ACE claimed for 2019-20
nor any justification for the proposed ACE. Therefore, ACE of ¥15.17 lakh of ACE in

2019-20 claimed by the Petitioner is disallowed.

Capital Cost for the 2019-24 tariff period

29. Inview of the above, the capital cost considered with respect to the transmission

assets for determination of the tariff for the 2019-24 tariff period is as follows:
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Part-A of the tariff (¥ in lakh)
Particulars Capital cost Capital cost
(as on COD) allowed as on
31.3.2024
Notional Loan 87694.60 87694.60
Notional Equity 30184.66 30184.66
Total 117879.26 117879.26
Part-B of the tariff (T in lakh)
Capital cost Capital cost
(as on COD) allowed as on
31.3.2024
Notional Loan 25129.40 25129.40
Notional Equity 8649.58 8649.58
Total 33778.98 33778.98

Debt-Equity Ratio

30.

48

Regulation 18 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations provides as follows:

“18. Debt-Equity Ratio: (1) For new projects, the debt-equity ratio of 70:30 as on date of
commercial operation shall be considered. If the equity actually deployed is more than
30% of the capital cost, equity in excess of 30% shall be treated as normative loan:

Provided that:

i where equity actually deployed is less than 30% of the capital cost, actual equity
shall be considered for determination of tanff:

i, ii. the equity invested in foreign currency shall be designated in Indian rupees on
the date of each investment:

jil. iii. any grant obtained for the execution of the project shall not be considered as
a part of capital structure for the purpose of debt: equity ratio.

Explanation.-The premium, if any, raised by the generating company or the transmission
licensee, as the case may be, while issuing share capital and investment of internal
resources created out of its free reserve, for the funding of the project, shall be reckoned
as paid up capital for the purpose of computing return on equity, only if such premium
amount and internal resources are actually utilised for meeting the capital expenditure
of the generating station or the transmission system.

(2) The generating company or the transmission licensee, as the case may be, shall
submit the resolution of the Board of the company or approval of the competent authority
in other cases regarding infusion of funds from internal resources in support of the
utilization made or proposed to be made to meet the capital expenditure of the
generating station or the transmission system including communication system, as the
case may be.

(3} In case of the generating station and the transmission system including
communication system declared under commercial operation prior to 1.4.2019, debt:
equity ratio allowed by the Commission for determination of tariff for the period ending
31.3.2019 shall be considered:
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49

Provided that in case of a generating station or a transmission system including
communication system which has completed its useful life as on or after 1.4.2019, if the
equity actually deployed as on 1.4.2019 is more than 30% of the capital cost, equity in
excess of 30% shall not be taken into account for tariff computation;

Provided further that in case of projects owned by Damodar Valley Corporation, the debt:
equity ratio shall be governed as per sub-clause (ii) of clause (2) of Regulation 72 of
these regulations.

(4) In case of the generating station and the transmission system including
communication system declared under commercial operation prior to 1.4.2019, but
where debt: equily ratio has not been determined by the Commission for determination
of tariff for the period ending 31.3.2019, the Commission shall approve the debt: equity
ratio in accordance with clause (1) of this Reguiation.

(5) Any expenditure incurred or projected to be incurred on or after 1.4.2019 as may be
admitted by the Commission as additional capital expenditure for determination of tariff,
and renovation and modernisation expenditure for life extension shall be serviced in the
manner specified in clause (1) of this Regulation.

(6) Any expenditure incurred for the emission control system during the tarff period as
may be admitted by the Commission as additional capital expenditure for determination
of supplementary tariff, shall be serviced in the manner specified in clause (1) of this
Regulation.”

The debt-equity considered for the purpose of computation of tariff for the 2019-

24 tariff period in respect of Part-A of the tariff is as follows:

. ACE Capital cost
Funding izpc;t:lccggt (in%) | durng as on (in %)
2 ekt 201924 | 31.3.2024
(Zinlakh) | (Zin lakh)
Debt 87694.60 | 74.39 - 87694.60 | 74.39
Equity 30184.66 | 25.61 - 30184.66 | 25.61
Total 117879.26 | 100.00 - 117879.26 | 100.00

32. The debt-equity considered for the purpose of computation of tariff for 2019-24

tariff period in respect of Part-B of the tariff is as follows:

Capital cost A(?E Capital cost
Funding as on COD | (in%) | Jduring as on (in %)
( in lakh) 2019-24 31.3.2024
(T in lakh) (¥ in lakh)
Debt 25129.40 | 74.39 - 25129.40 | 74.39
Equity 8649.58 | 25.61 - 8649.58 | 25.61
Total 33778.98 | 100.00 - 33778.98 | 100.00

Depreciation

33. Regulation 33 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations provides as follows:
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“33. Depreciation: (1) Depreciation shall be computed from the date of commercial
operation of a generating station or unit thereof or a transmission system or element
thereof including communication system. In case of the tariff of all the units of a
generating station or all elements of a transmission system including communication
system for which a single tariff needs to be determined, the depreciation shall be
computed from the effective date of commercial operation of the generating station or
the transmission system taking into consideration the depreciation of individual units:

Provided that effective date of commercial operation shall be worked out by considering
the actual date of commercial operation and installed capacity of all the units of the
generating station or capital cost of all elements of the transmission system, for which
single tariff needs to be determined.

(2) The value base for the purpose of depreciation shall be the capital cost of the asset
admitted by the Commission. In case of multiple units of a generating station or multiple
elements of a transmission system, weighted average life for the generating station of
the transmission system shall be applied. Depreciation shall be chargeable from the first
year of commercial operation. In case of commercial operation of the asset for part of
the year, depreciation shall be charged on pro rata basis.

(3) The salvage value of the asset shall be considered as 10% and depreciation shall
be allowed up to maximum of 90% of the capital cost of the asset:

Provided that the salvage value for IT equipment and software shall be considered as
NIL and 100% value of the assets shall be considered depreciable;

Provided further that in case of hydro generating stations, the salvage value shall be as
provided in the agreement, if any, signed by the developers with the State Government
for development of the generating station:

Provided also that the capital cost of the assets of the hydro generating station for the
purpose of computation of depreciated value shall correspond to the percentage of sale
of electricity under long-term power purchase agreement at regulated tariff:

Provided also that any depreciation disallowed on account of lower availability of the
generating station or unit or transmission system as the case may be, shall not be
allowed to be recovered at a later stage during the useful life or the extended life.

(4) Land other than the land held under lease and the land for reservoir in case of hydro
generating station shall not be a depreciable asset and its cost shall be excluded from
the capital cost while computing depreciable value of the asset.

(5) Depreciation shall be calculated annually based on Straight Line Method and at rates
specified in Appendix-I to these regulations for the assets of the generating station and
transmission system:

Provided that the remaining depreciable value as on 31st March of the year closing after
a period of 12 years from the effective date of commercial operation of the station shall
be spread over the balance useful life of the assets.

(6) In case of the existing projects, the balance depreciable value as on 1.4.2019 shall
be worked out by deducting the cumulative depreciation as admitted by the Commission
upto 31.3.2019 from the gross depreciable value of the assets.

(7) The generating company or the transmission licensee, as the case may be, shall
submit the details of proposed capital expenditure five years before the completion of
useful life of the project along with justification and proposed life extension. The
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34.

Commission based on prudence check of such submissions shall approve the
depreciation on capital expenditure.

(8) In case of de-capitalization of assets in respect of generating station or unit thereof
or transmission system or element thereof, the cumulative depreciation shall be adjusted
by taking into account the depreciation recovered in tariff by the de-capitalized asset
during its useful services.

(9) Where the emission control system is implemented within the original scope of the
generating station and the date of commercial operation of the generating station or unit
thereof and the date of operation of the emission control system are the same,
depreciation of the generating station or unit thereof including the emission control
system shall be computed in accordance with Clauses (1) to (8) of this Regulation.

(10) Depreciation of the emission control system of an existing or a new generating
station or unit thereof where the date of operation of the emission control system is
subsequent to the date of commercial operation of the generating station or unit thereof,
shall be computed annually from the date of operation of such emission control system
based on straight line method, with salvage value of 10%, over a period of —

a) twenty-five years, in case the generating station or unit thereof is in operation for
fifteen years or less as on the date of operation of the emission control system; or

b) balance useful life of the generating station or unit thereof plus fifteen years, in case
the generating station or unit thereof is in operation for more than fifteen years as on the
date of operation of the emission control system; or

c) ten years or a period mutually agreed by the generating company and the
beneficiaries, whichever is higher, in case the generating station or unit thereof has
completed its useful life.”

We have considered the submissions of the Petitioner. The depreciation has

been worked out considering the admitted capital expenditure as on COD as per the

rates of depreciation prescribed in the 2019 Tariff Regulations as per the details given

in Annexure. Depreciation allowed in respect of the transmission assets for 2019-24

tariff period is as follows:

51

Part-A of the tariff (Zin lakh
Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Depreciation
A | Opening Gross Block 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26
B | Additional Capitalisation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
c gol\o%i?g Gross Block 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26
+
E Average Gross Block 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26 | 117879.26
(A+C)/2
D | Freehold Land 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
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Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Weighted average rate of 5.2800% 5.2800% 5.2800% | 5.2800% 5.2800%
F | Depreciation (WAROD)
(in %)
G Balance useful life of the 35 34 33 32 31
asset
Elapsed life at the 0 1 2 3
H | beginning of the year
(Year)
| Aggregate Depreciable 106091.33 | 106091.33 | 106091.33 | 106091.33 | 106091.33
Value
J Depreciation during the 6224.02 6224.02 6224.02 6224.02 6224.02
year
K Cumulative depreciation 9480.98 15705.01 21929.03 | 28153.06 34377.08
at the end of the year
Remaining Depreciation 96610.35 90386.32 84162.30 | 77938.27 71714.25
L value at the end of the
year
(I-K)
Part-B of the tariff (T in lakh)
Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 | 2023-24
Depreciation
A | Opening Gross Block 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98
B | Additional Capitalisation 0.00 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00
C | Closing Gross Block (A+B) 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98
E Average Gross Block 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98 33778.98
(A+C)/2
D| Freehold Land 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Weighted average rate of 5.2800% 5.2800% 5.2800% 5.2800% 5.2800%
F | Depreciation (WAROD) (in
%L
G Balance useful life of the 35 34 33 32 31
asset
H Elapsed life at the beginning 0 1 2 3 4
of the year (Year)
I Aggregate Depreciable 30401.08 | 30401.08 | 30401.08| 30401.08 | 30401.08
Value
J Depreciation during the 1783.53 1783.53 1783.53 1783.53 1783.53
ear
K Cumulative depreciation at 2716.82 4500.35 6283.88 8067.41 9850.94
the end of the year
Remaining Depreciation value 27684.26 25900.73 24117.20 22333.67 20550.14
L | at the end of the year
I-K)

Interest on Loan (loL)

35.

A

Regulation 32 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations provides as follows:

“32. Interest on loan capital: (1) The loans arrived at in the manner indicated in
Regulation 18 of these regulations shall be considered as gross normative loan for
calculation of interest on loan.
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53

(2) The normative loan outstanding as on 1.4.2019 shall be worked out by deducting the
cumulative repayment as admitted by the Commission up to 31.3.2019 from the gross
normative loan.

(3) The repayment for each of the year of the tariff period 2019-24 shall be deemed to
be equal to the depreciation allowed for the corresponding year/period. In case of de-
capitalization of assets, the repayment shall be adjusted by taking into account
cumulative repayment on a pro rata basis and the adjustment should not exceed
cumulative depreciation recovered upto the date of de-capitalisation of such asset.

(4) Notwithstanding any moratorium period availed by the generating company or the
transmission licensee, as the case may be, the repayment of loan shall be considered
from the first year of commercial operation of the project and shall be equal to the
depreciation allowed for the year or part of the year (5) The rate of interest shall be the
weighted average rate of interest calculated on the basis of the actual loan portfolio after
providing appropriate accounting adjustment for interest capitalized:

Provided that if there is no actual loan for a particular year but normative loan is still
outstanding, the last available weighted average rate of interest shall be considered;

Provided further that if the generating station or the transmission system, as the case
may be, does not have actual loan, then the weighted average rate of interest of the
generating company or the transmission licensee as a whole shall be considered.

(5a) The rate of interest on loan for installation of emission control system shall be the
weighted average rate of interest of actual loan portfolio of the emission control system
or in the absence of actual loan portfolio, the weighted average rate of interest of the
generating company as a whole shall be considered.

(6) The interest on loan shall be calculated on the normative average loan of the year
by applying the weighted average rate of interest.

(7) The changes to the terms and conditions of the loans shall be reflected from the
date of such re-financing.”

The Petitioner has claimed the weighted average rate of loL based on its actual

loan portfolio and rate of interest.

37.

The loL has been calculated based on the actual interest rate submitted by the

Petitioner and in accordance with Regulation 32 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations. The loL

approved for the transmission assets under Stage-ll is as follows:

{T in lakh
Particulars Part-A of the tariff
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Interest on Loan
A | Gross Normative Loan 87694.60 87694.60 87694.60 87694 .60 87694.60
B Cumulative Repayment 3256.96 9480.98 15705.01 21929.03 28153.06
upto Previous Year
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Particulars Part-A of the tariff
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
C | Net Loan-Opening 84437.64 78213.62 71989.59 65765.57 59541.54
D Addition due to Additional 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capitalisation
E Repayment during the 6224.02 6224.02 6224.02 6224.02 6224.02
year
F | Net Loan-Closing 78213.62 71989.59 65765.57 59541.54 53317.52
G| Average Loan 81325.63 75101.60 68877.58 62653.55 56429.53
Weighted Average Rate of 14.50 14.50 14.50 14.50 14.50
H | Interest on Loan (in %)
H| Interest on Loan (G*H) 11792.22 10889.73 9987.25 9084.77 8182.28
(¥ in lakh)
Particulars Part-B of the tariff
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Interest on Loan
A | Gross Normative Loan 25129.40 25129.40 25129.40 25129.40 25129.40
B Cumulative Repayment 933.29 2716.82 4500.35 6283.88 8067.41
upto Previous Year
C | Net Loan-Opening 24196.11 22412.58 20629.05 18845.52 17061.99
D Addition due to Additional 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capitalisation
Repayment during the 1783.53 1783.53 1783.53 1783.53 1783.53
E year
F | Net Loan-Closing 22412.58 20629.05 18845.52 17061.99 15278.46
G | Average Loan 23304.34 21520.81 19737.28 17953.75 16170.22
Weighted Average Rate of 14.50 14.50 14.50 14,50 14.50
H | Interest on Loan (in %)
H | Interest on Loan (G*H) 3379.13 3120.52 2861.91 2603.29 2344.68

Return on Equit

38.

RoE

Regulation 30 and Regulation 31 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations provide as

follows:

A

“30. Return on Equity: (1) Return on equity shall be computed in rupee terms, on the
equity base determined in accordance with Regulation 18 of these regulations.

(2) Return on equity shall be computed at the base rate of 15.50% for thermal generating
station, transmission system including communication system and run-of-river hydro
generating station, and at the base rate of 16.50% for the storage type hydro generating
stations including pumped storage hydro generating stations and run-of-river generating
station with pondage:

Provided that return on equity in respect of additional capitalization after cut-off date
beyond the original scope, excluding additional capitalization on 7 account of emission
control system, shall be computed at the weighted average rate of interest on actual
loan portfolio of the generating station or the transmission system or in the absence of
actual loan portfolio of the generating station or the transmission system, the weighted
average rate of interest of the generating company or the fransmission licensee, as the
case may be, as a whole shall be consic =~ =~ iling of 14%.
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Provided further that:

i In case of a new project, the rate of return on equity shall be reduced by 1.00%
for such period as may be decided by the Commission, if the generating station
or transmission system is found to be declared under commercial operation
without commissioning of any of the Restricted Governor Mode Operation
(RGMQ) or Free Governor Mode Operation (FGMOQO), data telemetry,
communication system up to load dispatch centre or protection system based on
the report submitted by the respective RLDC;

ii. in case of existing generating station, as and when any of the requirements under
(i) above of this Regulation are found lacking based on the report submitted by
the concerned RLDC, rate of return on equity shall be reduced by 1.00% for the
period for which the deficiency continues;

iii. in case of a thermal generating station, with effect from 1.4.2020:

a) rate of return on equity shall be reduced by 0.25% in case of failure to achieve
the ramp rate of 1% per minute;

b) an additional rate of return on equity of 0.25% shall be allowed for every
incremental ramp rate of 1% per minute achieved over and above the ramp rate
of 1% per minute, subject to ceiling of additional rate of return on equity of 1.00%:

Provided that the detailed guidelines in this regard shall be issued by National Load
Dispatch Centre by 30.6.2019.

(3) The return on equity in respect of additional capitalization on account of emission
control system shall be computed at the base rate of one year marginal cost of lending
rate (MCLR) of the State Bank of India as on 1st April of the year in which the date of
operation (ODe) occurs plus 350 basis point, subject to ceiling of 14%,”

“31. Tax on Return on Equity. (1) The base rate of return on equity as allowed by the
Commission under Regulation 30 of these regulations shall be grossed up with the
effective tax rate of the respective financial year. For this purpose, the effective tax rate
shall be considered on the basis of actual tax paid in respect of the financial year in line
with the provisions of the relevant Finance Acts by the concerned generating company
or the transmission licensee, as the case may be.

The actual tax paid on income from other businesses including deferred tax liability (i.e.
income from business other than business of generation or transmission, as the case
may be) shall be excluded for the calculation of effective tax rate.

(2) Rate of return on equity shall be rounded off to three decimal places and shall be
computed as per the formula given below:

Rate of pre-tax return on equity = Base rate / (1-t)

Where ‘t” is the effective tax rate in accordance with clause (1) of this Regulation and
shall be calculated at the beginning of every financial year based on the estimated profit
and tax to be paid estimated in line with the provisions of the relevant Finance Act
applicable for that financial year to the company on pro-rata basis by excluding the
income of non-generation or non-transmission business, as the case may be, and the
corresponding tax thereon. In case of generating company or transmission licensee
paying Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT), “t” shall be considered as MAT rate including
surcharge and cess.
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lllustration-
(i) In case of a generating company or a transmission licensee paying Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT) @ 21.55% including surcharge and cess:

Rate of return on equity = 15.50/(1-0.2155) = 19.758%

(i) In case of a generating company or a transmission licensee paying normal corporate
tax including surcharge and cess:

(a) Estimated Gross Income from generation or transmission business for FY 2019-20
is Rs 1,000 crore

(b) Estimated Advance Tax for the year on above is Rs 240 crore;

(c) Effective Tax Rate for the year 2019-20 = Rs 240 Crore/Rs 1000 Crore =24%;

(d) Rate of return on equity = 15.50/ (1-0.24) = 20.395%.

(3) The generating company or the transmission licensee, as the case may be, shall true
up the grossed-up rate of return on equily at the end of every financial year based on
actual tax paid together with any additional tax demand including interest thereon, duly
adjusted for any refund of tax including interest received from the income tax authorities
pertaining to the tariff period 2019-24 on actual gross income of any financial year.
However, penalty, if any, arising on account of delay in deposit or short deposit of tax
amount shall not be claimed by the generating company or the transmission licensee,
as the case may be. Any under-recovery or over-recovery of grossed up rate on return
on equity after truing up, shall be recovered or refunded to beneficiaries or the long term
customers, as the case may be, on year to year basis.”

The Petitioner has submitted that the MAT rate is applicable to the Petitioner's

company. Accordingly, the MAT rate applicable in 2019-20 has been considered for the

purpose of RoE, which will be trued-up with the actual tax rate in accordance with

Regulation 31(3) of the 2019 Tariff Regulations. RoE allowed for the transmission

assets under Stage-ll is as follows:

56
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(T in lakh)
Part-A of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Return on Equity
A | Opening Equity 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66
B | Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C | Closing Equity (A+B) 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66
D | Average Equity (A+C)/2 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66 | 30184.66
E | Return on Equity (Base Rate) (in %) 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50
F | MAT Rate for respective year (in %) 17.472 17.472 17.472 17.472 17472
G | Rate of Return on Equity (in %) 18.782 18.782 18.782 18.782 18.782
H | Return on Equity (D*G) 5660.28 | 5669.28 | 5669.28 | 5669.28 | 5669.28
(¥inlakh)
Part-B of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Return on Equity
A | Opening Equity 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58
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Part-B of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
B | Additions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C | Closing Equity (A+B) 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58
D | Average Equity (A+C)/2 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58 | 8649.58
E | Return on Equity (Base Rate) (in %) 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50 15.50
F | MAT Rate for respective year (in % 17.472 17.472 17.472 17.472 17.472
G | Rate of Return on Equity (in %) 18.782 18.782 18.782 18.782 18.782
H | Return on Equity (D*G) 1624.56 | 1624.56 1624.56 | 1624.56 | 1624.56
Operation & Maintenance Expenses (“O&M Expenses”)
40. The O&M Expenses claimed by the Petitioner is as follows:
__(Rinlakh)
Element 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
400 kV D/C (quad moose conductor) 683.76 926.19 992.80 636.63 646.33

transmission line from Mahan TPP to
Sipat Pooling Station (line length:
336.50 km)

400 kV Line bays at Mahan (2

numbers)

400 kV Line bays at Sipat (2

numbers)

400 kV bays of 80 MVAR bus reactor

at Mahan (1 number)

41.  The Regulation 35(3)(a) of the 2019 Tariff Regulations provides as follows:

“35. Operation and Maintenance Expenses:

(3) Transmission system: (a) The following normative operation and maintenance
expenses shall be admissible for the transmission system:

A

‘Order in Petition N0.24/TT/2023

Particulars 2019- |2020- (2021- |2022- | 2023-
20 21 22 23 24
Norms for sub-station Bays (T Lakh per bay)
765 kV 45.01 | 46.60 | 48.23 | 49.93| 51.68
400 kv 32.15 | 33.28 | 34.45| 35.66 | 36.91
220 kV 22.51 123.30)24.12]24.96| 25.84
132 kV and below 16.08 | 16.64 | 17.23| 17.83| 1846
Norms for Transformers (¥ Lakh per MVA
765 kV 0.491 1 0.508 | 0.526 1 0.545| 0.564
400 kv 0.358 |0.371[0.384(0398| 0411
220 kv 0245 |0254)|0.263|0272| 0282
132 kV and below 0.245 | 0.254)0.263| 0.272| 0.282
Norms for AC and HVDC lines (% Lakh per km)
Single Circuit (Bundled Conductor with
six or more sub-conductors) 0.88110.912)10.944 0977 | 1.011
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Particulars 2019- |2020- |2021- |2022- | 2023-
u 20 21 22 | 23 24

Single Circuit (Bundled conductor with

four sub-conductors) 0.755|0.781 | 0.809 } 0.837 | 0.867

Single Circuit (Twin & Triple

Conductor) 0.503 | 0.521 | 0.539 | 0.558 | 0.578
Single Circuit (Single Conductor) 0.252 | 0.260 | 0.270 1 0.279 | 0.289
Double Circuit (Bundled conductor 1322 1368 | 1416 | 1.466 | 1.517

with four or more sub-conductors)
Double Circuit (Twin & Triple
Conductor) 0.88110.912 1 0.944 | 0.977 | 1.011
Double Circuit (Single Conductor) 0.377 | 0.391 | 0.404 | 0.419 | 0.433
Mutlti Circuit (Bundled Conductor with

four or more sub-conductor) 2.319 1 2.401 | 2485 | 2.572 | 2.662
Muilti Circuit (Twin & Triple
Conductor)

Norms for HVDC stations

HVDC Back-to-Back stations (Rs Lakh
per 500 MW) (Except Gazuwaka BTB)
Gazuwaka HVDC Back-to-Back station
(Z Lakh per 500 MW)

500 kV Rihand-Dadri HVDC bipole
scheme (Rs Lakh) (1500 MW)

1500 kV Talcher- Kolar HVDC bipole
scheme (Rs Lakh) (2000 MW)

+500 kV Bhiwadi-Balia HVDC bipole
scheme (Rs Lakh) (2500 MW)

+800 kV, Bishwanath-Agra HVDC
bipole scheme (Rs Lakh) (3000 MW)

1.544 | 1.598 | 1.654 | 1.713 | 1.773

834 | 864 | 894 | 925 958

1,666 | 1,725| 1,785 | 1,848 | 1,913

2,252 | 2,331 | 2,413 | 2,498 | 2,586

2,468 | 2,555 | 2,645 2,738 | 2,834

1,696 | 1,756 | 1,817 | 1,881 | 1,947

2,563 | 2,653 | 2,746 | 2,842 | 2,942

Provided that the O&M expenses for the GIS bays shall be allowed as worked
out by multiplying 0.70 of the O&M expenses of the normative O&M expenses
for bays;

Provided further that:

(i) the operation and maintenance expenses for new HVDC bi-pole
schemes commissioned after 1.4.2019 for a particular year shall be allowed pro-
rata on the basis of normative rate of operation and maintenance expenses of
similar HVDC bi-pole scheme for the corresponding year of the tariff period;

(i) the O&M expenses norms for HVDC bi-pole line shall be considered as
Double Circuit quad AC line;

(iii) the O&M expenses of ¥500 kV Mundra-Mohindergarh HVDC bipole
scheme (2500 MW) shall be allowed as worked out by multiplying 0.80 of the
normative O&M expenses for +500 kV Talchar-Kolar HVDC bi-pole scheme
(2000 MW);

(iv) the O&M expenses of 800 kV Champa-Kurukshetra HVDC bi-pole
scheme (3000 MW) shall be on the basis of the normative O&M expenses for
1800 kV, Bishwanath-Agra HVDC bi-pole scheme;

(v) the O&M expenses of +800 kV, Alipurduar-Agra HVDC bi-pole scheme
(3000 MW) shall be allowed as worked out by multiplving 0.80 of the normative
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42.

O&M expenses for +800 kV, Bishwanath-Agra HVDC bi-pole scheme; and

(vi) the O&M expenses of Static Synchronous Compensator and Static Var
Compensator shall be worked at 1.5% of original project cost as on commercial
operation which shall be escalated at the rate of 3.51% to work out the O&M
expenses during the tariff period. The O&M expenses of Static Synchronous
Compensator and Static Var Compensator, if required, may be reviewed after
three years.

(b) The total allowable operation and maintenance expenses for the transmission
system shall be calculated by multiplying the number of sub-station bays,
transformer capacity of the transformer (in MVA) and km of line length with the
applicable norms for the operation and maintenance expenses per bay, per MVA
and per km respectively.

(c) The Security Expenses and Capital Spares for transmission system shall be
allowed separately after prudence check:

Provided that the transmission licensee shall submit the assessment of the
Security requirement and estimated security expenses, the details of year-wise
actual capital spares consumed at the time of truing up with appropriate
Justification.”

We have considered the submissions of the Petitioner. O&M Expenses have

been worked out as per the norms in the 2019 Tariff Regulations and the same are as

59

follows:
(¥ in lakh)
Element 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
336.50 km Mahan-Sipat Double 338.09 349.85 362.13 374.91 387.96
circuit (Bundled conductor with
four or more sub-conductors)
O&M Expenses allowed to the
extent of 76%
3 number of 400 kV Reactor 96.45 99.84 103.35 106.98 110.73
bays
4 number of line bays 128.6 133.12 137.8 142.64 147.64
Total O&M Expenses 563.14 582.81 603.28 624.53 646.33
43. O&M Expenses of 24% payable by EPMPL is as follows:
(¥ in lakh)
Element 2019-20 | 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
336.50 km Mahan-Sipat Double 106.76 110.48 114.36 118.39 122.51

circuit (Bundled conductor with four
or more sub-conductors) O&M
Expenses allowed to the extent of
24% to be borne by EPMPL.

44,
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The Petitioner has claimed the insurance premium under security expenses in
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Details 201920 | 202021 | 202122 | 202223 | _2023-24
Insurance 121 343 390 12 :
remium

45.

We have considered the submissions of the Petitioner. The 2019 Tariff

Regulations do not provide for reimbursement for insurance premiums. Accordingly, the

Petitioner’s claim of insurance premium is disallowed.

Interest on Working Capital

46.

Regulation 34(1)(c), Regulation 34(3), Regulation 34(4) and Regulation 3(7) of

the 2019 Tariff Regulations provide as follows:

47.

“34. Interest on Working Capital: (1) The working capital shall cover:

(c) For Hydro Generating Station (including Pumped Storage Hydro Generating Station)
and Transmission System:

(i) Receivables equivalent to 45 days of annual fixed cost;

(i) Maintenance spares @ 15% of operation and maintenance expenses including
security expenses; and

(iii) Operation and maintenance expenses, including security expenses for one month.”

“(3) Rate of interest on working capital shall be on normative basis and shall be
considered as the bank rate as on 1.4.2019 or as on 1st Apni of the year during the tanff
period 2019-24 in which the generating station or a unit thereof or the transmission
system including communication system or element thereof, as the case may be, is
declared under commercial operation, whichever is later:

Provided that in case of truing-up, the rate of interest on working capital shall be
considered at bank rate as on 1st April of each of the financial year during the tariff
period 2019-24.”

“(4) Interest on working capital shall be payable on normative basis notwithstanding that
the generating company or the transmission licensee has not taken loan for working
capital from any outside agency.”

“3. Definitions ...

(7) ‘Bank Rate’ means the one-year marginal cost of lending rate (MCLR) of the State

Bank of India issued from time to time plus 350 basis points;”

The Petitioner has submitted that it has computed IWC for the 2019-24 period as

provided under Regulation 34(1)(c) of the 2019 Tariff Regulations. The Petitioner has

submitted that it has considered the rate of IWC as 12.05% as provided under
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Regulation 34(3) of the 2019 Tariff Regulations. The IWC is worked out in accordance

with Regulation 34 of the 2019 Tariff Regulations. The Rate of Interest (Rol) considered

is 12.05% (SBI 1-year MCLR applicable as on 1.4.2019 of 8.55% plus 350 basis points)

for 2019-20, 11.25% (SBI 1-year MCLR applicable as on 1.4.2020 of 7.75% plus 350

basis points) for 2020-21 and from 2021-22 onwards has been considered as 10.50%

(SBI 1-year MCLR applicable as on 1.4.2020 of 7.00% plus 350 basis points). The

components of the working capital and interest thereon allowed are as follows:

(T in lakh)
Part-A of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Interest on Working Capital
Working Capital for O&M 46.93 48.57 50.27 52.04 53.86
Al Expenses
(O&M Expenses for 1 month)
Working Capital for Maintenance 84.47 87.42 90.49 93.68 96.95
B| Spares
(15% of O&M Expenses)
Working Capital for Receivables 3028.20 2923.15 2810.18 2700.18 | 2583.07
C| (Equivalent to 45 days of annual
transmission charges)
D| Total Working Capital 3159.60 3059.14 2950.95 284590 | 2733.88
E| Rate of Interest (in %) 12.05 11.25 10.50 10.50 10.50
F| Interest on Working Capital 380.73 344.15 309.85 298.82 287.06
(T in lakh)
Part-B of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Interest on Working Capital
Working Capital for O&M Expenses
A (O&M Expenses for 1 month) 8.90 9.21 9.53 9.87 10.21
Working Capital for Maintenance
B | Spares 16.01 16.57 17.15 17.76 18.38
{15% of O&M Expenses)
Working Capital for Receivables
C (Equnva_lept to 45 days of annual 860.74 830.39 797 79 766.00 732 19
transmission charges)
D | Total Working Capital 885.65 856.17 824.47 793.62 760.78
E | Rate of Interest (in %) 12.05 11.25 10.50 10.50 10.50
F | Interest on Working Capital 106.72 96.32 86.57 83.33 79.88
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Annual Fixed Charges for the 2019-24 Tariff Period

62

48. The transmission charges allowed for the 2019-24 tariff period are as follows:
(¥ in lakh)
Part-A of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Annuai Transmission Charges

A | Depreciation 6224.02 ©6224.02 6224.02 | 6224.02 ©6224.02
B | Interest on Loan 11792.22 10889.73 | 9987.25| 9084.77 8182.28
C | Return on Equity 5669.28 5669.28 5669.28 | 5669.28 5669.28
D | O&M Expenses 563.14 582.81 603.28 | 624.53 646.33
E | Interest on Working Capital 380.73 344.15 309.85 298.82 287.06
F | Total (A+B+C+D+E) 24629.39 23709.99 | 22793.68 | 21901.42 | 21008.97

(T in lakh)

Part-B of the tariff
Particulars 2019-20 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Annual Transmission Charges

A | Depreciation 1783.53 1783.53 | 1783.53 | 1783.53 | 1783.53

B | Interest on Loan 337913 | 3120.52 | 2861.91| 2603.29 | 2344.68

C | Return on Equity 1624.56 1624.56 1624.56 1624.56 1624.56

D | O&M Expenses 106.76 | 11048 | 11436 | 118.39| 122.51

E | Interest on Working Capital 106.72 96.32 86.57 83.33 79.88

F | Total (A+B+C+D+E) 7000.70 | 6735.41 647093 | 6213.11 5955.16

49. It is observed that the Petitioner has prayed that EPMPL/MEL may be directed

to provide a Letter of Credit (LC) for the portion of the tariff to be borne by EPMPL/MEL

for the period from September 2018 till October 2021. The Petitioner has also prayed,

without prejudice to the Petitioner’s case in Appeal No. 71/2023 before the Appellate

Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL), to direct that MEL’s portion of the tariff be paid out of

the PoC pool in the event that MEL succeeds in Appeal No. 71/2023.

50.

In this regard, MEL has made the following submissions:

a) MEL filed Appeal No. 71/2023 against the Commission’s order dated

14.3.2022 in Petition No.145/TT/2018, and APTEL vide interim order dated

24.1.2023 in IA No. 1927 of 2022 has stayed the payment towards invoices

raised by CTUIL for the period from September 2018 till October 2021.

However, MEL was directed to pay the transmission charges from

"Order in Petition No.24/TT/2023
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A
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1.11.2021. Accordingly, MEL is paying the charges. As the matter is sub-
judice before the APTEL, EPTCL cannot seek for opening of LC, which has
not been allowed by the APTEL.

b) MEL has relinquished the LTA, and it is neither an LTA nor MTOA customer,
and MEL is not required to open LC.

c) The tariff for the 2019-24 tariff period may be granted at the earliest as MEL

is paying a higher tariff determined for the 2018-19 tariff period in 2019-24.

response, the Petitioner has submitted as follows:

a. The users of transmission services of the inter-State transmission licensees
are expected to provide payment security mechanisms by way of LC.
Accordingly, the prayer of EPTCL is as per law and not against the interim order

passed by the APTEL.

b. The capital cost recovery by way of transmission charges cannot be
compared to open access charges and they are different. Any surrender or
relinquishment of an open access capacity by MEL will not affect its liability to
pay the transmission charges to EPTCL. The payment security demanded by
EPTCL is to secure the recovery of its transmission tariff and not to secure the

payment of long-term or medium-term open access charges.

c. Opening and maintaining of LC is a statutory requirement. As per Rule 6 of
the Electricity (Late payment surcharge & Related Matters) Rules, 2022
transmission users and distribution licensees have to maintain unconditional,

irrevocable and adequate payment security mechanisms.
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d. Itis wrong to suggest that MEL is being asked to pay a higher amount of tariff
for the 2019-24 tariff period since the billing has to continue on the basis of the

tariff determined for the 2018-19 tariff period as per the tariff regulations.

52. We have considered the above contentions of the Petitioner and MEL and have
perused the record. The Petitioner has sought directions to MEL to open LC for the
portion of the tariff to be borne by EPMPL/MEL for the period from September 2018 till
October 2021. The Petitioner has also requested to direct that MEL's portion of the tariff
be paid out of the PoC pool in the event that MEL succeeds in Appeal No. 71/2023. In
response, MEL has contended that EPMPL has relinquished its LTA and that it is neither
an LTA nor a MTOA customer and, therefore, it is not required to open any LC. We
observe that MEL has filed Appeal No.71 of 2023 before the APTEL against the
Commission’s order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018 directing MEL to bear
the transmission charges for 24% of the capital cost of the transmission assets for the
period from September 2018 to October 2021 and APTEL in its interim order dated
24.1.2023 in 1.A N0.1927 of 2022 in Appeal No.71 of 2023 granted an interim stay of
the invoices raised by CTUIL on MEL for the period from September 2018 till October
2021. However, APTEL directed MEL to pay the transmission charges for the period
from 1.1.2021 till the disposal of the Appeal filed by MEL. The relevant portion of the

order dated 24.1.2023 is extracted hereunder:

“17. We are satisfied that both the ingredients, apart from a prima facie case being made
out, ie the test of balance of convenience and irreparable injury, are satisfied in the
present case. The IA is partly allowed, and there shall be interim stay of payment of the
invoices raised by CTUIL for the period from September, 2018 till October, 2021. The
Appellant shall, however, pay the dues for the period from 01.11.2021 till date, and
thereafter till the main appeal is finally disposed of, subject, of course, to the result of the
main appeal.”

53. APTEL has given an interim stay with regard to the transmission charges in

respect of 24% of the capital cost of the transmission assets for the period from
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September 2018 to October 2021 till the disposal of the main Appeal. APTEL is already
seized of this issue. Therefore, we do not deem it fit for us to intervene in this issue.
Accordingly, the Petitioner’s prayer for directions to MEL to open an LC for the portion
of transmission charges to be borne by EPMPL/ MEL for the period from September

2018 to October 2021 is disallowed.

54. We are of the view that the Petitioner's prayer for issuing directions that the
MEL’s portion of the tariff to be paid from the common pool in the event that MEL
succeeds in Appeal No.71 of 2023 is premature and does not deserve our intervention

at this stage. Accordingly, this prayer of the Petitioner is also disallowed.

55. MEL has contended that it has been paying higher transmission charges for the
2019-24 tariff period on the basis of the Commission’s order dated 14.3.2022 for the
transmission assets for the period from its COD to 31.3.2019. Therefore, a provisional
tariff may be granted for the transmission assets for the 2019-24 tariff period so that it
is not compelled to pay higher transmission charges. As we are approving the
transmission charges for the transmission assets under Stage-Il of the transmission
system for the 2019-24 tariff period, MEL's prayer for the grant of the provisional tariff

has become infructuous.

Sharing of Transmission Charges

56.  The tariff approved in this order for 76% of the capital cost of the transmission
assets under the Stage-Il of the transmission system for the period from 1.4.2019 to
1.11.2020 shall be governed by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing
of Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2010. Thereafter, the billing,
collection, and disbursement of transmission charges shall be governed by the
provisions of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Transmission
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Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2020. The tariff corresponding to the remaining 24%
of capital cost (including IDC, FC and IEDC) of the transmission assets for the period
from the COD to 31.10.2021 shall be as per the decision of APTEL in Appeal No.71 of
2023 and the transmission charges for the transmission assets under the Stage-Ii of the
transmission system approved in this order for the period from 1.11.2021 shall be billed
bilaterally on EPMPL/MEL as held by the Commission in-order dated 14.3.2022 in
Petition No.145/TT/2018 and in accordance with the APTEL’s order dated 24.1.2023 in

IA No.1927 of 2022.

57. To summarise:

The Annual Fixed Charges allowed for the transmission assets for the 2019- 24 tariff

period in the instant order are as follows:

~__(%inlakh)

Annual Fixed Cost (Part-A of the tariff)

Particulars 2019-20 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24

24629.39 | 23709.990 | 22793.68 | 21901.42 | 21008.97

Annual Transmission Charges

(Z in lakh)

Annual Fixed Cost (Part-B of the tariff)

. 2019-20 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24
Particulars

7000.70 6735.41 6470.93 6213.11 5955.16

Annual Transmission Charges

58. The Annexure to this order form part of the order.

59.  This order disposes of Petition No. 24/TT/2023 in terms of the above discussions

and findings.
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
(P. K. Singh) (Arun Goyal) (I. S. Jha) (Jishnu Barua)
Member Member Member Chairperson
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Annexure-2

CENTRAL ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION

NEW DELHI

Petition No. 187/MP/2023

Coram:

Shri Jishnu Barua, Chairperson
Shri 1.S. Jha, Member

Shri Arun Goyal, Member

Shri P.K. Singh, Member

Date of Order: 23" November, 2023

In the matter of

Petition under Sections 79(1)(c), (e) and (k) read with 17(3) and 18 of the Electricity
Act, 2003 seeking amendment and transfer of Petitioner’s Inter-State Transmission

Licence.

And
In the matter of

Essar Power Transmission Company Limited,
Essar House, 11, KK Marg,
Mahalaxmi, Mumbai-400034

Vs.
1. Central Transmission Utility of India Limited,
Plot No. 2, Near IFFCO Chowk Metro Station,
Sector 29, Gurugram-122 001, Haryana

2. Adani Transmission Limited,

Adani Corporate House,

Shantigram, Near Vaishnodevi Circle,
S G Highway, Khodiyar,
Ahmedabad-382421, Gujarat

3. Essar Transco Limited,
Essar House, 11, KK Marg,
Mahalaxmi, Mumbai 400034

4. Essar Power Limited
27th KM, Surat Hazira Road
Hazira Surat-394270, Gujarat

The following were present:

Petitioners

.. Respondents
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Ms. Swapna Seshadri, Advocate, EPTCL
Shri Aman Nair, Advocate, EPTCL

Ms. Shivani Verma, Advocate, EPTCL
Ms. Kritika Khanna, Advocate, EPTCL
Shri Hemant Singh, Advocate, ATL

Shri Lakshyaijit Singh, Advocate, ATL
Ms. Lavanya Panwar, Advocate, ATL
Shri Shaurya Kumar, Advocate, ATL

Shri Siddharth Sharma, CTUIL

Shri R. Sricharan, CTUIL

ORDER

The Petitioner, Essar Power Transmission Company Limited, has filed the
present Petition under Sections 79(1)(c), (e) and (k) read with 17(3) and 18 of the
Electricity Act, 2003 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’) read with the Transmission
Service Agreement dated 23.10.2019 seeking, inter-alia, an amendment to the inter-
State transmission licence bearing No.4/Transmission/CERC dated 8.4.2008 granted
to the Petitioner by the Commission vide its order dated 10.4.2008 in Petition No. 157
of 2007. The Petitioner is seeking to transfer its Stage-1l Assets to Respondent No.3,
Essar Transco Limited (ETL) through a scheme of demerger to be approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal, Indore, along with the corresponding licence.
Learned senior counsel submitted that subsequent to the above, the Petitioner will
transfer its entire equity shareholding in ETL to Respondent No.2, Adani Transmission

Limited, or its subsidiary. The Petitioner has made the following prayers:

“(a) Amend the ISTS License (bearing No.4/Transmission/CERC) dated
08/04/2008 and permit transfer of Stage-Il Assets (set out in ANNEXURE
B) in order that the license corresponding to the said assets stand
transferred and vested in the Respondent No. 3 Essar Transco Limited in
terms of inter alia S. 17 of the Electricity Act, 2003 to take effect as on the
appointed date of the scheme of demerger, i.e., 01/04/2023;

(b) Amend and declare that ISTS License No.4/Transmission/CERC dated
08/04/2008 shall continue to remain operative and effective in relation to the
corresponding Stage-/ Assets (set out in ANNEXURE C) in the name of the
Petitioner; and/or
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(c) Pass any other orders as may be deemed necessary in the interest of
justice.”

Background

2. The Commission, vide its order dated 10.4.2008 in Petition No. 157 of 2007
granted an inter-State transmission licence to the Petitioner company consisting of the

following assets:

Transmission lines

S. No. Transmission lines Approximately
Line length (kms)
(i) 400 kV D/C (triple conductor) transmission line 315
from Mahan to Sipat Pooling sub-station
(i) LILO of existing 400 kV S/C Vindyachal-Korba 20
transmission line of Powergrid at Mahan.
(iii) 400 kV D/C (twin conductor) transmission line 97
from Gandhar NTPC switchyard to Hazira

A. Sub-stations:

(i) 3X500 MVA 400/220 kV sub-station at Hazira

(i) 2X50 MVAR line reactors at Sipat pooling sub-station

iii 2X50 MVAR line reactors at Mahan

(iv) 1X80 MVAR, 420 kV switchable bus reactor at Mahan TPS along
with its associated 400 kV bay

(V) 2 Nos. 400 kV line bays at Sipat pooling sub-station

(vi) 2 Nos. 4000 kV line bays at Gandhar (NTPC) switchyard

(vii) 4 Nos. 400 kV line bays at Mahan TPS

3. Subsequently, the transmission licence granted to the Petitioner company was
amended vide order dated 15.9.2009 and accordingly, modified the configuration from
Triple conductor to Quad Moose conductor for the 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat

transmission line.

4. The assets covered in the transmission licence were put into commercial
operation by the Petitioner in two stages i.e., Stage-l (including LILO) and Stage-Il as

under:
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Transmission Lines

Length (in km)

400 kV D/C (twin conductor) transmission line
from Gandhar (NTPC) switchyard to Hazira

104.6

400/220 kV GIS Sub-station at Hazira

Number of bays

500 MVA Transformers

3

(Only 2 have been
installed and
commissioned)

220 kV Bays at Hazira 2
400 kV Sub-station and line bays (GIS) at S5*
Hazira (including tie bays)

4 | 400 kV line bays (AlS) at Gandhar** 2

*2 Line Bays, 2 ICTs Bays & 1 Bus coupler and Metering Bay

**Ownership of these bays lies with NTPC, Gandhar

LILO

Transmission Lines

Length (in km)

LILO of 400 kV $S/C Vidhyachal-Korba
transmission line of Powergrid at Mahan

224

Line Bays

Units (in Number)

400 kV LILO Bays at Mahan Switchyard

2

Stage-ll Assets

Transmission Lines

Length (in km)

400 kV (Quad Moose Conductor) D/C
transmission line from Mahan Thermal Power
plant to Sipat Pooling Sub-station (Presently at
Bharari, Bilaspur)

336.50

Line Bays

Units (in Number)

1 1400 kV line bays at Mahan and Sipat 4
lll__ | Reactors Units (in Number)
1 ] 50 MVAR integrated line reactor at Sipat Pooling 2
Sub-Station
2 | 50 MVAR switchable line reactor at Mahan TPP 2
along with associated bays
3 | 80 MVAR switchable bus reactor at Mahan TPP 1

along with associated bays
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Submissions of the Petitioner

5.

The Petitioner, has mainly submitted as under:

(a) The Petitioner has entered into a definitive agreement with Adani

Transmission Limited (ATL) for the sale and transfer of the Stage-Il assets,

subject to completion of corporate, lender and regulatory approvals.

(b) The Stage-ll Assets will be transferred to Essar Transco Limited (ETL)
through a scheme of demerger (with effect from the appointed date i.e. 1.4.2023)
to be approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench, along with

its corresponding licence.

(c) Post-transfer of Stage-Il Assets along with its corresponding licence to
ETL and post carving out of LILO, the Petitioner will continue to own and operate
the Stage-l Assets wunder its present ISTS licence. Licence
No.4/Transmission/CERC dated 8.4.2008 may be amended to this limited extent
in order to enable the Petitioner to continue to operate Stage-| Assets. The limited
amendment to the existing transmission licence would be to only carve out the
relevant Stage-ll Assets and LILO and in all other respects i.e., the Stage-l
Assets along with its corresponding licence will continue in the hands of the

Petitioner.

(d) The ftransfer/demerger of the Stage-ll Assets along with its
corresponding licence into ETL is sought to be justified inter alia for the following

reasons:

(i) The Stage-l and Stage-Il Assets are geographically distinct and are not

connected to each other.

(i) Both Stage-l and Stage-Il Assets have achieved commercial operation
date, and the Commission determines the tariffs thereof through separate and

distinct tariff orders.

(i) The amendment of the transmission licence and transfer of Stage-I|
Assets along with its corresponding licence contemplated in the instant

Petition would not be detrimental to public interest since the tariff for both
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Stage-l and Stage-Il Assets will not be impacted as a result of the

amendments sought in this Petition.

(iv) The proposed amendment of the transmission licence and transfer of
Stage-ll Assets along with its corresponding licence will result in better
coordination and will ensure that the respective transmission assets are
operated and maintained efficiently and economically, which would further

public interest.

(iv) ETL is a 100% subsidiary of an existing transmission licensee, to which
the Stage-ll Assets, along with its corresponding licence, will be transferred,
possesses the technical know-how and manpower to be able to discharge the
obligations of a licensee. In fact, since the transfer of the Stage-Il Assets from
the Petitioner to ETL is being done (through a scheme of demerger to be duly
approved by the NCLT) on a going concern basis along with the entire
regulated asset base and employees, the management and technical
expertise which were part and parcel of the Petitioner for Stage-Il Assets, will
vest in their entirety in ETL. ETL will ultimately be owned by ATL which

currently has numerous - -bsidiaries with the transmission licensees.

(iv) The scheme of demerger filed by the Petitioner to transfer Stage-Il
Assets into ETL has an appointed date of 1.4.2023. The appointed date of
1.4.2023 is the date on which the demerger scheme shall become effective,
but shall only be operative after the present Petition is approved by this

Commission.

(v) Post order dated 1.6.2022, LILO has been opened but the same
continues to remain as a component of the ISTS licence of the Petitioner. Post
carving out and separation of LILO from the ISTS licence, the Petitioner
proposes to transfer LILO to EPOL or its subsidiary, since no licence is

required any longer for the LILO.

Hearing dated 18.8.2023

6. Notice was issued to the Respondents to file their respective replies. The

Petitioner, vide Record of proceedings for the hearing dated 18.8.2023, was directed
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to comply with the procedures laid down under Section 18(2)(a) of the Electricity Act,

2003 read with Regulations 19 and 7 of the Transmission Licence Regulations. The

Petitioner was further directed to clarify whether the demerger of EPTCL and vesting

of Stage-Il assets in ETL have been approved by NCLT along with documentary proof.

The Commission directed CTUIL to submit its recommendation for an amendment to

the transmission licence of the Petitioner.

7.

In compliance with the direction of the Commission, CTUIL has submitted its

recommendations dated 21.9.2023 vide affidavit dated 25.9.2023.

8.

The Petitioner, vide its affidavit dated 9.10.2023, has submitted as under:

(a) EPTCL has duly complied with Regulations 19 and 7 of the Transmission
Licence Regulations by publishing a notice on 21.8.2023 in the Business

Standard daily newspaper.

(b) On 17.5.2023, EPTCL filed the First Motion Petition (hereinafter referred
to as the “FMP”) bearing No. CA(CAA)/3 (MP) of 2023 in relation to the Scheme
of Arrangement (hereinafter being referred to as the “Scheme”) for the proposed
demerger of the Stage Il Assets to ETL, before the NCLT, seeking directions
for the convening of the meetings of equity shareholders, secured creditors and
unsecured creditors. The NCLT, vide order dated 6.7.2023, allowed EPTCL’s
FMP and inter alia directed EPTCL to convene

a meeting of its equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors

on 16.8.2023 to seek their approval of the Scheme.

(c) Subsequently, the equity shareholders (with consent from 100% equity
shareholders present and voting) and unsecured creditors (with consent from
100% unsecured creditors present and voting) approved the Scheme in their
meetings held on 16.8.2023, respectively. The secured creditors (with consent
from 100% secured creditors present and voting) approved the Scheme during
their meeting held on 23.8.2023.
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(d)  After complying with the NCLT's directions, on 22.9.2023, EPTCL filed
the Second Motion Petition (hereinafter referred to as the “SMP”) before the
NCLT seeking the sanction of the Scheme. The SMP is currently pending
scrutiny before the Registry, NCLT, Indore Bench. The order passed by the
NCLT in the SMP filed by EPTCL for sanctioning the scheme will become
effective once itis filed by EPTCL with the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies.

The appointed date of the demerger scheme is 1.4.2023.

(e) Further, ETL has also filed FMP bearing No. CA(CAA)/6(MP) of 2023
before NCLT, Indore Branch on 9.8.2023 seeking dispensation of meetings of
equity shareholders and creditors (secured and unsecured). The NCLT, vide
order dated 21.9.2023, allowed ETL’'s FMP, inter-alia, holding that the meetings
of the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of ETL
are dispensed with, in light of the consent affidavits provided by 100%

shareholders of ETL and ETL not having any secured or unsecured creditors.

(f) After complying with the directions of the NCLT, Indore, ETL will file its
SMP within seven days from the receipt of a certified copy of the order dated
September 21, 2023, i.e. by October 11, 2023, for seeking the NCLT’s sanction
to the Scheme. Once the SMP is filed by ETL, the NCLT will direct ETL to inter
alia re-issue notices to statutory authorities. The order passed by the NCLT
pursuant to the SMP filed by the ETL for sanctioning the Scheme will become
effective once it is filed by ETL with the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies.

(9) The scheme will become effective once it is also approved by the NCLT

pursuant to the aforementioned applications filed by ETL.

(h)  As regards CTUIL’'s recommendations that the company to which the
transmission assets shall be transferred would have to acquire a transmission
licence, the Stage Il Assets are proposed to be transferred to ETL, which is a
100% subsidiary of an existing licensee (i.e. EPTCL). Being a 100% subsidiary
of an existing transmission licensee, ETL would possess the technical know-
how and manpower to be able to discharge the obligations of a licensee. In fact,
since the transfer of the Stage-Il Assets from the Petitioner to ETL is being
carried out through a demerger to be duly approved by the NCLT, indore Bench,

on a going concern basis along with the entire regulated asset base and
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employees, the management and technical expertise which were part and
parcel of EPTCL for Stage-ll Assets, will vest in the entirety in ETL.
Subsequently, EPTCL shall transfer its entire equity shareholding in ETL to
Adani Transmission Limited or its subsidiary, which owns multiple transmission

licences with extensive experience in owning and operating transmission lines.

(i) CTUIL has not opposed the structure proposed by EPTCL and left the
decision on public interest to this Commission. The present petition meets the
test of public interest as the tariff for both Stage | and Stage 1l Assets will not

be impacted as a result of the amendments sought.

G) With regard to CTUIL’s submission about the pending recovery of the
balance amount of Rs. 15.52 crore from EPTCL in terms of the order dated
14.3.2022 in Petition Nos. 145/TT/2018 and order dated 12.1.2023 in Petition
No 195/MP/2022, both the rights and liabilities of the parties as per the above
orders are presently sub judice before the APTEL in Appeal No. 71 of 2023 and

are subject to the outcome of the Appeal.

(k) In the interregnum, during the process of splitting the licence, EPTCL
undertakes to continue with the O&M of the subject assets. There will be no
interruptions in transmission services, and EPTCL will continue to ensure the

availability of the lines as per the required regulatory standards.

) All the licensed assets would be set up including the 3™ ICT as part of
the Stage -l assets and the present transfer will not affect the installation of the
34 |CT, since the Stage -l Assets including the 3™ ICT will continue to be owned,

operated and maintained by EPTCL post the transfer of Stage-Il assets.

9. Adani Transmission Limited, in its reply dated 10.10.2023, has mainly

submitted as under:

(a) Subsequent to the scheme of demerger to be approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal along with the corresponding licence, the Petitioner will
transfer its entire equity shareholding in ETL to the Adani Energy Solutions
Limited ('AESL’) (formerly known as Adani Transmission Limited), or its
subsidiary. However, such equity transfer is not the subject matter of the

present Petition.
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(b)  AESL has no objection to the instant Petition to the extent of the relief
sought by the Petitioner qua amendment and transfer of its transmission
licence. If this Commission allows the relief to the Petitioner (i.e., transfer of
licence qua Stage-Il) thereby effectuating the amendment of its licence and the
consequent transfer of the same to the other entity (i.e., ETL), then the same
ought to mean that the ETL shall have the transmission licence qua the
transmission assets transferred in lieu of the present Petitioner, and there
should not be an occasion that ETL has to again approach this Commission
seeking for an independent licence. In fact, there have been certain precedents
in the past where a transmission company holding a transmission licence is
acquired by a third company, where, along with such acquisition, the third

company becomes the owner of a such transmission licensee

(c) Thus, when AESL acquires the equity shareholding of EPTCL in ETL,
then the same would mean that AESL (being the owner of ETL) would have the
transmission licence for Stage-ll assets, and would also be liable to be paid
with the transmission tariff/ charges for the said assets by CTUIL from the pool.
In this regard, reference is made to Licence No. 4/Transmission/ CERC dated
08.04.2008 issued by this Commission in favour of EPTCL whereby the
Commission has held that the licence is not transferable, except in accordance
with the provisions of the Act, the rules and the regulations, and the licensee
shall not at any time assign its licence, or transfer its utility, or any part thereof

by sale, lease or otherwise without the prior approval of the Commission.

(d)  Therefore, EPTCL is allowed to assign its licence in case the same is
inter-alia in accordance with the provisions of the Act and takes prior approval
for the same from the Appropriate Commission (being this Commission in the
present case). Section 17(3) of the Act does not bar any licensee from
transferring its transmission licence (or any part thereof) in favour of any other

entity if it seeks approval from the Appropriate Commission.

(e)  Further, Section 17(3) also entails that the licensee (EPTCL) can transfer
its utility or any part of the same, to any other entity subject to the approval of
the Appropriate Commission. As per Section 2(75) of the Act, ‘Utility’ means
either a generating company or a licensee. The Petitioner/ EPTCL is not a

generating company and is a licensee, and thus, the Petitioner can transfer its
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entire utility/ licence or any part thereof to a third party. Thus, it is clear that the

Act allows the transfer of transmission licences from one entity to the other.

(f) With regard to the effect of such transfer of transmission licence,
whenever a licensee seeks a transfer of its transmission licence/ transmission
assets in favour of the other entity, the said transfer of assets comes with the

licence as well.

(9 Under the framework of the Act, for transmission, there could either be
dedicated transmission lines or transmission lines. A dedicated transmission
line is allowed to be constructed, maintained or operated either by a Captive
Generating Plant (Section 9) or a Generating Station (Section 10). No other
entity is allowed to construct such dedicated transmission lines. The
transmission lines, however, are allowed to be constructed, established and
operated by transmission licensees for the purpose of transmission of power.
However, for such construction, establishment and operation of transmission
Licence for the purpose of transmission of electricity, an entity necessarily
needs to have a licence, without which no such transmission activity cannot
take place. In terms of the above, in the present case, the issue does not deal
with dedicated transmission lines; instead, the transfer is taking place from one
transmission licensee (EPTCL) to the other entity (ETL), which would be

engaged in the business of transmission of electricity only.

(h)  Therefore, once the transmission licence is transferred from one entity
to the other, the entity upon whom such transfer is effectuated becomes the
owner of the licence as well as the owner of the transmission assets because
the licenced activity of transmission of electricity is asset-based, unlike the

distribution of electricity for which the licence to distribution is area based.

(i) In other words, in terms of Sections 17 and 18 of the Act, there cannot
be a scenario where a licenced transmission asset is transferred from one entity

to the other without there being a transfer of licence.

() If this Commission allows the Petition of EPTCL, thereby granting the
relief sought thereunder [prayer (a)], then the same would mean that the assets
are transferred to Respondent No. 3 viz., Essar Transco Limited, along with

transmission licence. Subsequently, once AESL acquires the equity
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shareholding of EPTCL in ETL, then the same would mean that AESL (being
the owner of ETL) would have the transmission licence for Stage-Il Assets, and
would also be liable to be paid the transmission tariff/ charges for the said

assets by CTUIL from the pool.

Hearing dated 11.10.2023

10.  During the course of the hearing, the learned counsels and the representative
of the parties argued at length. The parties were permitted to file their respective
written submissions. Written submissions have been filed by the Petitioner and the

CTUIL, and the same have not been repeated herein for the sake of brevity.

11.  Vide Record of Proceedings for the hearing dated 11.10.2023, NLDC/Grid
Controller of India Limited was directed to file its comments/ suggestions on the
amendment/modification of the inter-State transmission licence granted to the
Petitioner with respect to its technical and operational appropriateness. Grid Controller

of India Limited vide its affidavit dated 20.10.2023 has submitted as under:

(a) Stage-l and Stage-Il Assets of the Petitioner are geographically located
in the States of Madhya Pradesh and Gujarat. The demerger is unlikely to
impact the operation of elements. Thus, the change in ownership is not
expected to impact any operational aspects. Since multiple licensees will be
involved for coordination purposes of Stage-ll elements, the site responsibility
schedule as per the provisions of the Central Electricity Authority (Technical
Standards for Connectivity to the Grid) Regulations, 2007 needs to be prepared
after the transfer of licence and shared with NLDC/WRLDC.

(b) In case the licence is amended, the Petitioner is required to comply with
the provisions of Regulation 28 (7) of the Grid Code specifically laying down the
responsibilities of the transmission licensee owning a transmission line but not

the connected sub-station.
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(c) Presently, the Petitioner is a registered ‘user’ of the WRLDC and is sharing

WRLDC fees and charges with respect to its transmission elements. Once the

Stage-ll assets are transferred, ETL will also become a ‘user’ of WRLDC by

virtue of the CERC order/grant of licence. Accordingly, ETL shall register itself

with WRLDC as a ‘user as per the provisions of the Central Electricity

Regulatory Commission (Fees and Charges of Regional Load Despatch Centre

and other related matters) Regulations, 2019 and shall be liable for payment of

the WRLDC fees and charges. In the event ETL takes over the ownership of

the asset, ETL shall be responsible for payment of all pending bills raised to the

Petitioner company.

Analysis and Decision

12. We have considered the submissions made by the Petitioner and the

Respondents.

13. The licence was subsequently amended vide order dated 15.9.2009 to allow

modification of configuration from Triple conductor to Quad Moose conductor for the

400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat transmission line.

14.  The assets covered in the transmission licence were put into commercial

operation by the Petitioner in two stages i.e., Stage-l (including LILO) and Stage-II as

under:

Stage-l Assets

Transmission Lines

Length (in km)

1

400 kV D/C (twin conductor) transmission line
from Gandhar (NTPC) switchyard to Hazira

104.6

400/220 kV GIS Sub-station at Hazira

Number of bays

500 MVA Transformers

3

(Only 2 have been
installed and
commissioned)
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220 kV Bays at Hazira 2
400 kV Sub-station and line bays (GIS) at 5*
Hazira (including tie bays)

4 | 400 kV line bays (AlS) at Gandhar** 2

*2 Line Bays, 2 ICTs Bays & 1 Bus coupler and Metering Bay

**Ownership of these bays are lying with NTPC, Gandhar

LILO

Transmission Lines

Length (in km)

LILO of 400 kV S/C Vidhyachal-Korba
transmission line of Powergrid at Mahan

224

Line Bays

Units (in Number)

400 kV LILO Bays at Mahan Switchyard

2

Stage-ll Assets

Transmission Lines

Length (in km)

1

400 kV (Quad Moose Conductor) D/C
transmission line from Mahan Thermal Power
plant to Sipat Pooling Sub-station (Presently at
Bharari, Bilaspur)

336.50

Line Bays

Units (in Number)

along with associated bays

1 | 400 kV line bays at Mahan and Sipat 4
Il | Reactors Units (in Number)
1 50 MVAR integrated line reactor at Sipat Pooling 2
Sub-Station
2 | 50 MVAR switchable line reactor at Mahan TPP 2
along with associated bays
3 | 80 MVAR switchable bus reactor at Mahan TPP 1

15.

licence to implement the following proposed scheme:

(a)

The Petitioner has filed the present Petition praying for amendment of ISTS

To transfer Stage-ll Assets to Essar Transco Limited (ETL) through a

scheme of demerger (with effect from the appointment date i.e. 1.4.2023) to be

approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Indore bench along with its

corresponding licence.
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(b)  Stage-l Assets shall be retained in the existing licence and shall continue

to be owned and controlled by the Petitioner.

(c) Since LILO has already been disconnected pursuant to the
Commission’s orders culminating in the order dated 1.6.2022, LILO is to be

removed from the Petitioner’'s ISTS Licence.

16.  Subsequently, the Petitioner shall transfer its entire equity shareholding in ETL
to the Respondent No. 2 Adani Energy Solutions Limited (formerly known as Adani
Transmission Limited), (hereinafter referred to as AESL) or its subsidiary. The
Petitioner has entered into a definitive agreement with ATL for the sale and transfer of
the Stage-ll Assets, subject to completion of corporate, lender and regulatory

approvals.

17.  As per the Petitioner, EPTCL shall continue to own and operate the Stage-|

Assets under its present ISTS Licence after carving out Stage Il Assets and LILO.

18.  The Petitioner has justified the transfer/demerger of the Stage-Il Assets along
with its corresponding licence into ETL stating that the Stage-l Assets and Stage-
Assets are geographically distinct and are not connected to each other. Further, both
Stage | as well as, Stage Il have achieved commercial operation and receive tariffs
under separate and distinct tariff orders issued by the Commission. Therefore, the
amendment of the ISTS Licence and transfer of Stage-ll Assets along with its
corresponding licence would not be detrimental to public interest since the tariff for
both Stage-l Assets and Stage-Il Assets will not be impacted as a result of the
amendments sought in this petition. The Petitioner has further contended that the
proposed amendment of the ISTS Licence and transfer of Stage-Il Assets along with

its corresponding licence will result in better coordination and will ensure that the
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respective transmission assets are operated and maintained efficiently and

economically, which would further public interest.

19. Section 18 of the Act deals with the amendment of licence as under

(1) Where in its opinion the public interest so permits, the Appropriate
Commission, may, on the application of the licensee or otherwise, make such
alterations and amendments in the terms and conditions of his licence as it
thinks fit:

Provided that no such alterations or amendments shall be made except with
the consent of the licensee unless such consent has, in the opinion of the
Appropriate Commission, been unreasonably withheld.

(2) Before any alterations or amendments in the licence are made under this
section, the following provisions shall have effect, namely: -

(a) where the licensee has made an application under sub-section
(1) proposing any alteration or modifications in his licence, the licensee
shall publish a notice of such application with such particulars and in
such manner as may be specified;

(d) the Appropriate Commission shall not make any alterations or
modification unless all suggestions or objections received within thirty
days from the date of the first publication of the notice have been
considered.

20. Further, Regulation 19 of the Transmission License Regulations, 2009,

provides as under with regard to the amendment of the licence.

“19. Amendment of Licence

(1) The Commission may of its own motion or on an application made by the
licensee or otherwise make such alterations and amendments in the terms and
conditions of licence if the Commission is of the opinion that the public interest
SO requires:

(2) The procedure specified in requlation 7 shall mutatis mutandis be applicable
in case the licensee makes an application for any alteration of or modification
fo the terms and conditions of the licence.
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(3) Where the licensee has made an application proposing any alteration and
modification of its licence, it shall publish a notice of such application, with the
following particulars, namely:-

(a) name of the applicant;

(b) that an application for alteration and modifications has been made
before the Commission;

(c) details of alteration and modifications proposed in the application,

(d) reasons for seeking such alterations and modifications;

(e) a statement that the application made before the Commission has

been posted on the web site and can also be inspected in the office of
the applicant;

(f) a statement that any suggestion to the proposal for alteration and
modifications made in the application may be submitted to the Secretary
of the Commission within one month of publication of the notice...”

21. Regulation 7 of the Transmission Licence Regulations read with the order dated
22.1.2022 passed in Petition No.1/SM/2022 [whereby the Commission, in the exercise
of ‘Power to Relax’ under Regulation 24 of the Transmission Licence Regulations,
modified/amended Clause (4), Clause (7), Clause (9) and Clause (12) and dispensed
with Clause (10) of Regulation 7] provide for the procedure for grant of transmission

licence as under:

“(1) The application for grant of transmission licence shall be made to the
Commission in Form-lI appended to these regulations and shall be
accompanied by such fees as may be prescribed by the Central Government
from time to time.

(2) In case of the person selected for implementation of the project in
accordance with the guidelines for competitive bidding, the application shall
also contain such additional information, as may be required under these
guidelines.

(3) The application shall be supported by affidavit of the person acquainted with
the facts stated therein.

(4) Before making an application, the applicant shall submit the original
application in electronic form along with annexures and enclosures on the
efiling portal of the Commission so that the same is served electronically on all
the long-term customers of the project registered on the e-filing portal of the
Commission. Also, a copy of the same be served through e-mail on the long
term customers of the project not registered on the e-filing portal of the
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Commission. Further, the applicant shall also post the complete application
along with annexures and enclosures in English and in the vernacular
language, on its website.

(5) The application shall be kept on the website till such time the licence is
issued or the application is rejected by the Commission.

(6) Immediately on making the application, the applicant shall forward a copy
of the application to the Central Transmission Utility.

(7) The applicant shall, within 7 days after filing the application, post the
application on the e-filing portal of the Commission and on its website in Form
Il attached to these regulations in English language and in Vernacular language
of the State or Union Territory where an element of the project or a long-term
customer is situated, inviting comments from the general public.

(8) As far as possible, within 7 days of receipt of the application the Secretariat
of the Commission shall convey defects, if any, if noticed on preliminary scrutiny
of the application for rectification and the defects conveyed shall be rectified by
the applicant in such time as may be indicated in the letter conveying the
defects.

(9) In the notice published on the e-filing portal of the Commission and on the
applicant’s website under clause (7) it shall be indicated that the suggestions
and objections, if any, on the application, may be filed before the Secretary,
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission, Third Floor, Chanderiok Building,
Janpath, New Delhi-110001 (or the address where the office of the Commission
is situated), with a copy to the applicant, by any person, including the long-term
customers, within 30 days of publication of the notice.

(10) The Central Transmission Utility shall send its recommendations, if any, to
the Commission on the proposal made in the application within a period of thirty
days from the date of receipt of application by it: Provided that copy of the
recommendations, if any, made by the Central Transmission Utility shall always
be forwarded to the applicant: Provided further that these recommendations of
the Central Transmission Utility shall not be binding on the Commission.

(11) The applicant may file its comments, duly supported by an affidavit, on the
recommendations made by the Central Transmission Utility and the
suggestions and objections, if any, received in response to the notice posted
on the e-filing portal of the Commission and on the applicant’s website by him,
within 45 days of service of copy of the application on the Central Transmission
Utility or publication of notice posted on the e-filing portal of the Commission
and on the applicant’s website, with an advance copy to the Central
Transmission Utility or the person who has filed the suggestions and objections
on the proposal made in the application, as the case may be.
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(12) The Commission after considering the suggestions and objections
received in response to the public notice published by the applicant and the
recommendations, if any, of the Central Transmission Utility may, propose to
grant transmission licence or for reasons to be recorded in writing, reject the
application.....”

22.  Section 18 (2)(a) of the Act read with Regulations 19 and 7 of the Transmission
Licence Regulations, 2009, requires the transmission licensee to publish a public

notice inviting comments on the proposed amendment in the licence.

23. The Petitioner, vide its affidavit dated 9.10.2023, has placed on record the
relevant copies of the notices wherein notices were published in terms of Regulation
7(7) of the Transmission Licence Regulations. The Petitioner published notices on
21.8.2023 in both English and Hindi in the Business Standard Daily newspaper, having
circulation in New Delhi, Mumbai, Lucknow, Kolkata, Pune, Chandigarh, Bhopal,
Kochi, Hyderabad, Chennai, Bangalore, Bhubaneshwar and Ahmedabad. No

objection has been received in response to the public notice.

24.  The Petitioner vide affidavit dated 9.10.2023 has also submitted that the EPTCL
has filed a Second Motion Petition (SMP) before the NCLT, Indore Bench seeking
sanction of the NCLT for the proposed demerger of Stage Il assets to ETL scheme. A
similar SMP shall be filed by ETL before NCLT seeking sanctioning of the scheme.
The scheme will become effective once the SMPs filed by EPTCL and ETL are

approved by the NCLT. The appointed date of the demerger scheme is 1.4.2023.

25, CTUIL, vide its letter dated 21.9.2023, has made the following

recommendations.

“This is with reference to RoP dated 18.08.2023 in the Petition No.
187/MP/2023 filed before CERC seeking amendment and transfer of the EPTCL’s
inter-state transmission license, wherein CTU has been directed to file its
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recommendations on the sought amendment to the transmission license. In this
regard, the following is submitted:

1. M/s Essar Power Transmission Company Limited (EPTCL) has filed a petition
under Sections79(1)(c), (e) and (k) read with 17(3) and 18 of the Electricity Act,
2003 and Regulation 19 of CERC (Procedure, Terms and Conditions for grant of
Transmission License and other relatedmatters) Regulations, 2009 seeking inter
alia amendment and transfer of partial assets of the EPTCL’s inter-state
transmission license (bearing No. 4/Transmission/CERC) granted by CERC vide order
dated 10.04.2008 in Petition No. 157/2007 (subsequently amended vide CERC order
dated 15.09.2009). The scope of work under the transmission system for which the
transmission license was granted to EPTCL vide the above order is enclosed at
Annexure-l. Copy of CERC order dated 10.04.2008 in Petition No. 157/2007 is
enclosed at Annexure-ll. Copy of CERC order dated 15.09.2009 is enclosed at
Annexure-lI|l.

2. Vide Petition No. 187/MP/2023 filed before CERC, M/s EPTCL has sought to amend
and transfer its transmission license as detailed below:

a. The 400 kV (Quad Moose Conductor) D/c transmission line from Mahan
Thermal Power plant to Sipat Pooling Sub-station (presently at Bharari, Bilaspur)
along with associated bays (4 Nos.), 50MVAr line reactors at Sipat PS (2 Nos.),
50 MVAr line reactors at Mahan TPP (2 Nos.) and 80 MVAr 420kV switchable
bus reactor at Mahan TPS along with its associated 400kV bay shall be
transferred from EPTCL to Essar Transco Limited (ETL) through a scheme of
demerger (with effect from the appointment date, 01/04/2023) to be approved by
the Hon'ble National Company Law Trbunal (NCLT), Indore bench.
Subsequently, the Petitioner has submitted that it shall transfer its entire equity
shareholding in ETL to Adani Transmission Limited (ATL) or its subsidiary.

b. The 400 kV D/c (twin conductor) transmission line from Gandhar (NTPC)
switchyard to Hazira, 3x500MVA, 400/220kV sub-station at Hazira (2 Nos.
SOOMVA, 400/220kV ICTs were installed and commissioned out of 3x500MVA,
400/220kV ICTs) and 400 kV line bays (AIS) at Gandhar (2 Nos.) shall be retained
by M/s EPTCL and shall continue to be owned and controlled by M/s EPTCL.

c. The LILO of 400 kV S/c Vindhyachal — Korba (Twin Moose Conductor)
transmission line of POWERGRID at Mahan Power Plant along with associated
line bays (2 Nos.) at Mahan Switchyard shall be removed from the ISTS license
existing with M/s EPTCL (bearing No.4/Transmission/CERC).

3. In line with directions of CERC vide RoP dated 18.08.2023 in the above
Petition, the recommendations of CTU on the sought splitting of the
transmission assets and transfer of license are as follows:

a. In respect of 2(a) above, the company to which the transmission assets
shall be transferred would have to acquire transmission license for the
corresponding assets. Further, CTU to recover an amount of Rs.301.46 Cr from
EPTCL for its assets mentioned at para 2(a) above which was earlier billed to pool
DICs and the same shall have to be refunded back to pool DICs in line with
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CERC Order dated 14.03.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018. Further, the said
amount is being recovered as per the Hon’ble Commission order dated
12.01.2023 in Petition No. 195/MP/2022. As on 12.09.2023, CTU has
recovered an amount of Rs 285.94 Cr and the balance amount of Rs 156.52 Cr
is to be recovered from EPTCL.

b. During the process of splitting of the transmission assets and transfer of
license, there should not be any discontinuation of O&M i.r.o the subject
fransmission assets.

C. In respect of 2(c) above, the LILO of 400kV S/c Vindhyachal — Korba
(Twin Moose Conductor) transmission line of POWERGRID at Mahan Power
Plant has been disconnected vide CERC order dated 01.06.2022. Accordingly,
the LILO of 400 kV Sic Vindhyachal - Korba (Twin Moose Conductor)
transmission line of POWERGRID at Mahan Power Plant along with associated
line bays (2 Nos.) at Mahan Switchyard may be removed from the existing
transmission license of M/s EPTCL (bearing No.4/Transmission/CERC). Copy
of CERC order dated 01.06.2022 is enclosed at Annexure-IV.

4. Further, the Hon’ble Commission may note that, as per the transmission
license issued to Mls EPTCL vide CERC order dated 10.04.2008, the
Hazira(GIS) Sis was to be established with 3x500MVA, 400/220kV ICTs to
facilitate drawl of 700 MW power (under LTOA) from Mahan TPS of EPMPL to
Essar group'’s steel plant at Hazira in the State of Gujarat. Out of 3x500MVA,
400/220kV ICTs envisaged at Hazira(GIS) Sis, only 2x500MVA 400/220kV
ICTs were commissioned by EPTCL and EPTCL had submitted before CERC
in Petition No. 173/TT/2013 & 111/TT/2015 that they were in the process of
installing the 3 ICT and an undertaking in this regard had been submitted to
CERC. However, M/s EPTCL has not yet taken up installation of 3rd ICT as per
the transmission license granted to them.

5. That in addition to above, it is submitted that the Petitioner had earlier
filed Petition No. 342/MP/2022 befare the Commission seeking transfer of its
present transmission license to its various entities. CTU vide its compliance
affidavit dated 22.03.2023 in Petition No. 342/MP/2022, had submitted its
observations to the Petitioner's proposal, the contents of which are being
summarized below for the sake of brevity and for kind consideration of the
Commission for the purposes of the present application/petition as well: -

a) As per CTU'’s understanding, “amendment” of the license refers to a
“modification” in terms of technical scope of work as illustrated under the
grant of transmission license such as the modification in the configuration,
design, layout, etc. The amendment of thetransmission license under the
extant regulatory framework may not be inclusive of transfer of the assets
of the transmission licensee as provided under Section 18 of the Electricity
Act, 2003.

b) In view of the extant statutory and regulatory scheme and the facts and
circumstances of the case, itis submitted that this Commission may consider
the “public interest’requirement under Section 18 of the Electricity Act,
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2003.

c) The Petitioner has submitted in its Petition about having entered into
certain ‘Definitiveagreements’ and transactions for acquisition of its assets,
which may be considered bythe Commission in terms of the statutory mandate
of Section 17 of the Electricity Act, 2003.

d) Furthermore, it is requested that the Commission may also seek suggestions
of National Load Despatch Centre [NLDC] with respect to the technical and
operational appropriateness of the splitting of the license granted to the
Petitioner.

True copy of CTU’s compliance affidavit dated 22.03.2023 in Petition No.
342/MP/2022 is annexed as Annexure- V to the present license recommendation
for kind reference of the Commission.”

Transfer of assets

26. CTUIL in its recommendation has submitted that “amendment” of the licence
refers to a “modification” in terms of the technical scope of work such as modification
in the configuration, design, layout, etc. and the amendment of the transmission
licence under the extant regulatory framework may not be inclusive of transfer of the

assets of the transmission licensee as provided under Section 18 of the Act.

27. However, Section 17(3) of the Act allows the transfer of utility or a part of the
utility by a licensee with the approval of the Commission by way of sale, lease,

exchange or otherwise. The relevant extract of Section 17 is as under.

“Section 17. (Licensee not to do certain things): ---

(3) No licensee shall at any time assign his licence or transfer his utility, or any
part thereof, by sale, lease, exchange or otherwise without the prior approval
of the Appropriate Commission.”

28. Therefore, the above provisions of the Act allow the licensee to transfer its utility
or a part of the utility by way of sale, lease, exchange or otherwise to any other entity

subject to the approval by the Commission. The same condition was incorporated in
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Para 4 of the licence granted to EPTCL. In the past, the Commission has allowed the

transfer of utility along with the license under Section 17(3) of the Act in various orders.

By order dated 27.1.2021 in Petition No 71/MP/2020, the Commission had allowed the

transfer of utility i.e. Warora Kurnool Transmission Limited (WKTL) from Essel Infra to

Adani Transmission Limited. The relevant extract of the order is as under

29.

“45. Further, the Commission has already considered the change in ownership
by way of transfer of the equity shareholding under Section 17(3) of the Act in its
order dated 7.8.2017 in Petition No.31/MP/2017 (Reliance Infrastructure Limited
v. PGCIL and Ors.). The Commission in the said order permitted transfer of entire
shareholding of Reliance Infrastructure Limited in transmission licensees,
Western Transco Power Limited and Western Transmission (Gujarat) Limited to
Adani Transmission Limited under Section 17(3) of the Act.

46. In view of the above, we are of the view that transfer of 100% shareholding
of Essel Infra in WKTL by the lenders to their nominee ATL is permissible under
Section 17(3) of the Act read with Article 15.3.2 of the TSA and Regulation 12 of
the Transmission Licence Regulations.”

It is also apparent from the text ‘fransfer his utility, or any part thereof used in

Section 17 (3) of the Act that a part of the utility may also be transferred with the

approval of the Commission. Accordingly, there is no restriction on the following

transaction under Section 17(3) of the Act, subject to the approval of this Commission.

(a) Transfer of the following assets to ETL and thereafter to AESL

Stage-ll Assets

| | Transmission Lines Length (in km)
1 (400 kV (Quad Moose Conductor) D/C 336.50
transmission line from Mahan Thermal Power
plant to Sipat Pooling Sub-station (Presently at
Bharari, Bilaspur)

Il | Line Bays Units (in Number)

1 | 400 kV line bays at Mahan and Sipat 4

Il | Reactors Units (in Number)

1 | 50 MVAR integrated line reactor at Sipat Pooling 2
Sub-Station

2 | 50 MVAR switchable line reactor at Mahan TPP 2

along with associated bays
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3 | 80 MVAR switchable bus reactor at Mahan TPP 1
along with associated bays

(b) Removal of following assets from the license granted to EPTCL

| | Transmission Lines Length (in km)

1 LILO of 400 kV S/C Vidhyachal-Korba 22.4
transmission line of Powergrid at Mahan

Il | Line Bays Units (in Number)

1 1400 kV LILO Bays at Mahan Switchyard 2

Amendment of licence

30. Further, the transfer of a part of the utility shall require an amendment of the
transmission licence under Section 18 of the Act by way of carving out a part of the
assets for which the licence was granted by the Commission. In this regard, CTUIL
has requested the Commission to consider the “public interest” requirement under

Section 18 of the Act.

31.  With regard to CTUIL’s submission regarding public interest, the Petitioner, vide
its affidavit dated 14.11.2023, has submitted that the amendment sought by the
Petitioner satisfies the test of public interest since prayers sought in the present
Petition would not affect the tariff for either Stage-| Assets or the Stage-ll Assets. The
Petitioner has further submitted that the Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory
Commission (MERC) by its order dated 28.6.2019 in Case No. 139 of 2017 had
approved a similar structure i.e. the assignment of transmission licence granted to R-
Infra and transfer of assets of the transmission system of Rinfra to Reliance Electric
Generation and Supply Private Limited (REGSL) which was a 100% subsidiary of

Rinfra.

32. Vide affidavit dated 14.11.2023, the Petitioner has also submitted that it is

facing a financial crunch. As per the Petitioner, the financial difficulties would be largely
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its remaining transmission assets.

33. We have considered the submissions made by the Petitioner and the
Respondents. EPTCL is facing a financial crunch, and the transfer of Stage 1l Assets
to ETL and subsequently to Adani Energy Solutions Limited (AESL) would assist it in
better servicing its remaining transmission assets. AESL has been operating inter-
State and intra-State 400 kV to 765 kV transmission lines. AESL is the holding
company of various SPVs that have been granted inter-State and intra-State
transmission licences. AESL is also constructing and operating various transmission
systems under a competitive bidding route. Therefore, in our view, AESL possesses

the necessary qualifications and expertise to carry out the business of transmission.

34. The present transmission system is associated with the Mahan Thermal Power
Plant constructed by the Petitioner’s sister company, namely Essar Power MP Limited
(EPMPL). It is also noted from the proceedings of Review Petition No 27/RP/2022 that
the said Thermal Power Plant has also gone through IBC proceedings initiated by the

lenders against EPMPL and has been acquired by Adani Power Limited.

35. The transmission system is one of the most critical elements of the entire value
chain of power supply in respect of grid security and smooth operation of the power
system. Thus, the operation and maintenance of the transmission system cannot be

compromised in any circumstances.

36. In view of the above, considering the financial difficulties being faced by the
Petitioner, it would be in the public interest to allow the Stage Il Assets to ETL and

subsequently to AESL who is more experienced in the transmission sector and better
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equipped to operate and maintain the transmission assets. It may also be noted that
in the present case, amendment of EPTL'’s existing transmission licence as sought for,
insofar as it relates to Stage Il Assets, is a direct corollary of the transaction proposed
to be undertaken under Section 17(3) of the Act and for such transaction(s) a stringent
public interest is not a prerequisite. In any case, we have already noted that allowing
the transfer of Stage Il Assets to ETL and then ultimately to AESL would be in the
public interest. Further, the Petitioner is also seeking the removal of LILO of 400 kV
S/C Vidhyachal-Korba transmission line of Powergrid at Mahan and associated 400
kV LILO Bays at Mahan Switchyard in terms of order dated 1.6.2022 in IA No 4/I1A/222
filed in Petition No 92/MP/2021. As per the Petitioner, the prayer sought in the Petition
would not affect the tariff of either Stage | Assets or Stage Il Assets. However, it is
noted that the removal of LILO shall also result in a reduction of tariff on Stage |
Assets, which would be in the public interest. Grid India, vide its affidavit dated
20.10.2023 has also opined that the change in ownership is not expected to impact

any operational aspects.

37. In the exercise of our power under Section 18 (1) of the Act and Regulation 19
(1) of the Transmission Licence Regulations, we approve the transfer of Stage I
Assets [as detailed in Para 25 (a) above] to ETL, subject to acquisition of the same by
AESL subsequently, and the removal of LILO [as detailed in Para 29(b) above] from
the licence granted to EPTCL The licence bearing No. 4/Transmission/CERC shall be
split into 4A/Transmission/CERC for Stage | and 4B/Transmission/CERC for Stage I
respectively. The Staff of the Commission is, accordingly, directed to issue two
separate licences in the name of EPTCL and ETL respectively. It is clarified that the
said transaction is allowed subject to the approval of the scheme by NCLT and shall

be implemented prospectively from the date of the two licences. The transmission
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licensees shall comply with the provisions of the Act and the Regulations issued by

the Commission from time to time.

38. For the implementation of the above scheme, the Petitioner is directed to

comply with the following directions of the Commission.

(a) During the process of splitting of the transmission assets and transfer of
licence, there should not be any discontinuation of O&M in respect of the

subject transmission assets.

(b) EPTCL shall execute the remaining ICT Hazira (GIS) sub-station within

six months from the date of this order.

(c) The CTUIL has submitted that it has to recover an amount of Rs.301.46
crore from EPTCL for Stage |l assets which was earlier billed to pool DICs and
the same shall have to be refunded back to pool DICs in line with the
Commission’s order dated 14.3.2022 in Petition No. 145/TT/2018. The said
amount is being recovered by CTUIL as per the Commission’s order dated
12.1.2023 in Petition No. 195/MP/2022. As on 12.9.2023, CTUIL has recovered
an amount of Rs 285.94 crore, and the balance amount of Rs 15.52 crore is to
be recovered from EPTCL. In order to avoid unnecessary litigations, the
Petitioner is directed to have absolute clarity between EPTCL and AESL with
regard to the scope of work and pending litigations. Once the transmission

licence is bifurcated, the liability, if any, shall fall upon the new licensee.

(d) As committed by EPTCL, there shall be no change in the transmission
charges being paid/to be paid by the beneficiaries of EPTCL pursuant to this

process which shall continue to be governed as per the provisions of the TSA.
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(e) Needless to add, after the assets are transferred, both the licensees shall
comply with the provisions of the Act, Rules made by the Government of india,
Ministry of Power and relevant Regulations of the Commission and the
provisions of the Central Electricity Authority including the Central Electricity
Authority (Technical Standards for Connectivity to the Grid) Regulations, 2007,
the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (indian Electricity Grid Code)
Regulations, 2022 and the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Fees
and Charges of Regional Load Despatch Centre and other related matters)

Regulations, 2019 as indicated by Grid India.

39. Let an extract copy of this order be sent to the Central Government in the
Ministry of Power and the Central Electricity Authority in terms of sub-section (7) of

Section 15 of the Electricity Act, 2003 for their information and record.

40. Petition No. 187/MP/2023 is disposed of in terms of the above.

Sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
(P.K. Singh) (Arun Goyal) (1.S. Jha) (Jishnu Barua)
Member Member Member Chairperson

UG T T GUUUILT INU. TOTIVIT JEVED rage £o




























































116

5SS KOTHARI MEHTA
R oL

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To
The Board of Directors
Essar Transco Limited

1. We, S S Kothari Mehta and Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor of Essar Transco
Limited Company Limited herein after referred to as {“the Company”) have examined the
books of accounts and other relevant records, having its registered office at Shop no 2 and 3 at
lalsa Complex, Plot no 175/1, 175/1Kha, 175/5, Village Tali {Waidhan), District Singruali,
Madhxya Pradesh-486886.

2. We have been requested by the management of the Company to review the Split Financial
Statements of Erstwhile Stage-Il of Essar Power Transmission Company Limited {herein after
refer to as Split Financials) prepared as on 31* March 2021 by the Company which comprises
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and statement of Profit and Loss for year ended on
March 31, 2021 along with the notes to the financial statements and the basis of allocation (as
per Annexure-} in which some items are management represented.

3. The split financial statements which is based on audited financial statements of Erstwhile Essar
Power Transmission Company Limited for the Financial Year 2020-21 have been prepared by
the Company’s management in compliance with applicabte regulations notified by Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) for determination of Tariff.

Management's Responsibility for the Statement

4. The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of Company
including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting
records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Return
and applying an appropriate basis of preparation.

5. The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requirements of the Rules and the provisions of the relevant Act applicabie to the Company
and that it provides complete and accurate information as required therein.

6. The Management is also responsible for furnishing the financial information, audited account,
representation and other records contained in the said split financial.

Auditor’s Responsibility

7. Our responsibility, for the purpose of this review report, is limited to reviewing the particulars
contained in the statement on the basis of financial information, audited account,
representation, other records information & explanations and the basis of allocation provided
by the Company.

Plot No. 68. Okhla industrial Area. Phase-lIl New Dathi-110020
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

8. We conducted our examination required to be furnished in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

9. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality control for firms that perform audits and review of historical financial
information, other assurance and related services engagements.

Conclusion

10. Based on the procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanation
given to us by the management of the Company, we have reviewed the split financials which is
based on the audited financial statements of Erstwhile Essar Power Transmission Company
Limited for the financial year 2020-21 prepared by the Company’s management for
determination of Tariff in compliance with applicable regulations natified by Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission ( CERC } which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and
statement of Profit and Loss for year ended on March 31, 2021 along with the notes to the
financial statements and the basis of ailocation {as per Annexure-l} in which some items are
management represented.

Restriction on use

11. Our work was
compliance wit
from, and our r
{or may have h
nor anything sa
of this review r
the Company.

12. This review rep:
and should not
assume any liat
whom this revii
agreed by our

Place: Delhi
Date: 19-11-2024
UDIN: 24095960BKFAKG




Annexure-|

Non-current
asset

Sub-head

Property, piant and
equipment

Basis of Allocati{
Property, plant and equipment considered on
identification basis except Laptops & Desktops which
have been allocated on no of employees considered in
each stage.

Intangible assets

Considered on Identitication basis

Capital work in
progress

Considered on Identification basis

Deferred tax
Assets (Net)

Unabsarbed
depreciation

Unabsorbed Depreciation till 31st March 2018 i.e. upto
the year of capitalization of Stage Il has been
considered in Stage |. Thereafter The unabsorbed
depreciation of the Company has been allocated in the
ratio of Total Assets {excluding deferred tax assets, if
any) as per books of accounts. After commencement of
all the stages, unabsorbed Depreciation has been
utilised on First in First out ( FIFO) method on the basis
of year of accurrence of unabsorbed depreciation.

Provision for Employee
Benefits

itis allocated in manpower cost ratio

Intangible assets

It is allocated in asset ratio

Fair Valuation of
Financiai Assets

It is allocated in the ratio of project cost

Differences in
depreciation in block of
PPE as per tax book &
financial books

It is allocated in asset ratio

it is considered on ldentification basis

2.0ther Advances

Inventory Stores & spares
Trade Receivables Itis allocated in tariff ratio
Cash & Cash
Equivalents (CCE)- Itis allocated in tariff ratio
1. Current accounts
2. Fixed Deposits
Bank balances other
h
. . than CC.E R 1.Margin Deposit is related to Sales Tax Deposit, hence
Financial Asset | 1 Margin Deposits :
©) 2. Deposits in Debt taken in Stage Il
s 2. DSRA is allocated in tariff ratio
Service Reserve
Accounts (DSRA)
- ity D i
Loans- Security Deposit It is considered on Identification basis
& ICD
Other -
1. Interest accrued on | it is allocated in the ratio of project cost
Bank deposit
1. Prepaid expenses are allocated on Identification
Basis.
Other current . 2. Other advances directly identifiable are allocated on
1.Prepaid Expense .
asset actual basis; whereas the common advances related to

borrowings have been allocated in project cost ratio,
advances related to manpower are allocated in
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manpower cost ratio and remaining others in Tariff
Ratio

1. Retained Earnings: Opening Balance of Previous Year
Figures

Res . .
- eserves & Reserves & Surplus 2. Profit/Loss during the year is considered on the basis
Surplus . X R
of profit and loss statement derived from split financial
prepared for this period.
Head Office | Head office account is the balancing figure between
Head Office e .
Account total assets, tota! liabilities and other equity.
Borrowings: From
Banks and Others
. . Unamortized upfront
Financial R . . .
s fee Itis allocated in the ratio of project cost
liabilities - p
Fair value gain on
restructuring loan
liability
- Leave encashment & . . .
Provisions R tt is allocated in manpower cost ratio
Gratuity
1. Directly Identifiable - Considered on actual basis
Trade MSME & Others 2. Employee relate‘:.i - Allocated on the basis of
payables Manpower cost ratio
3. Common - Allocated on the basis of Tariff ratio
Current maturities of
LTB
Unamortized upfront
Other financial | fee It is allocated in the ratio of project cost
liability Fair value gain on

restructuring loan
liability

Capital Creditors

It is considered on Identification basis

Other current
liability

Other payables

Itis related to staff cost, hence allocated in manpower
cost ratio

Revenue from
Operations

Revenue from
Transmission charges

1. Actual Billing - On directly identification basis
2. Income except billing (application & license fee}
ailocated on the basis of tariff ratio

Other income

Employee
benefit
expenses

Interest income

It is allocated in the ratio of project cost

Salaries and wages

Contribution to
provident and other
fund

Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

it is allocated in Manpower Cost ratio.

Finance cost

Interest

Other borrowing costs

1. Interest is allocated in the ratio of project cost
2.0Other borrowing cost is ailocated in the ratio of
project cost.

Depreciation
&
Amortisation

Depreciation &
Amortization

it is considered on Identification basis

MEHTY
@\
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ESSAR TRAMSCO LINVUTED (ERSTWHILE STAGE- OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LINITZD:

BALANCE SHEET A5 AT MARCIH 31, 2021

S ia Crorn

Notz no. Agar Aser
March 31, 2021 Mared 3i.2010
ASSETS
Nan-tusrent sssets 2 ° ¥
Propesty, plant anc eguioment 3 L7 sz
Intzngible avsets * 2030
Capital work i progress
Capitsl ltzms n Transii 7 Plan: and Machinery 3 0.7;
Tinenciel aaxory
Deferred my asseis {ei) [ -
173154
Carrent asseis
Inventories 7 48
Financiaf ssets.
Trade receivedley 3 46.87
Cash and cash equivalenis 9 40.52
Bank balances ather than cash and cash cauivalents 0 84.69
Lams 1t %952
Qtrer finaneial assets 12 152
ther current assers i3 702
251.84
1.983.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Reservey and surplos £ 19 88
Hezd office account 34043
690,31
LIABILITIES
Nop-carrent tiabilities
Fingnciel habrhues: ~
Borrawings 15 {6214 131130
Provisioms i6 [ L5
Deferted tax liabilities (net} 8 39.16 -
1,191.38 131191
Current Lizhilitics
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables:
Total Quistending dues of micro entzrprises und smail enterpnsss 17 1.52
Otters 17 4
Qtirer financiai kabilities 15 925
Provisions 19 -
Other current lighilities 20 0.12
101.69
1.983.33

Nole no 1 and 2 for S:gnitieant Accounting policics and besis of allocation for Salit Financial Siatemen: and uccompanyiag notes are intzera! paz= ot
2 20 3 P

fimaeial suminents.

in t2rms of our repar azachod

For § § Kothari
Clariered Acconniams

leniia & Co. LL?

For and ou behalf ol tie Baard of Dircetors
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ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED (ERSTWHILE STAGE-II OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCLAL STATEMENT AS Al AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2021

NOTES:

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Essar Transco Limited (the *'Company™ / "ETL"} is a public company incorporated in the yenr 2022 and domiciled in India. The registered office of the

Company is located at Shop no 2 and 3 at Jalsa Complex. Plot no 175/1. 175/1 Kha, 175/5. Village Fali (Wuidhan). District Singruali, Waidhan, Sidhi, Singraul
Colliery. Madhya Pradesh, India, 486886. The Company is in business of transmission of electricity. Central Electricity Regulatory Commussion has issued
Transmission License for 25 veors to the Company fo transmit electricity as a transmission licensee and to construct. maintuin and operate the transmission

assets,

1.1 Basis of preparation

{{) Complinnce with Ind AS
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of

Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015} and other relevant provision of the Act.

{ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except certain financial instrurnents which has been measured at fair value.

All sssets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013,

1.2 Significant ac iag jud i and p
The preparation of ﬁnanual § requil went to make judg: i and iptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the period and assets. liabilities and the disclosure of contingent Habilities at the date of financial statements. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in ourcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amourt of assets or ligbilities alfected in future
periods.

The Company has prepared its financial statements based on assurnptions and estimates on parameters avaifable at that time. Existing circumstances and
assumptions abour future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

sol | e

Fair value ement of fi Imstr
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets.

their fair value is measured using valuati hai including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF} model. The inputs to these models ar¢ taken from
ohservable markets where possible, but where x}ns is not teasnble u degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

1.3 Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in "ndian Rupees” (INR). which is also the Company’s finctional currency. All values are rounded to the nearest
Crore (INR 00.00,000). except when otherwise indicated.

(ii) Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for

recognition. Monetary sssets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies are trunslated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Differences arising on settlemunt or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are trapslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss anising on translation of non-monetary itemns measured at fair value is treated in Line with the recognition of the gain or loss on

the change in fair value of the item {i.c.. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCT or profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

14 Revenue Recognition . - . .
Revenue from cc with S8 d when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the

consideration to which The Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(i) Revenue from transmission charges
The Company as per ¢ the prevalent tarift’ mmlmmns is required to recover its Annuat Revenue Requirement (' ARR") comprising of expenditure or account

of operations and expenses, i ng costs. taxes and assured return on cegulator approved equity with additional incentive for operational
efficiencies. Any surplus/shortfall in the recovery is sccounted as revenue based on the final it orders by the regulatory authority.

Accordingly. the revenue from power tr ission services is recognised over time based on the ission asset availabilities and e rang charges
approved under the respective tanft orders and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting period. : ;
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{ii} Interest and dividend income
Toterest income is recurded using the effective interest wte (EIR) for all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value througlt other

comprehensive fncome. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estunated future cash poyments or receipts over the expected life of the [inancial
wstrument of a shorter period, where appropriate. to the gross carrytng amouat of the Gnancial 3552t or w the amortised cost of a financial lisbility.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's dight to receive the payment is established. which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition and construction of the qualilying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets up to the date when

such asset is ready for its intended use. All other borrowing, costs are expensed in the period in which they eccur, Borrowing costs consist of inrerest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employece benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid with in twelve months in exchange for the services rendered by employees is

recognised during the period when the employee renders the services. These benefits includes salaries. allowances and bonuses etc., compensated absences
such as paid annual leave and perfommance incentives.

(ii) Long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months atter the vnd of the period in which the employee renders the related services

are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation detertined actuarially by using Projected Unit Credit Method at the
balance sheet date.

(iii) Post-employment benefit plans
Cootribation to defined conuribution plans such as provident fund, are recognised as expense in the staterent of profit and loss or expenditure during

construction period. as applicable, when employees have rendered services entitling them to contributions.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India. For defined beneft schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, exchuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit Liability and the retumn on plan assets (excluding wmounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassificd to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the siatement of profit and loss or expenditure during

construction period, as applicable,
L] Service costs comprising current service costs. past-seTvice costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

. Net interest expense or income
Net interest expenses or income is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance ef defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.

The employee benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fnir value of
the related plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited 10 the reductions in future contributions to the plen.

Income tax

The incomne tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities astributable to temporary difterences and to ummsed tax losses.

The current income tax charges is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the end of the neporting period in India. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tux regulations are subject to inferpretation and establishes
pruvisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and labslities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax iiabilitics are recognised for all faxablc temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets and Lizbilities are measured al thw tax rates thal ace expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised of the Hability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax Jaws) that have been ted or sub vely d at the reporting date. Current tax and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable

. tight to set of{ recognised amount and hence is an intention to settle the assets and the liability on the net besis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductibl porary diffe , and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the exient that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred fax asscts are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxabie profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Current and defexred tax is recognised in profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to itemns recognised in other cmnpmhx.mn e or dircetly in

equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Frechold land is carried at historweal cost and other property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreviation and impairment losses. if

any. Cost icludes purchase price. borrowing costs and alf other applicable expenses incurred to bring the assets to its present location and condition. An
item of property. plaut and squipuent is derecognised upon dispusal or when no {uture economic benefits are expected [fom its use ur disposal. Gains ot
losses anising from derecognition ere meusured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss or cxpenditure during construction period. as applicable.

All the expenditure during construction period (net of incomne) attributable to constructionfacquisition of fxed assels are shown as capital work in progress
urtil the relevant assets are reudy for its intended use. When a msjor inspection or major maintenance is undertaken. its cost 1s recognised in the carrying
amoamt of the plant and equipmeont as a replac t if the recognition critcria exc aatisficd. All other repaies and maintenance custs me evvguised i e
profit or lovs during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Tronsmission system assets are considered when they are "Ready for intended use" for the purpese of capitalisation. after test charging /successful

commissioning of the system/ assets and on completion of stabilisation period.

An jtem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part imitially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asser (calcufated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The asset”s residual values. useful lives und methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation is provided as per straight line method (SLM) at the rates and in the manner specified in Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC)
Tariff Regulations_ Depreciation on additions/deductions to property. plant and equipment made duting the year is provided on a pro-rata basis fromvup
the date of such additions/deductions. as the case may be.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has ¢lected to continue with the earrying value of all of its property. plant and equipment and capital work in
progress recognised as at April 1. 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP je. Indian GAAP and use that carrying valve as the deemed cost of the

property, plant and equipment.

Intangible Assets
Inangible assets are recognised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are atnbwtable to the assets will flow 1o the Conmpany and

the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumnlated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Intangible
assets are amortised over the best estimare of their usefu! fives. Amount paid for acquiring Right of Way (ROW) of laying transmission lines are accounted

as intangible assets.
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed. and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. Changes in the
expeeeed useful life or the expocted pattern of ¢ ption of future ic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modity the amortisation

period or method. as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangjble assets are amortised atf the rate and in the manner specified in Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) Tanff Regulations except far
capitalised software cost, which is equally amortised over & period of five years. Depreciation on additions/deductions to property, plant and equipment
made duning the year is provided on & pro-rata basis from/up fo the date of such additions/deductions, as the case may be.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its i ible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured
as per the previous GAAP i.e. Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the d d cost of the intangible assets.

Impairment of non financial Assets
The camying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on

inernalexternal factors. An inpairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated

bl If at the bal sheet date, there is an indication that a previously asscssed impairment loss no longer cxists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is retlected at the recoverable amount but Limited to the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation /
amortisation) had no impainment loss been recognised in prier accounting periods.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is detennined using the weighted average cost tormula.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of
that can reliably be estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are

detecmined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax di raie that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and, where appropnate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the di is recognised in the

of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent Tiabilities are not recognised but disclased where the existence of an obligation will only be confirmed by future events or where the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent assets are not recognised, but are disclosed where an inflow of economic bene sznbable.
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L13 Financial instruments
A fimencial instrament iy any contract that gives rise to u tinancial usset of vne entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets
All finnncial assets are recogiised initrally ot fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
the staterent of profit and loss.

Subscquent measurcment of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business medel for managing the assets and the cash flow characteristics of the
assets. There are three measurement categores mto wiuch the Company classities its debt instruments.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent Solely Payment of Principal and Interest
(SPPI} are measured at amortised cost. After initial meusurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or

loss.
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash Hows and for selling the assets, where

the assets' cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI), are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value
movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses. interest income and foreign
exchange gain and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial assets is derecognised. the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest i from these & in} assets is included in other incume using the effective

Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fhir value through profit or
loss. Debt instruraents included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement in profit and loss. Interest
income from these £ 1l assets is included in other i using the effective interest rate method.

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVPL. For all
other equity instruments, the Company may classify the same ¢ither as at FVOCT or FVPL. The Company makes such clection on 2n instrument-by-
smstrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity instruments which are classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument. excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCL There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investnent. However, the company may transfexr the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. Equity instnonents included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit fosses associsted with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt

instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company applies the ‘simplitied approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Losses™
(ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial essets and risk exposure. the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increuse in
the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instnunent improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance bssed on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is
a portion of the lifetimee ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 mouths after the reporting date. ECL is
the difference between all contractual cash tlows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls}, discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows. an entity is required to consider:

. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (jucluding prepayment. extension, call and similar options) over the expected life
of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably.
then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.

L] Cash flaws from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or roversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit or loss. This amount
is reflected in a separate line in the profit or loss as an Umpaimment gain or loss.

TN —
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(ii) Financisl liabilities
All financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value aml, i the case of loans and borrawings and wade and pavables, et of directly attributable
trusaction costs. The measurement of linancial lubilities depends on thetr classification, as described below:

Financial inbilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financiul liabilities at faic value through profit or loss include financial Habilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair vabue through profit or loss.
For liabilities designated as FVPL,, fair value gains/ [osses atributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transter the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Al other changes n fair value of

such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial lirbilities at amortized cost

Financial tinbilities classified und measured at amortised such as loans and borrowings, trade and other payuble are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction cast incurred. After initinl recognition. financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation

is included as fi costs in the of profit and loss.

Financial guaruntee contracts
The Company provides certain guaraniees in respect of the indebtedness of group company undertakings, claims under contract and other arrangements in

the ordinary course of business. The Company evaluates each arrangement to determine whether it is an insurance or a financial guarantes contract. Once
the arrangements are designated as insurance c s. these are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the obligations under guarnntee become probable.
Financial guarantee contract Habilities are measured initially at their fair values and. if not designated as at FVTPL. are subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount of the obligation under the contract and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation over period of guarantee is provided.

De-recognition

A financial linbility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms., or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new Hability. The difference in the respective carrying

amounts is recogaised in the statement of profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, short-tern deposits with banks with original maturity of less than three months and short-

term highly liquid investments, thar are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in the principal amount. Bank
overdraits, which arc repayable on demand and form an integral part of the operations are included in cash and cash equivalents.

Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share are computed by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to eqmiy share holders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share are the profit / (loss) for the year afier deducting
preference dividends snd atuibutable taxes attributable to equity shareholders. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
and for all years presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of

equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,
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Definition of Terms
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The Stage IT transusission undertaking of Erstwhile Essur Power Transmission Company Limited which conststs of Mahan-Stpat Line has been assigned to

ETL and the Stage | with the

Basis of Preparation of Split Financial Statements

=

of Gandhar- Hozirs Line.

Head

Sub-head

Basis of Allocation

Property. plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipmem considered on identitication basts except Laptops & Deskiops
which have becn aflocated v iy ol cupluyees vonsideral in ach stuge

Considered on Identification basis

T S E——
Capital work in progress Considered on Identification basis
Unsbsorbed Depreciation tifl 31st March 2018 i.e. upto the year of capitalization of Stage IT has
been considered in Stage L Thereafter The unabsorbed depreciation of the Company has been
Unabsorbed depreciation allocated in the ratio of Total Assets (excluding deferred tax assets, if any) as per books of
accounts. After commencement of afl the stages, unabsorbed Depreciation has been utilised on
First in First owr { FIFQ) method on the basis of year of occurrence of unabsorbed depreciation.
Deferred tax Asscts — . - -
Provision for Employee Benelits |1t is allocated in manpower cost ratio

It is allocated in asset ratio

k ible assets

Fair Valuation of Financial Assets

It is allocated in the ratio of project cost

Dfferences in depreciation in

block of PPE as pertax book & |1t is aliocated m asset ratio
financial books
Stores & spares It ts considered on Identification basis
Trade Receivables It is allocated in tariff ratio
Cash & Cash Equivalents (CCE)-
1. Current accounts It is allocated in tariff ratio
FE. Fixed Deposits
. . Bank balances other than CCE 1. Margin Deposit is realted to Sales Tax Depostt, hence taken in Stage I
Financial Asset (C) {1\ rgin Deposits 2. DSRA. s allocated in tariff ratio

Loans- Security Deposii oc oD

It is considered on Identification basis

Other -
L. Interest acerued on Bank

deposit

It is allocatcd in the ratio of project cost

L. Prepaid expenses are allocated on Ideslification Basis.
2. Other advances directly identifiable are allocated on actual basis; whereas the common

1.Prepaid Expense
Other current asset 2.Other Advances advances related to brorrowings have been allocated in project cost mtio, advances related to
manpower are allocated in manpower cost ratio and remaining others in Tariff Rato
1. Retained Earnings: Opening Bal of Previous Year Figures
Reserves & Surpius  [Resenves & Surplus 2. ProfivLoss during the year is considered on the basis of profit and loss statement dedved
from split financial prepared for this period.
Head Office Account. |Head Ofiice Hca office account is the balancing figure between total assets, lotal liabilities and other

equity.

Borrowings: From Banks and
Others

Financial liabilities  {Unamortised upfront fee It is allocated in the ratio of project cost
Fair value gain on restructuring
loan liabilil
Leave encashment & Gratuity It is allocated in manpower cost mtio
1. Directly Identifiabie - Considered on actual basis
MSME & Others 2. Employee related - Allocated on the basis of Manpower cost ritio

3. Common - Allocated on the basis of Tanff ratio
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Other financial

Current matutities of LTB
Unamotused upiront fee

l

Fair value gain on restrucluring

Itis allocated in the rmtio of project cost

liability o
Lo labikiey
Capital Creditors It iy considered on Identification besis
Other current liability [Other pavables It is related to staff cost, hence allocated in manpower cost ratio
Revenue from Revenue from Transmission 1. Acmal Billing - On directly Identification basis
Operations charges 2. Income except billing (epplication & licence fee) allocated on the basis of tarift rauo
Other income L i It is allacated in the ratio of project cost

Salaries and wages
Contribution (v provident and

Other expenses

Cmployee benefit . . .
Employee benefs other fund It is allocared in Manpower Cost ratio.
€Xpenses o
Gratuity
Staff welfare expenses
Finance cost Interest 1. Interest is allocated in the ratio of project cost
Other borrowing costs 2.0Other borrowing cost is allocated in the ratio of project cost.
Depreciation & .. - . . e .
Amortisation Depreciation & Amortization It is considered on Identification basis
Production consumables It is allocated on inventory holding basis

(R&M) - Plant and machinery

1t is allocated on Identifiabie Basis

(BM) - Others

It is allocated on Identifiable Basis

It 15 allocated in the ratio of project cost

Rates and taxes

Stamp Duty

Application and license fees It is allocated in tariff ratio

Rent 1t is allocated on Identifiable Basis
Filing fees It is allocated in tariff ratio

It is allocated in tariff ratio

Insurance

1. Directly identifiable - On actual basis
2. Employee related - Allocated on Manpower cost ratio

Traveling and conveyance

It 1s allocated in Manpower Cost ratio

Legal and professional fees It is allocated in tanff ratio
Payment to Auditor 11 is aliocated in tanff ratic
Directors' Fee It is allocated in tariff ratio
Miscellaneous expenses 1t is allocated in tanff ratio
Social Welfare and Comumunity |y ;. nocated in tarifE ratio
Development

Fair Value Gain on Restructuring

It is allocated in the ratio of project cost

Exceptional ltems -
Loan linbility

Tax Expense Deferred 1ax {credit)/cxpense 1t is based on the working of deferred tax assets and liability
Remeasurement of the defined

0CI benefit plans It is bifurcated in manpower cost ratio

|Income tax effect
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ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED (ERSTWHILE STAGE-IT OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

NOTE: §
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (Rs. in_Crore)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Capital [ters in Transit / Plant and Machinery 0.71
0.71 .
]
NOTE: 6
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) (Rs.in Crore)
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred tax asset
Unabsorbed depreciation 131.2 84.66
Provision for employee benefits 0.0C 0.02
Interest Payable - 3.12
Gross deferred tax asset 131.25 87.80
Differences in depreciation in block of fixed assets as per tax books and financial books 139.25 3537
Intangible assets 4.13 394
Fair valuation of financial assets 17.03 0.03
Unamortised Fees (Curr & Non Current) - 1.00
Grass deferred tax Lability 160.41 60.34
Net deferred tax asset {2912! 27.46
NOTE: 7
INVENTORIES
{At lower of cost and net realisable value) (Rs. in Crore)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Stores and spares 1.18 0.18
_L18 0.18
NOTE: 8
TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, unless otherwise stated) (Rs. in Crore)
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables
considered good 86.87 69.26
36.87 69.26
S .
NOTE: 9 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. in Crore)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks in
Current accounts 34.09 50.58
Fixed deposits 6.53 434
40.62

54.92
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ESSAR TRANSCO LINATED (ERSTWHILE STAGE-II OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2021

NOTE: 10
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. in Crore®
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:
Unsecured, considered good
Margin deposits 0.01 0.0t
Deposite in Debt service reserve account { DSRA) 84.68 -
84.69 0.01
NOTE: 11
LOANS
(Uunsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated) (Rs. in_Crore)
As at As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Security deposits

Unsecured,considered good 0.90 0.85
Loans and advances to related parties
Inter corporate deposits 29.02 29.02
2292 29.87
NOTE: 12
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs. in Crore)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest accrued on bank deposit 1.54 0.08
1.54 0.08
NOTE: 13
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. in_Crore)
As at I As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 |
Security deposits
Unsecured considered good - l 0.05
Others
Prepaid expenses 3.9 325
Other advances 30 212
Advance Interest . 36.84
7.02 42.26
= = el
NOTE: 14 .
RESERVES AND SURPLUS (Rs. in_Crore)
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Retained earnings 79.50 i
Add/ Less:
During the year 70.38 S
149.88 i)

SIMER;

i &
A
41 9
oy A)C\AJ! fase 1
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ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED (ERSTWHILE STAGE-IT OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

NOTE: 15
BORROWINGS (Rs. in_Crote)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2028
Rupee term loans
From banks 67.38 107.08
From others [,157.50 1,208.49
1.224.88 1315.57
Less: Unamortised upfront fee (3.43) {3.71
Less Fair Value Gain on Restrueturing Loan liability (39.29) -
NOTE: 16
PROVISIONS (Rs. in_Crore} )
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 0.06 0.04
Compensated absences 002 001
0.08 0.05 |
NOTE: 17
TRADE PAYABLES (Rs. in_Crore)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade payables
Total outstanding of micro and small enterprises 1.52 143
Others 7.74 2.44
9.26 3.87
NOTE: 18
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Rs.in_Crore) )
As at As at
Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current maturities of long term borrowings 83.9§ 83.90
Less: Unamortised upfront fee 0.26) (0.26)
Less Fair Value Gain on Restructuring Loan liability {8.35) -
75.39 83.64
Interest accrued and due on borrowings from banks and financial institutions - 12.40
Capital creditors
Others 17.01 14.21
92.31 110.25
- —
NOTE: 19
PROVISIONS (Rs. in_Crore)
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences - 0.00
- 0.00
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ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED (ERSTWHILE STAGE-II OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(b Deferred tax charge / (credit) recognised in statement of profit and foss

(Rs. in_Crore)

For the year ended | For the vear ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Property, plant and cquipment 83.67 (59.96)
Intangible assets 019 (2.3
Unabsurbed deprication (46.57) 48
Employee benefit expenses 0.00 (0.00}
Interest Payable 312 39.84
Provision for Doubtful Inter corporate depasit - 1.06
FV Gain on Restructuring 17.03
Usamortised Fees (Curr & Non Current) (1.00) 1.00
56.44 28.56
—
NOTE: 33
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, ASSETS AND COMMITMENTS
(to the extent not provided for) (Rs. in Crore)
For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i. Contingent liabilities
Entry Tax Liability not provided as material not purchased during the course of 590 5.90

The Company is having Right of Way (ROW) legal cases for additional compensation demanded by farmers pending in Civil Court for Gandhar-Hazira and
Mahan site. The amount of final liability, if any, will be ascertained at the time of rsolution of matters pending in various district courts.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the financial
position of the Company as at 31% March, 2024 and its financial performance including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section143
(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 50 in relation to financial statement which describes the basis of preparation
of these financial statement. These financial statements have been prepared as per Scheme of
Arrangement (the Scheme) amongst the Essar Power Transmission Company Limited (EPTCL) and Essar
Transco Limited (ETL), filed with the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Indore Bench {“NCLT”},the
scheme have been approved on 15" February,2024 with the appointed date as 1% April, 2023 and the
company has received certified copy of final order dated 15" February,2024.

The financial statements for the period 31st March 2024 have been prepared pursuant to the Scheme. In
accordance with Ind As 103 “Business Combination” the merger has been given effect as if it has occurred
from the beginning of the preceding period (i.e. 1% April 2023) in the financial statements after restating
the comparative figures.

We draw attention to Note 7 of the financial statements regarding out of total outstanding of Rs. 241.12
Crores as on 31% March 2024, the amount of Rs. 215.24 Crores is outstanding as the CTUIL has deducted
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, 'we are required to report that fact. Based on the records, information and explanation

provided, we have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a =--'= f== -~ ~= *='~n. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}(i) of the companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonable knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

The financial information pertaining to the Company regarding the previous year 31% March 2023 figures
is based on audited financials of FY 2022-23 which has been allocated by the Company between ‘Company
after giving effect to Demerger’ i.e. CAD and ‘Business transferred to Resulting Company’ i.e. BTRC as per
the scheme of arrangement between Essar Power Transmission Company Limited (EPTCL) and Essar
Transco Limited (ETL). The Company wherever possible has identified the assets and liahilities specifically
pertaining to each stage. The items which cannot be identified specifically and that are common has been
allocated on a logical basis.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure — A”

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. Asrequired by section 143(3)of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement
of Changesin Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

£ With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure - B

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the company has paid or provided managerial remuneration as per the
requirement of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V of the act.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i} The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation in its ind-AS
financial statement. Refer Note No. 29 of the financial statement.



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)
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The Company did not have any long-term contract and in case of
derivative contracts, there is no material foreseeable losses.

There have been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) On the basis of the representation from the management no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) On the basis of the representation from the management no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities {(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and
(if) of Rule 11 (e ), as provided under (a} and (b} above, contain any material

misstatement.

The company has not Declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to
data at Database Management System (DBMS) level when using certain
access rights. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
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As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For $ S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, (=~~~ """ ""777 """

Place: New Delhi e,
Date: 07-08-2024 Partner
UDIN: 24095960BKFADF3599 Membership No. 095960
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDIT REPORT TO THE ESSAR TRANSCO LIMITED

Referred toin paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirement’s paragraph of our report
on the financial statement of even date,

(i) Inrespect of its fixed assets :

(a)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property and Plant and Equipment, so
to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Pursuant to the program, certain
Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, Building and some of the Assets situated on the land by owned by other group
Company . The details are as under

[ Particulars _“Locatidwnwl Land Owned by Amount i
| - . | Crores
| Plant & Machinery- Others Mahan | Mahan Energy Limited : 48.96
! Plant and Machinery- Bay Mahan | Mahan Energy Limited 4 421,
Plant and Machinery-Tower Mahan i Mahan Energy Limited ) 5.64 .
- Total f 58.81 |
Note- The company is pursuing to get the NOC for righl to use the asset from Mahan Energen

Limited.

{d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including right-of-use

(e)

assets) and intangible assets during the year.

Based on the records and as per the information and explanation given to us no proceedings
have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31°' March, 2024
for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016} and rules made thereunder.

{ii} Inrespect of Inventory

(a)

(b)

The inventories of the Company have been physicaily verified by the management during the
year.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management except for stock lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies were
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(iv)

(vi)

{vii)
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noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or
more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(c) (n our opinion and as per the information and expianations given to us, the company has not
been sanctioned any working capital, therefore reporting under this clause 3(ii)(c) of the order

is not applicable.

(a) Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has investments, not provided any guarantee or security and not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to related parties,

{b) The Company has not made investments, not provided guarantee, given security and not
granted loan advances in the nature of loan. And terms and conditions of the loan granted

to its Related Party are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to related
parties so the paragraph 3 (iii) ( c) of the order is not applicable

{(d) The principal amount of loan was overdue which has been written off during the prior year
and the related interest has been waived out on the condition of recompense and the
same will not be claimed as the principal has been written off.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen
due during the year, has not been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdue of existing loan given to the same parties. Therefore, paragraph 3(iii) (e} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loan or advances in the nature of loan either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Therefore, paragraph
3(iii)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the company has not given any advances in the nature of loan, made investments, provided
any guarantees and security to the parties covered under section 185 of the Act, and the company
has complied the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Therefore, reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014 under section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have however,
not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

In respect of Statutory Dues
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{(a) As per the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
in respect of provident fund, investor education and protection fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, goods and services tax, customs duty,
excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues as applicable with the
appropriate authorities. Further, there were no undisputed amounts outstanding at the year-
end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) As perthe information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, the particulars of statutory dues as described in Clause 3 {vi} (a) of the order as above
have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:-

S.No. ; Name of the | Nature | Amount | Period to which | Forum where the dispute

Statue of Dues | (Rs. in | the amount | is pending
crore) relates

1. MP Entry Tax | Entry 3.05 F.Y.2011-12 Hon’ble High Court of
Act, 1976 Tax MP, Jabalpur

2. MP Entry Tax | Entry 1.21 F.Y.2012-13 AC/PC Appeals, Jabalpur
Act, 1976 Tax

3. MP Entry Tax | Entry 1.64 F.Y.2013-14 Appellate Tribunal,
Act, 1976 Tax Bhopal.

Note-
1. Rs 1.28 Crores deposited in protest against above demand
2. Above amount is excluding interest and computed on finality of case.

{vii)  As per the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961).

{ix)

a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks financial institutions.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority during
the period.

c) As per the information and explanation given to us, the Company has applied the term loan for
the purpose for which it was obtained.

d} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) As per the information and explanation provided, the company has no subsidiary associates and
joint ventures.
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

f)
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As per the information w..w capeeriwewes prmsmwmy o= ——...o—.., -13S NO subsidiary associates and

joint ventures.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and therefore reporting under clause 3(x){a) of the

Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and therefore reporting under clause

3(x}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

{(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Practices in india, we have neither came across
any instance of fraud on or by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor had been
informed of such case by the management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As per information, explanations and representation the Company has not received any
whistle blower complaint during the year.

Based on records and information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi
Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii)(a),(b)
& (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the company has transacted with the related parties which are in compliance with
section188 &177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements.

As per the requirement under section 138 of Companies Act, 2013, Internal Audit is not applicable
on the Company. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) Based on records and information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Therefore, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b) As per the information & explanation and records given to us the company has not
conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activity. Therefore, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applic
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cj As per the information & explanation given to us, the company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore,
reporting under paragraph 3{xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) As per the information & explanations given to us, the Group of the company does not
have more than one CIC as a part of Group. Therefore reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii)  The Company has incurred any cash fosses during the financial year covered by our audit and there
is no cash losses in immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.

(xx) The Company is not eligible to spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} in compliance
with Section 135 of the Companies Act ,2013. Therefore, reporting under clause 3(xx){a) and {(b)of
the Order is not applicable.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000756N/ N500441

Place: New Delhi (Neeraj Bansal)
Date: 07-08-2024 Partner
UDIN: 24095960BKFADF3599 Membership No. 095960
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STATEMENTS OF ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ESSAR POWER TRANSMISSION
COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contro!
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on records ,the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
generally operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on “the internal control over financial
reporting system & procedures established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india”.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No NAN7SAN/ NEANAA1

Place: New Delhi (Neeraj Bansal)
Date: 07-08-2024 Partner
UDIN: 24095960BKFADF3599 Membership No. 095960
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(I, i Crore)

Asal As at
Note no. March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
ASSETS
Non-current nsscly
Property, plant and ecquipment 3 1.398.70 1.502.79
Right of use 3 [R]] -
Intangible assels 4 363 15 86
141244 1,518.65
Ciirrent nsscts
Inventarics 6 363 L4
Financial assels:
Trade receivables 7 41,12 29221
Cash and cash equivalents 8 006 2325
Bank balances other (han cash and cash equivalents 9 - 4256
Sceurity deposily 10 0l4 (1 R3]
Other financinl ossets h 1.28 | 55
Current 0x assets (net) 12 7.10 -
Other current assets [B] 3234 018
285,67 362.00
4&;?1.! 1 1.R80.66
FQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equuy share capital td Q.05 Q.08
Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Panicipating preference Shares 14 447,78
Reserves and surplus 15 121.06 286.21
Capital reserve 15 240 47718
$98.19 763.44
LAARILITIES
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilities:
Burrowings 16 909.0) 944 54
Other 16a 63.73 -
Provisions 17 0.09 0.12
Peferred Lax (asscts)/ diabilities (net) 5 3203 84432
1,005,146 1.028.97
Current Linbilitics
Trade payables:
Total Qutstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises 8 0.01 0,03
Qthers [E] 018 a.59
Borrowings 19 4191 17.09
Other financial liobilitics 20 1027 1017
Other current liabilities 1 001 oy
94,37 89.2%
1.698.1 1 1.880.66

Accompanylog notes arc intepral part of Mancinl staicmenty,

In terms of our report nitached

For S S Kothari Mchta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accauntants
D N

fariner
Membership No:.095%60

Placa:Abmedabad
Daie: 07-08-2024

1 . - .

6., I ik eV
Kirti Thakkar
CFo
Place: Mumbai

Date: -07-08-2024

For and on betnil of the Board of Direclors

)

= /

At Sidgh Raghov
Director

Din: 09756298
Place:Ahmedabad
Date: 07-08-2024

K
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\.,//m
Unmat Pralersh
Qirector
Din: 09753455
Place:Mumbai

Date: -07-08-2024
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{R.in Crorc)

Fur the year eaded For the yeur ended
Note no. Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 22 131.94 355.25
Other incomne 23 522 4.79
Total Income 137.16 360.03
EXPENSES
Employee benelit expenses 24 1.80 2.33
Finance costs 25 172.51 133.67
Deprecintion and amortisation 3&4 106.52 106.48
Other expenses 26 73.03 12,90
Total expenses 353.86 255.37
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and (ax {216.70) 104.66
Profit/(loss) for the period (216.70) 104.66
Deferred 1ax (credit) / cxpenses 27 (51.68) 5.59
Profit (Loss) for the period from Conlinuing opcrations (165.02) 99.07
Profit (Loss) for Uie period from Discontinued operations (Net of Tax)
Profit afler lax for the year (165.02) 99.07
OTHER COMPREIIENSIVE INCOME
{oms that will net be reclassified to profit or Joss
Continging opcrutions:-
Remeasurcment of the defined benefit plans 0.05) (0.08)
Inconic tax cffect 0.01 0.02
Other comprehensive income for the year. net of tax (0.04) (0.06)
Discontinucd opcrations:-
Remeusurement gain / (losscs) of the defined benefit plans
TOVAL. OTHER COMPREIIENSIVE INCOME (0.04) (0.06)
Total cumprehensive income far the year, net of tax {165.05) 99.01
Noteno | and 2 for Significant Accounting policies and basis of allacation {or Split [i int Stat ¢ and ponying noics arc integral

part of financial stalcments,

For § § Kothari Mchta & Co. LLF
Chartcred Actountams
Rinn Reoictentine Na ON756N/NS0044 |

ek ay AR

Pariner

Membeeship No:095960
Place:Ahmedabad

Date: -07-08-2024

k( Vi ARG
Kirti Thakkar

cro

Place: Mumbai

Dale: -07-08-2024
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Atul Singh Raghay
"Dircclor

Din: 09756298
Place: Ahmedabud
Date: -07-08-2024

]
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"-/Uunnl Prakash
Director
Din: 09753855
Place: Mumbai

Date: -07-08-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors
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A Equity shure cupital
Note nu. (Rs. in Crore}

Asat April 1, 2012 14 0.03

Changes in equily share capital -

Asat March 31, 2021 0.05

Issucd during the year -

As ut Mareh 31, 2024 0035

Comjpulsory Convertible Cumulative Purficipating preference Shares

Note no. (Rs. in Crore)

As i1 April 1, 2022 14

Changes in equity share capital

As at March 31,2023 -

Issued during the year 477.78

As at March 31, 2024 471.78

B. Other cquity fRs. in Crore)

Note na. Reserve and surplus Total
Retained earnings

Balance ns at Aprit 1, 2022 15 18720 18720
Profit/(Loss) for the ycor 99.0! 99.01
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.06) (0 06)
Totat comprehensive income for the year 9.1 99.01
Capital Reserve 477 (8 477 18
Balance as nt Marel 31,2023 763.39 763.39
‘Transfer from Capital reserve an issuance of Compulsory (447.78) (447.78)
{convertible cumumtative pacticipating preference shares

Profit/(Loss) for the year (165.09) (165.09)
Other comprehensive income for (he year (0.04) (0 04)
Total comprehensive income for the year (612.90) (612.90)
Balsnce as nt March 31,2024 150.46 180.46

in terms of our report attached

For S S Kathari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accouniants
GN/N50044 1

Membership No:095960
Place: Atinedabad
Date; -07-08-2024

Y)ﬂ/\h “C\‘O_‘AU\\/
Kirti Thakkar

CFO

PMlace: Mumbai

Date: -07-08-2024

IFor und on behalf of the Board of Directors

“Atul Singh Reghay
Director

Din: 09756298
Place: Alimedabad
Daie:.-07-08-2024
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Dircclor
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Place:Mumbai
Date: -07-08-2024
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Lt e Crored

Year cuded Yeur cnded
Murfld Mari23
A, [CASITFLOY FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
rafief (Lexs) Belare Tax FRIO 5% 11462
Addpsinient for
Allowvance for bart and doubiful deby
Depreciation and unonisation 106,53 13369
Trovisions for expeuses no donger eequinst wanten backAlalilities .
N {28y
writien back
Finance cusis 172.51 167 50
Inlerest incone {5 21) (SR}
Provesion for prawity/ Leave cacashimm {0 03) 0.3y
7379 19498
Operaimz profll before working capiinl shanges 7o 409.57
Movement in working capital
Decrease / (Increasc) in inventarics (147 (@44
Decrease f (Incrense) in trade ceceivables 5100 (233.23)
{Decrease) / Incremse ii trade payables.oilicr financial liabilides 1.17 438
oiber Habilivies and other myubles
{Increase) / Decreask in other financials gsscty, loars and other 10,33 62,93
Ll g
T (1L ET]
Cash genernied from operations 179.36 23
Direct vexes Refiind / (paid) ) i746)
Net cush from aperuting activifies 17280 U628
B. [CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additign to propery. plont and cquipnients, Intungible assets under
tevelapina (including capiinl work in progross, axpendilure/gain ducing,
comatriion peried and adviinces on capial account & capital payables) © i oos
hiter eyt reecived 340 941
Net cush used in investing activities LR 2.19
C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACFIVITIES
Repayment of barrowings (Tt 97}, (105.7G)
tnferest and finauce clrarges paid (124 25) {15790)
{101.22) €263 66}
Net (Jeereuse)ncrense in caslt and cavh cquivelenis (A+D+C) {2349y ’h.l‘))
Casls and caxh equivalems at tie beginning of the yeas 23,25 65 1)
Cazh al cash equivalewts st the end of the year 9.00 %12
_ (22.19) ] (38.15)
Excess puyieent A3 pier caslt working oud FS
(Rs : Cruiel
Asat As ot
Mnreh 31, 2024 March 12023
Balance with hanks in
- Current sccounts 0.04 2712
0.06 | 3712

Cuzh aml cash equivalents

Nate.

b { wl o

Provious year (igurcs have been re-gaup 1

Ror S S Kothari Muha & Cs. LLP

Place. Alunednlnd
Date: -07-08-2024
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Kirti Thakknr
Cro
Place Minnbai

M -07-08-2024

~ Mm,

StukNmpgh Haphe
Director

Din: 09756298
Place:Atunedabad
Do -07-08-2024

\
\
3,
Ymitat 'ralash
Director
Din: 09753855
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Date: 07-08-2024
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ESSAIUTRANSCO LIDNITED
NOFES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED Marcl 31, 2024

NOTE: 32

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGENMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Compuany's principal finuncial labilitics comprise borrowings, frade payables, capital creditors and interest payables The main
purpose of these financial labilitivs is 1o raise linance for the C y“s aperations nnd capitnl expendi The Company has various
financial assets such as frude receivables, cash und cash cquivalents, bunk deposits, which arise directly fram ils aperations

The management agrees and reviews palicivs for nanaging differend type of risks associates with thie sature of the busingss and aperations
of the Comy Significan! 4 ing policies and metheds adopied, including the critera for recognition, the busis of measurement, in
respeet of cach ciass of Hinancial asset, financial Habitity and cquity instrument are disclosed in Nate 2 o the financial siatements

{interest mie risk
The Company's exposure to (he risk of changes it market interest rates relates primarily o the Company's long-term debt obligations
with Noating interest ates, which exposc the Company 1o cash flaw interest mte nsk. (Refer Note 16)
The following bl provides a breakdown of the Campany’s fixed and floaling rate borrowings:
(Rs. in Crore)
As at As nt
March 21, 2024 | Murch 31, 2023

Fixed rate borrawings 937.61
floating rate borrowings 5517 1,021 63
992.80 1021.63

The foHowing table dumonstrates ihe scasitivity fo @ reosanably possible change in inferest raics, being a 0 5% increase or decrease in
interest rate, with all other vasiabhes held constunt, of the Compony”™s profit before tax duc ta the impact en Doniing rale borrowings.

tRa.in Crore)
For the year entled
Mlarch 31, 2024 |dlarch 31, 2023

Effcct on profil helore (ny:

PLR*- ducreuse by 50 bps 0,04 004

0.04 004

" Priwe Lending Rate (*PLRs'Y set by individual Indinn banks in respect of ieir loans,
The impuct of a 50 bps fnereasc in interest rates an profit before tax will he as disclosed abowe with ihe exception ihat gains would be

convered to losses

Credit risk

Credil risk is the risk of financials loss to thic Company il a counterpanty to a financial instryment fails (o meat it contscrual obiligations,
and arises from trade receivable, cash and cush equivalents, bank deposils as well as eredil cxposures 1o other oulstanding receivables.
The Company currently having iransuctions with recognised and creditworthy third parlics and companics wnder the same management
and hence credit risk is considered 10 be low Cush and cash cquivalents und bank deposits ate held in banks with high credit mtings 1o
addition, reccivable balances arc monilared on ta on-going basis

The Company cstablishes an allowance for doubiful thal ey is olincurred [osses in respect of trade receivables

Trade receivables disclosed in the Gnancial include {sec below for ageing analysis) which are past duc'at the rupoing
date but against which the Company has ant gnised an all for doubtful receivables be ¢ there has ot been a, T .
cltange in credit quality and the amounts are still conswjered recaverble /




ESSAR TRANSCO LIAITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT AND FOR TIE YEAR ENDED Maech 31, 2024

Agentyg of receivables is as follow s Redir nate- 4

Agat Asat
H-Mar-24 It-Mar-23
Less than 6 monthy 10,03 80,14
G moaths- | year 1127 21177
1-2 yrs JI6H
2.3 yrs .
25.8% 292.21

Liguidity rish
Liquidily risk is the risk that the Campaay will encounter difTiculty i macting 1he obligations associated with its financials
tiabibitics that are sellled by deliveriag cash or unother financials asset, The Company's approach to nianaging liquidity is to cnsure.
as far as nossilibe, tiat it will have sufficent liquidity to meet its habilities when they are due, under botl pormat and stressud
canditions. withoul incurming unaccentable lasses of risking damage to the Company's reputation Management monitors rolling
Torecasts of the Contprany's liyuidity pasilion (comprisiny the undrawn borrewing facility) and cash and cash equivalents an (te
basis afexpected cash (lows.

“The table Lelow analyze the Company financial fabilities into relovant maturity grouping based on their contractual maluritics,

{Hs. in Crore)

As nr March 31, 2024 Less thaa 1 [1-2 years 2-5 yenrs More thna § Totni
year years
33.91 §3.91 25172 27 992 80

Barrawinus { Refer note- 16)
Trade payables ( Refer vole- [8) 219 -
Other fimancsal liabilitics

. - ol9

34,09 8191 25171 573.27 992.99

{#&. in Crore)

As at Murch JE, 2023 Less than { {1-2 vears 2-5 years Morethian § Talal
yenr yeiars
Borrowings 3391 83.91 51712 65217 1,076 71
Trade: payables 062 . - . 062
Other finuncial liabilitics . . . .
84 53 8391 2517 65717 1,077 33

The Campany has na undrawn committed facilities as at Mt 31, 2024

Capital mamigement

The Comnpany s ebjectives while managing capital are 10 safeguacd its ability fo continue as 3 going concem and to provide adequute
retums for ats sharehioldurs and benefils for ather stakeholders The Company's policy is gencrally to optimise borrewings at an operating
campany kevel within an acceptable level of debs, Equity funding for existing uperations / Ciapex or new acquisitions s raised centnilly,
{irst (tom cxcess cash and then from new borrowings winle retaining on an acceptable level of debi as per approved finauciug plan

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, whicl is calowlated as underlying net debt divided by lofal equity including reserves
& surplus plus undeclying net debt Thre Company measuces s undecying ned debit as toa! debt including current matunues of jong term
borrawings but excluding shaet term facilities reduced by casli and cash equivalents and bank depesits Total equity includes equity

atiributabie 10 the cyuity holders of ihe Contpany
(lts. in Crore)

F As at A

. J1-Mur-24 Jl-dlae-23 -

Ingerest-buinag loans and borrowings 993 1,077

Less cash and cash cquivalents ) {23)

9493 1,853

Less: ' -
Other i ial asscls-bink deposis (excloding restricied) -

Underlying net debt 1,083

Toud equity 763

1a17

Cquity and underlymg et deby

Gauring entig

)
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Annexure-4

To
The Board of Directors
Essar Transco Limited

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on Statement of rate of interest on long-term loan for the financial
year ended 31° March 2020 to 31" March 2024.

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 19" November
2024 with Essar Transco Limited {the ‘Company’).

2. The accompanying statement of rate of interest on long-term loan for the financial year ended 31*
March 2020 to 31* March 2024 {‘the Statement’) has been prepared by the Company’s management
in compliance with Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (terms and condition of tariff)
regulations 2019. We have been asked to verify the data being extracted from the reviewed split
financial statements & audited financial statement & other records. We have initialed the Statement
for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility for the Statement

3. The preparation of the Statement, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents, is solely the responsibility of the management of
the Company. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

4, The Management is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the CERC
requirements and provides all relevant information to the CERC.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5. We have reviewed the special purpose reviewed split financial statements of erstwhile Essar Power
Transmission Company Limited (the ‘erstwhile Company’), underlying books of accounts and other
records and documents maintained by the erstwhile Company for the years ended 31 March 2020 to
31 March 2023 and audited financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31 March 2020
to 31 March 2024. The financial information enclosed in Annexure-A is extracted from the special
purpose reviewed split financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2020 to 31 March 2024,

6. The reviewed/audited financial statements, referred to in paragraph 5 above for the years ended 31
March 2020 to 31 March 2024 have been reviewed/audited by us, on which we have issued an
unmodified audit opinion vide our audit report dated 7™ August 2024 and review report dated 19"
November 2024. The review of these financial statements were conducted in accordance with the
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Guidance Note on Repor. us woiunivaies 1w speuiar Fuiposes (nevised 2016) (‘The Guidance Note’)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {The ‘ICAI'}. The audit of these financial

statements were conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI’). Those Standards require that the auditor plans and
performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.

7. We conducted our examination of the Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes {Revised 2016) {‘The Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (The ‘ICAl’). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the
ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics, issued by the ICAL

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard of Quality Control (SQC)
1, ‘Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Service Engagements’, issued by the ICAL.

9. The procedures performed in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing from, and
are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagement; and consequently, the level of
assurance obtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that
would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of areas where a material
misstatement of the subject matter information is likely to arise. We have performed the following
procedures in relation to the Statement.

a} Obtained the reviewed/audited financial statement and underlying books of accounts for the
years ended 31% March 2020 to 31% March 2024.

b) Obtained agreements executed between the Company and Adani Transmission Step-Two Limited
for loans taken by the Company.

c¢) Tested the numbers included in the Statement from the audited financial statements and
underlying books of accounts and other records and documents maintained by the Company and
recomputed the weighted average rate of interest on actual long-term loans for FY 2019-20 to
2023-24.

d) Obtained necessary representations from the Management of the Company.

Conclusion

10. Based on our examination as above, evidences obtained, and the information and explanations, along
with the representations provided by the Management, nothing has come to our attention that cause
us to believe that the particulars that form part of the Statement, have not been accurately extracted
from the reviewed the special purpose reviewed split financial statements of erstwhile Essar Power
Transmission Company Limited (the 'erstwhile Company’), underlying books of accounts and other
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records and dOCUMENES N.c.iivwviivw vy wie @ awviine wulnipaily 1or tne years ended 31 March 2020 to
31 March 2023 and audited financial statements of the Company for the years ended 31 March 2020

to 31 March 2024. The financial information enclosed in Annexure-A is extracted from the special
purpose reviewed split financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2020 to 31 March 2024.

Restriction on Distribution or Use

11.

12.

Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your
compliance with the CERC provisions. Our obligations in respect of this certificate are entirely separate
from, and our responsibility and liability is in no way changed by, any other role we may have as
statutory auditors of the Company or otherwise. Nothing in this certificate, nor anything said or done
in the course of or in connection with the services that are the subject of this certificate, will extend
any duty of care we may have in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.

The certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company solely for the
purpose of enabling it to comply with the CERC requirements which require it to submit the certificate
with the accompanying Statement to CERC, and should not be used, referred to or distributed for any
other purpose or to any other party without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept
or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose for which or to any other party to
whom this certificate is shown ar into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Na NNNTCAAN /INENANAAA

Place: Delhi
Date: 19-11-2024 Partner
UDIN: 24095960BKFAKA3655 'mbership No. 095960
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Essar Transco Limited

Annexure - A
Long Term Borrowing

(Rs. Crore)
Source of Borrowing Financial Year Opening Net Loan Closing Rate of interest
balance Movement balance
2019-20 887.04 224.66 662.39 14.50%
2020-21 662.39 40.52 621.87 14.50%
Rural Electrification Corporation i
Limited (REC) 2021-22 621.87 71.21 550.66 14.50%
2022-23 550.66 40.52 510.14 14.50%
2023-24 510.14 40.52 469.62 14.50%
{Rs. Crore)
Source of Borrowing Financial Year Opening Net Loan Closing Rate of interest
balance Movement balance
2019-20 349.7 88.57 261.14 14.50%
2020-21 261.14 15.98 245.16 14.50%
Power Finance Corporation 2021-22 245.16 28.07 217.09 14.50%
2022-23 217.09 15.97 201.12 14.50%
2023-24 201.12 15.97 185.14 14.50%
{Rs. Crore)
. . R Opening Net Loan Closing .
Source of Borrowing Financial Year balance Movement balance Rate of interest
2019-20 105.40 19.90 85.50 14.50%
2020-21 85.50 11.61 73.89 14.50%
Axis Bank 2021-22 73.89 8.49 65.40 14.50%
2022-23 65.40 5.42 59.98 14.50%
2023-24 59.98 4.81 55.16 14.50%
(Rs. Crare)
Source of Borrowing Financial Year Opening Repaid Closing Rate of interest
balance balance
2019-20 1.342.15 33312 1,009.03 14.50%
2020-21 1,009.03 68.10 940.93 14.50%
Total Rupee Term Loan 2021-22 940.93 107.77 833.15 14.50%
2022-23 833.15 61,92 771.23 14.50%
2023-24 771.23 61.30 709.93 14.50%
Note

1. Interest rate an Rupee Term Loan have remained same, i.e, 14,50% for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
to March 31, 2024

The Normative Loan approved by Hon'ble CERC as on 31.03.2020 is Rs. 1006.26 Cr, against the actual outstanding
loan availed by ETL from lenders of Rs. 1009.03 Cr (31.03.2020) after restructuring. Accordingly, the weightage
average rate of intrest has been certified based on the actual outstanding loan availed by ETL.

- - For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000756N/N500441

\

Partner

Membership No. 095960
Place: Delhi

Date: 19-11-2024

UDIN: 24095960BKFAKA365._
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Annexure-SA

Appendix-1

PART-1I1

TARIFF FILING FORMS (TRANSMISSION &
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM)

FOR TRUE UP OF TARIFF
FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24
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INDEX
PART-III
Checklist of Forms and other information/ documents for tariff filing for Transmission
FORM- 4 AUSLIACL UL EXISLNE IANsIISSION assels/elements under project, Ueterminanion oI LItective
l COD and Weighted Average Life for single AFC for the project as whole. NA
IFORM_ 44 Statement of Capital cost NA
Statement of Capital Works in Progress NA
Abstract of Capital Cost Estimates and Schedule of Commissioning for the New
Project/Element NA
FORM-5 Element wise Break-up of Project/Asset/Element Cost for Transmission System or
Communication System NA
FORM-5A Break-up of Construction/Supply/Service packages NA
RORM.SR Details of all the assets covered in the project NA
Actual Cash Expenditure and Financial Package up to COD Y
Statement of Additional Capitalisation after COD Y
Financing of Additional Capitalisation Y
FORM- 7B Statement of Additional Capitalisation during five year before the end of the useful life of the
project. NA
Calculation of Return on Equity Y
Details of Foreign Equity NA
Details of Allocation of corporate loans to various transmission elements NA
Details of Project Specific Loans NA
Details of Foreign loans NA
Calculation of Weighted Average Rate of Interest on Actual Loans Y
Loans in Foreign Currency NA
Calculation of Interest on Normative Loan Y
Calculation of Depreciation Rate Y
Statement of Depreciation Y
Statement of De-capitalisation NA
Calculation of Interest on Working Capital Y
Details of time over run NA
Incidental Expenditure during Construction NA
Calculation of IDC & Financing Charges NA
Breakup of Initial spares NA
Non-Tariff Income NA
Summary of issue involved in the petition Y
Summary of Capital Cost & Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) Claimed for ALL the assets covered in
the present petition. Y

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24
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Checklist of Forms and other information/ documents for tariff filing for Transmission
System & Communication System
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PART-III

[ thar Tnfarmation ! Manomam -

Association, & Articles of Association (For New Project(s) setup by a company making tariff
application for the first time to CERC)

NA

Region wise and Corporate audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts with all the
Schedules & annexures for the new Transmission System & Communication System for the
relevant years.

NA

Copies of relevant loan Agreements

NA

Copies of the approval of Competent Authority for the Capital Cost and Financial package.

NA

Copies of the Equity participation agreements and necessary approval for the foreign equity

NA

||| w

Copies of the BPTA/PPA with the beneficiaries, if any

NA

Detailed note giving reasons of cost and time over run, if applicable.

List of supporting documents to be submitted:

a.  Detailed Project Report

CPM Analysis

b.
c. PERT Chart and Bar Chart
d.  Justification for cost and time Overrun

NA

Transmission Licensee shall submit copy of Cost Audit Report along with cost accounting
records, cost details, statements, schedules etc. for the transmission system as submitted to the
Govt. of India for first two years i.e. 2019-20 and 2020-21 at the time of mid-term true-up in
2021- 22 and for balance period of tariff period 2019-24 at the time of final true-up in 2024-
25. In case of initial tariff filing the latest available Cost Audit Report should be furnished.

NA

BBMB is maintaining the records as per the relevant applicable Acts. Formats specified herein|
may not be suitable to the available information with BBMB. BBMB may modity formats
suitably as per available information to them for submission of required information for tariff

purpose.

NA

10

Any other relevant information, (Please specify)

Notel: Electronic copy of the petition (in word format) and detailed calculation as per these formats (in excel format)
and any other information submitted shall also be furnished in the form of CD/Floppy disc.

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24
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PART-11]
FORM-7

Statement of Additional Capitslisation after COD

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Poaling S/S and

Name of the transmission Asset: associated bays (Part-A)

Commercial Operation Date: 9/22/2018

A) ACE [or the year: @ (Actual/Projected)
ih)

Leasehold Land T - - - .
Building & Civil Works - - - -
Furniture & Fixtures - - - _
Office Equipments - - - .
Transmission Line - - - -
Sub-Station - - - -
PLCC - - - -

Total - - - -

Leasehold Land - - . B
Building & Civil Works| - - - .
Furniture & Fixtures - - - -
Office Equipments - - - .
Transmission Line - - - -
Sub-Station - - - -
PLCC - - - .
Tatal - - - -

Leaschold Land - - - -
Building & Civil Works| - - - -
Furniture & Fixtures - - - .
Office Equipments - - - _
Transmission Line - - - .
Sub-Station - - - -
PLCC - - - .
Total - - - -

Leasehoid Land - - - -
Building & Civil Works - - - .
Furniture & Fixtures - - - _
Office Equipments - - - B
Transmission Line - - - -
Sub-Station - - - -
PLCC - - - -

Total - - - -

Leasehotd Land - - - -
Building & Civil Works| - - - -

Furniture & Fixtures - - - -
Office Equipments - - - R
Transmission Line - - - -
Sub-Station - - . _
PLCC - - - -
Total - - - -

B) Regulation wise ACE claim on Cash basis

tegulation N Particular: 1% - 12 23
Reg. 26 2ens wnynid the original sco, .. [ |
26 (1) () Liabilities to meet award of arbitrationetc, | |
26 (1) (k) Change in law or pli afany existing law: -
26 (1) () Force Majeure Events;
26(1) (d) Need for higher security and safety ofthe plant.... -

‘Tetal Under Repulation 26 - - - - -

Note:

1. In case the true up, provide the ACE allowed in final tariff and enciose the copy of the tariff arder(s).

2. Year wise details of the Work/Equipment proposed to be added after COD upto Cut-off Date/ beyond Cut- off Date has to be provided
atong with justificarion.

In case of de-capitalisation of assets details to be fumished in Form 10B.

ETL - Part - A - Formats (ar FY20-FY24
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PART-HI
FORM-7A

Financing of Additional Capitalisation

Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

Amount capitalised in
Work/Equipment "

Financing Details
Loan - - - -

Total Loan - - - - - -

Equity * - - - - B ~ _

Total Equity - - - - - R R

Others - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - - -
Note:

| Year 1 refers to Financial Year of COD in case of new elements. For existing elements it is from 2014-15 and Year 2, Year 3 etc. are the subsequent financial years respectively.

2 Loan details for meeting the additional capitalisation requirement should be given as per FORM-9 or 9(A) whichever is relevant.
*Includes equity brought through reserves and surplus and internal cash accruals

(Petitioner)
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PART-III
FORM- 8
Calculation of Return on Equity at Normal Rate

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling

t issi t:
Name of the transmission Asse S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

-

4

inaa

(Amaunt in De T alLkal

No. of Days in the year

366

365

365

365

366

No. of days for which tariff claimed

366

365

365

365

366

Opening Normative Equity

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

Less: Adjustment in Equity*

Adjustment during the year

Net Opening Equity (Normal)

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

Add: Increase in Equity due to addition
during the year/period

Less: Decrease due to de-capitalisation
during the year

Less: Decrease due to de-capitalisation
during the year/period.

Add: Increase due to discharges during the
year/period

Closing Normative Equity

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

Average Normative Equity

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

30,185

Rate of Retum on Equity (Base Rate )

15.50%

15.50%

15.50%

15.50%

15.50%

Reduced rate of 1% decided by commission
under Regulation 30 (2) (if any)

Effective tax rate / MAT rate for the
respective years

17.47%

17.47%

17.47%

17.47%

17.47%

Rate of Retumn on Equity (Pre Tax )

18.78%

18.78%

18.78%

18.78%

18.78%

Return on Equity on project cost till Cutoff
date (Pre Tax)

5,669

5,665

5,669

5,669

5,669

Note: | Adjustment of equity as per Proviso to Regulation 18(3) of 2019 Tariff Regulations.

2. In respect to Equity infusion the Generating Company is required to substantiate with supporting documents such as board
resolutions, balance sheet/ reconciliation statement with balance sheet.

(Petitioner)
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Calculation of Weighted Average Rate of Interest on Actual Loans

Name of the transmission Asset:
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PART-III
FORM-9C

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat
Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC)

Net loan - Opening 887.04 662.39 621.87 550.66 510.14
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement 224.66 40.52 71.21 40.52 40.52
Net loan - Closing 662.39 621.87 550.66 510.14 469.62
Average Net Loan 729.52 642.13 586.26 530.40 489.88
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest paid divided

by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 105.78 93.11 85.01 76.91 71.03
Power Finance Corporation (PFC)

Net loan - Opening 349.71 261.14 245.16 217.09 201.12
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement 88.57 15.98 28.07 15.97 15.97
Net loan - Closing 261.14 245.16 217.09 201.12 185.14
Average Net Loan 287.61 253.15 231.13 209.11 193.13
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest paid divided

by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 41.70 36.71 33.51 30.32 28.00
Axis Bank

Net loan - Opening 105.40 85.50 73.89 65.40 59.98
Add: Drawai(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement 19.90 11.61 8.49 5.42 4.81
Net loan - Closing 85.50 73.89 65.40 59.98 55.16
Average Net Loan 89.88 79.70 69.65 62.69 57.57
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest paid divided
by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
[nterest on loan 13.03 11.56 10.10 9.09 8.35
Total Loan

Net loan - Opening 1,342.15 1,009.03 940.93 833.15 771.23
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Repayment (s) of Loans during the year 333.12 68.10 107.77 61.92 61.30
Net loan - Closing 1,009.03 940.93 833.15 771.23 709.93
Average Net Loan 1,175.59 974.98 887.04 802.19 740.58
Interest on loan 160.52 141.37 128.62 116.32 107.38
14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%

Weighted average Rate of interest on Loans

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24




Calculation of Interest on Normative Loan

Name of the transmission Asset:
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PART-II
FORM-9E

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling S/8 and

associated bays (Part-A)

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24

| (Amnuntin Po Tabal
; @ |
- Z 3 4 > [

Gross Normative loan - Opening 87,695 87,695 87,695 87,695 37,695
)(ll:ar;lulatwe repayment of Normative Loan upto previous 3257 9,481 15,705 21,929 28,153
Net Normative loan - Opening 34,438 78,214 71,990 65,766 59,542
Increase/Decrease due to ACE/de- capitalization during
the Year ) ) ) )
Repayments of Normative Loan during the year 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224
Net Normative loan - Closing 78,214 71,990 65,766 59,542 53,318
Average Normative Loan 81,326 75,102 68,878 62,654 56,430
Weighted average Rate of Interest of actual Loans 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on Normative loan for the Period/Year 11,792 10,890 9,987 9,085 8,182
Note:
1. At the time of true-up net savings as a result of refinancing of loans may be provided along with adjustments of sharing.

(retutioner)



Name of the transmission Asset:

Calculation of Depreciation Rate
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PART-III
FORM- 10

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling /S and associated bays (Part-A)

1 2 6= average(col.2,col.4)
X Col.5

1 Transmission Line 114,018 114,018 5.28% 6,020

2 Substation eqipments 3,861 3,861 5.28% 204

3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -

4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -

5 PLCC - - 6.33% -

6 Furniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -

7 Building & Civil Works - - 3.34% -

8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 117,879 117,879 5.28% 6,224
Weighted Average Rate of
Depreciation (%) 5.28%

—
1 2 6= average(col.2,col.4)
X Col.5

1 Transmission Line 114,018 114,018 5.28% 6,020

2 Substation equipments 3,861 3,861 5.28% 204

3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -

4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -

5 PLCC - - 6.33% -

6 Fumiture / Fixture - - 6.33% -

7 Building & Civil Works - - 3.34% -

8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 117,879 117,879 5.28% 6,224
Weighted Average Rate of 5.28%

{ 2 6= average(col.2,col.4)
X Col5

1 Transmission Line 114,018 114,018 5.28% 6,020

2 Substation eqipments 3,861 3,861 5.28% 204

3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -

4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -

5 PLCC - - 6.33% -

6 Fumniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -

7 Civil Works & Building - - 3.34% -

8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 117,879 117,879 5.28% 6,224
Weighted Average Rate of
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Calculation of Depreciation Rate
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PART-III
FORM- 10

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling $/S and associated bays (Part-A)

_ 6= average(col.2,col.4)
! : 4 i X Col.5
1 Transmission Line 114,018 114,018 3.28% 6,020
2 Substation eqipments 3,861 3,861 5.28% 204
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
3 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Furmniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 117,879 117,879 5.28% 6,224
Weighted Average Rate of 5.28%
6= average(col.2,col.4)
1 z 4 5 X Col.5
1 Transmission Line 114,018 114,018 5.28% 6,020
2 Substation egipments 3.861 3,861 5.28% 204
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 117,879 117,879 5.28% 6,224
Weighted Average Rate of 5.28%

Note:

1. Name of the Assets should conform to the description of the assets mentioned in Depreciation Schedule appended to the Notification.

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Statement of Depreciation
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PART-III
FORM- 10A

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling $/S and associated bays

(Part-A)
I (Amnunt in Do T abinl
a 1222
W) s = ) (0) (7 )
1 Opening Capital Cost 117,879 117,879 117,879 117,879 117,879
2 Closing Capital Cost 117,879 117,879 117,879 117,879 117,879
3 Average Capital Cost 117,879 117,879 117,879 117,879 117,879
4 Freehold land - - - - -
5 Rate of depreciation 5.28% 5.28% 5.28% 5.28% 5.28%
6 Depreciable value 106,091 106,091 106,091 106,091 106,091
7 Balance useful life at the beginning of the
period
8 Remaining depreciable value 102,834 96,610 90,386 84,162 77,938
9 Depreciation (for the period) 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224
10 Depreciation (annualised) 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224 6,224
1 Cur.nulative depreciation at the end of the 9,481 15,705 21,929 28,153 34377
period”
12 Less: Cumulative depreciation adjustment ) i ) i )
on account of de-capitalisation
13 Net Cu.mu[ative depreciation at the end of 9,481 15,705 21,929 28,153 34377
the period
(Petitioner)
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Caiculation of Interest on Working Capital

Name of the transmission Asset:
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PART-III
FORM- 11

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant —

Sipat Pooling $/S and associated bays (Part-A)

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24

. “ 4 > 0 7 8
1 O & M Expenses 47 49 50 52 54
2 Maintenance Spares 84 87 90 94 97
3 Receivables 3,028 2,923 2,810 2,700 2,588
4 Total Working Capital 3,160 3,059 2,951 2,846 2,739
5 Rate of Interest 12.05% 11.25% 10.50% 10.50% 12.00%
6 Interest on Working Capital 381 344 310 299 329
(Petitioner)
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PART-III
FORM- 15
Summary of issue involved in the petition
| [Name of the Petitioner Essar Transco Limited
2|Petition Category Transmission
3|Tariff Period 2019-24
400 kV D/C transmission line from
Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat
Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-
4{Name of the Project A)
5|Investment Approval date
6|SCOD of the Project
7)Actual COD of the project 43,365
8| Whether entire scope is covered in the present petition. Yes
9{No. of Assets covered in instant petition 1
10{No. of Assets having time over run Nil
11 [Estimated Project Cost as per IA
12}Is there any REC? if so, provide the date No
13|Revised Estimated Project Cost (if any) Nil
14{Completion cost for all the assets covered in the instant petition
15{No. of Assets covered in instant petition and having cost overrun | Nil
16|Prayer in brief
17]|Key details and any Specific issue involved
18]Respondents
Name of Respondents
Central Transmission Utility of India Limited
Power grid Corporation of India Limited
Power system Operation Corporation Limited
Western Region Power Committee
M.P. Power Management Company Limited
Western Regional Load Despatch Centre
Mahan Energen Limited(formerly Essar Power M.P. Limited)
Petitioner
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Summary of Capital Cost & Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) Claimed for ALL the assets covered in the present petition.

Name of the Petitioner
Tariff Period 2019-24

Name of the Transmission Project

COD of the Project{if entire scope of project is completed)

Essar Transco Limited
2019-24

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling S/S and

associated bays (Part-A)

A) Summary of Capital Cost as on COD and Additional Capital Expenditure claimed for all the assets Covered in the instant petition.

6. No Asset cop Cut off — Summary of Actual / Projected Capital Cost Cap;ga(::?ost
. No. n 31-03-

No. date 2019 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 31.03.2024
1 Part-A 9/22/2018| 3/31/2021 117,879 - - - - - 117,879
Total Capital Cost Claimed 117,879

B) Summary of Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) claimed for all the assets covered in the instant petition.

Sr. No. A;:“ 201920 | 2020-21 | 202122 | 202223 | 2023-24

I Part-A 24629 23,710 22.794 21.901 21,050
Total AFC for all

the Assets 24629 23710 22,794 21,901 21,050

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY20-FY24
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Annexure-5B

Appendix-I

PART-III

TARIFF FILING FORMS (TRANSMISSION &
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM)

FOR TRUE UP OF TARIFF
FY 2019-20 to FY 2023-24
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INDEX
PART-1I1
Checklist of Forms and other information/ documents for tariff filing for Transmission
FORM. 4 Apstract of existing transmission assets/elements under project, Determination of Effective
COD and Weighted Average Life for single AFC for the project as whole. NA
[FORM- 4A Statement of Capital cost NA
Statement of Capital Works in Progress NA
Abstract of Capital Cost Estimates and Schedule of Commissioning for the New
Project/Element NA
Element wise Break-up of Project/Asset/Element Cost for Transmission System or
FORM-5 L
Communication System NA
FORM-5A Break-up of Construction/Supply/Service packages NA
FORM-SR Details of all the assets covered in the project NA
Actual Cash Expenditure and Financial Package up to COD Y
Statement of Additional Capitalisation after COD Y
Financing of Additional Capitalisation Y
Statement of Additional Capitalisation during five year before the end of the useful life of the
FORM- 7B .
project. NA
Calculation of Return on Equity Y
Details of Foreign Equity NA
Details of Allocation of corporate loans to various transmission elements NA
Details of Project Specific Loans NA
Details of Foreign loans NA
Calculation of Weighted Average Rate of Interest on Actual Loans Y
Loans in Foreign Currency NA
Calculation of Interest on Normative Loan Y
Calculation of Depreciation Rate Y
Statement of Depreciation Y
Statement of De-capitalisation NA
Calculation of Interest on Working Capital Y
Details of time over run NA
Incidental Expenditure during Construction NA
Calculation of IDC & Financing Charges NA
Breakup of Initial spares NA
Non-Tariff Income NA
Summary of issue involved in the petition Y
Summary of Capital Cost & Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) Claimed for ALL the assets covered in
the present petition. Y

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24
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Checklist of Forms and other information/ documents for tariff filing for Transmission
System & Communication System
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PART-III

[N ar To bt P

e e v manaa; A wALeRAVEMLA AW ULHILIWLAMAIGL UL 13 UDILCDD, IYLICHTULE UL (SN

Association, & Articles of Association (For New Project(s) setup by a company making tariff
application for the first time to CERC)

NA

Region wise and Corporate audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts with all the
Schedules & annexures for the new Transmission System & Communication System for the
relevant years.

NA

Copies of relevant loan Agreements

NA

Copies of the approval of Competent Authority for the Capital Cost and Financial package.

NA

Copies of the Equity participation agreements and necessary approval for the foreign equity

NA

[=23 L) oy QOS]

Copies of the BPTA/PPA with the beneficiaries, if any

NA

Detailed note giving reasons of cost and time over run, if applicable.

List of supporting documents to be submitted:

a.  Detailed Project Report

CPM Analysis

b
c. PERT Chart and Bar Chart
d. Justification for cost and time Overrun

NA

Transmission Licensee shall submit copy of Cost Audit Report along with cost accounting
records, cost details, statements, schedules etc. for the transmission system as submitted to the
Govt. of India for first two years i.e. 2019-20 and 2020-21 at the time of mid-term true-up in
2021- 22 and for balance period of tariff period 2019-24 at the time of final true-up in 2024-
25. In case of initial tariff filing the latest available Cost Audit Report should be furnished.

NA

BBMB is maintaining the records as per the relevant applicable Acts. Formats specified herein|
may not be suitable to the available information with BBMB. BBMB may modify formats
suitably as per available information to them for submission of required information for tariff

purpose.

NA

10

Any other relevant information, (Please specify)

Notel: Electronic copy of the petition (in word format) and detailed calculation as per these formats (in excel format)
and any other information submitted shall also be furnished in the form of CD/Floppy disc.
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240

PART-III
FORM- 1
Summary of Tariff
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
|
1.1 |Depreciation Form 10A 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
1.2 |Interest on Loan Form 9E 3,379 3,121 2,862 2,603 2,345
1.3 |Return on Equity' Form 8 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625
1.4 [Interest on Working Capital Form 11 107 96 87 83 91
1.5 |O & M Expenses Form 2 107 110 114 118 123
Total 7,001 6,735 6,471 6,213 5,967

Note: This Form is a summary form and the Data to this from should flow from other base forms.

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24
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PART-III
FORM- 1
Summary of Tariff

Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mabhan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Al Summarv af (Canital Mact Maanc af Tinanan nfshn Aanas

11QLSLUSDIVLL LALIG 23,117
Substation eqipments - - - - - - -
Free hold Land - - - - - - -
Leasehold Land - - - - - - -
PLCC - - - - - - -
Furniture / Fixture - - - - - - -
Building & Civil Works - - - - - - -
Office Equipments - - - - - - -
Total 33,779 - - - - - 33,779

Petitioner
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Details of Transmission Lines,

Name of the transmisgion Asset:

400 k¥ D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

System covered in the project scope and Q&M for instant asset

242

PART-HH
Form 2

Summ _ _
0&M I the it 2. 023
Normauve rae oF &, - - o g o v o o FOUIL (runuieu LunuuGiuL
with four or more sub-conductors) 142 1.47 1.52
Length in km 337 337 337
0&M Claimed 476 493 510
2) Substations
| | | [ 1
1 I | 1 1
ation covered im the instant petitio i @

Normative rate of Q&M as per Regulation

No. of Bays

0&M Claimed

1
T

Note: |. Number of bays is inclusive of line bays, ICT bays, reactor bays etc. Each ICT bays, line bays. reactor bays shall be cansidered separately for purpose of O8M expenses.
2. The MVA Capacity shall exclude the capacity of reactor, FSE, Stat Com
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Normative Parameters considered for tariff calculations

400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

244

PART-II
FORM-3

Vaar Endina Mawah

2
1 V/ 4 ) v / 2]

Base Rate of Return on Equity % 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50%
Base Rate of Return on Equity on Additional %
Capitalization after Cut-off Date' ’
Tax Rate % 17.472% 17.472% 17.472% 17.472% 17.472%
Effective Tax Rate’
Grossed-up Rate of Return on Equity % 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78%
Target Availability - AC System % 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%
Normative O&M per km Rs. Lakh
Normative O&M per bay Rs. Lakh As shown in Form 2
Normative O&M per MVA Rs. Lakh
Spares for WC as % of O&M % 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%
Receivables in Days for WC Days 45 45 45 45 45
Bank Rate as on first day of financial year’ %o 12.05% 11.25% 10.50% 10.50% 12.00%
1. The additional capitalization on account of Change-in-Law to be excluded and To be equivalent to Weighted Average Rate of Loan
in accordance with first Proviso to Regulation 30.
2. To be supported by necessary documents and calculations. Effective tax rate is to be computed in accordance with Regulation 31
i.e. actual tax (or estimated tax)/gross income, where gross income refers the profit before tax.
3. For Tariff Petition, it should be 1.4.2019, while for True-up Petition, it should be 1st April of the respective financial years.

Petitioner
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Financing of Additional Capitalisation

Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

11

246

PART-III
FORM-7A

14

Amount capitalised in 1
Work/Equipment

Financing Details

Loan - - -

Total Loan - - - - - -

Equity * - - - - _ _

Total Equity - - - - - -

Others - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

Note:
1 Year | refers to Financial Year of COD in case of new elements. For existing elements it is from 2014-15 and Year 2, Year 3 etc

2 Loan details for meeting the additional capitalisation requirement should be given as per FORM-9 or 9(A) whichever is relevant.
*Includes equity brought through reserves and surplus and internal cash accruals

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24
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PART-III
FORM- 8
Calculation of Return on Equity at Normal Rate
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
i TR )
. ‘ 3 4 > ) 7
No. of Days in the year 366 365 365 365 366
No. of days for which tariff claimed 366 365 365 365 366
Opening Normative Equity 8,650 8,650 8,650 8,650 8,650

Less: Adjustment in Equity* - - - - -
Adjustment during the year - - - - -
Net Opening Equity (Normal) 8,650 8,630 8,650 8,650 8,650
Add: Increase in Equity due to addition
during the year/period - - - - .
Less: Decrease due to de-capitalisation
during the year - - - - -
Less: Decrease due to de-capitalisation

during the year/period. - - - - -
Add: Increase due to discharges during the

year/period - - - - -
Closing Normative Equity 8,650 8,650 8,650 8,650 8,650
Average Normative Equity 8,650 8,650 8,650 8,650 8,650
Rate of Return on Equity (Base Rate ) 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50%

Reduced rate of 1% decided by commission
under Regulation 30 (2) (if any)
Effective tax rate / MAT rate for the

respective years 17.47% 17.47% 17.47% 17.47% 17.47%
Rate of Return on Equity (Pre Tax ) 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78%
Return on Equity on project cost till Cutoff

date (Pre Tax) 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625

Note: 1 Adjustment of equity as per Proviso to Regulation 18(3) of 2019 Tariff Regulations.
2. In respect to Equity infusion the Generating Company is required to substantiate with supporting documents such as board
resolutions, balance sheet/ reconciliation statement with balance sheet.

(I ELILUNEr)
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PART-III
FORM- 9C
Calculation of Weighted Average Rate of Interest on Actual Loans
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
P- Mo
; o g
1
Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC)
Net loan - Opening : 887.04 662.39 621.87 550.66 510.14
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement 224.66 40.52 71.21 40.52 40.52
L Net loan - Closing 662.39 621.87 550.66 510.14 469.62
| Average Net Loan 729.52 642.13 586.26 530.40 489.88
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest paid divided
by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 105.78 93.11 85.01 76.91 71.03
Power Finance Corporation (PFC)
Net loan - Opening 349.71 261.14 245.16 217.09 201.12
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement 88.57 15.98 28.07 15.97 15.97
Net loan - Closing 261.14 245.16 217.09 201.12 185.14
Average Net Loan 287.61 253.15 231.13 209.11 193.13
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest paid divided
by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 41.70 36.71 33.51 30.32 28.00
3 [|Axis Bank 1
Net loan - Opening 105.40 85.50 73.89 65.40 59.98
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - -] -
Less: Net Loan Movement 19.90 11.61 8.49 5,@ 4.81
Net loan - Closing 85.50 73.89 65.40 59.98 T 55.16
Average Net Loan 89.88 79.70 69.65 62.69 | 57.57
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest paid divided
by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 13.03 11.56 10.10 9.09 8.35
Total Loan
Net loan - Opening 1,342.15 1,009.03 940.93 833.15 771.23
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year - - - - -
Less: Repayment (s) of Loans during the year 333.12 68.10 107.77 61.92 61.30
Net loan - Closing 1,009.03 940.93 833.15 771.23 709.93
Average Net Loan 1,175.59 974.98 887.04 802.19 740.58
Interest on loan 160.52 141.37 128.62 116.32 107.38
Weighted average Rate of interest on Loans 14.50% 14 sno% 14 &no. "1.50%| 14.50%
{Fetmoner)

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24




249

PART-III
FORM-9E
Calculation of Interest on Normative Loan

Name of the transmission Asset:

400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

(Amannt in De T bl

] b 2
1 £ 3 4 5
Gross Normative loan - Opening 25,129 25,129 25,129 25,129 25,129
S:ar;lulatlve repayment of Normative Loan upto previous 933 2717 4,500 6.284 $.067
Net Normative loan -~ Opening 24,196 22,413 20,629 18,846 17,062
Increase/Decrease due to ACE/de- capitalization during ) ) ) )
the Year
Repayments of Normative Loan during the year 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
Net Normative loan - Closing 22,413 20,629 18,846 17,062 15,278
Average Normative Loan 23,304 21,521 19,737 17,954 16,170
Weighted average Rate of Interest of actual Loans 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on Normative loan for the Period/Year 3,379 3,121 2,862 2,603 2,345
Note:
1. At the time of true-up net savings as a result of refinancing of loans may be provided along with adjustments of sharing.
(Petitioner)
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Calculation of Depreciation Rate

400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
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PART-III
FORM- 10

) . 6= average(col.2,col.4)
! 2 4 ° X Col.3
1 Transmission Line 33,779 33,779 5.28% 1,784
2 Substation eqipments - - 5.28% -
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - 6.33% -
7 Building & Civil Works - - 3.34% -
g Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 33,779 33,779 5.28% 1,784
Weighted Average Rate of
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
T
6=average(col.2,col.4)
1 2 4 3 X Col.5
1 Transmission Line 33,779 33,779 5.28% 1,784
2 Substation equipments - - 5.28% -
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leaschold Land - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
7 Building & Civil Works - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 33,779 33,779 5.28% 1,784
Weighted Average Rate of 5.28%
6= average(col.2,col.4)
! z 4 5 X Col.5
1 Transmission Line 33,779 33,779 5.28% 1,784
2 Substation eqipments - - 5.28% -
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equipments - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 33,779 33,779 5.28% 1,784
Weighted Average Rate of
Depreciation (%) S-28%
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Calculation of Depreciation Rate

400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
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PART-III
FORM- 10

- 6= average(col.2,col.4)
! 2 3 4 > X Col.5

1 Transmission Line 33,779 - 33,779 5.28% 1,784

2 Substation eqipments - - - 5.28% -

3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -

4 Leasehold Land - - - 3.34% -

5 PLCC - - - 6.33% -

6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -

7 Civil Works & Building - - - 3.34% -

8 Office Equipments - - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 33,779 - 33,779 5.28% 1,784
Weighted Average Rate of 5.28%
6= average(col.2,col.4)

i B 3 4 5 X Col.5

1 Transmission Line 33,779 - 33,779 5.28% 1,784

2 Substation eqipments - - - 3.28% -

3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -

4 Leaschold Land - - - 3.34% -

5 PLCC - - - 6.33% -

6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -

7 Civil Works & Building - - - 3.34% -

8 Office Equipments - - - 6.33% -
TOTAL 33,779 - 33,779 5.28% 1,784
Weighted Average Rate of 5.28%

Note:

1. Name of the Assets should conform to the description of the assets mentioned in Depreciation Schedule anmended tn tha Natificatinn

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24
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PART-III
FORM- 10A
Statement of Depreciation
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
| nRe Tokml
n n
9] ) (., 1C7] \J] (/} )]
1 Opening Capital Cost 33,779 33,779 33,779 33,779 33,779
2 Closing Capital Cost 33,779 33,779 33,779 33,779 33,779
3 Average Capital Cost 33,779 33,779 33,779 33,779 33,779
4 Freehold land - - - - -
5 Rate of depreciation 3.28% 5.28% 5.28% 5.28% 5.28%
6 Depreciable value 30,401 30,401 30,401 30,401 30,401
7 Balance useful life at the beginning of the
period
8 Remaining depreciable value 29,468 27,684 25,901 24,117 22,334
9 Depreciation (for the period) 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
10 Depreciation (annualised) 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
1 Cur.nulftlve depreciation at the end of the 2717 4,500 6.284 8.067 9,851
period
12 Less: Cumulative depreciation adjustment i ) ) i
on account of de-capitalisation
13 Net Cu'mulatxve depreciation at the end of 2717 4,500 6.284 8,067 9,851
the period

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24
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PART-IIL
FORM- 11
Calculation of Interest on Working Capital
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
FA i naana 2 TR, T -I_L\I
1 Z q 5 6 7 8
1 O & M Expenses 9 9 10 10 10
2 Maintenance Spares 16 17 17 18 18
3 Receivables 861 830 798 766 734
4 Total Working Capital 886 856 824 794 762
5 Rate of Interest 12.05% 11.25% 10.50% 10.50% 12.00%
6 Interest on Working Capital 107 96 87 83 91
(retitioner)
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PART-III
FORM- 15
Summary of issue involved in the petition
| {Name of the Petitioner Essar Transco Limited
2|Petition Category Transmission
3[Tariff Period 2019-24
400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat
4[Name of the Project Transmission Line (Part-B)
5)Investment Approval date
6/SCOD of the Project
7|Actual COD of the project 43,365
8] Whether entire scope is covered in the present petition. Yes
9|No. of Assets covered in instant petition 1
10|No. of Assets having time over run Nil
11]Estimated Project Cost as per IA
12}Is there any REC? if so, provide the date No
13|Revised Estimated Project Cost (if any) Nil
14{Completion cost for all the assets covered in the instant petition
15|No. of Assets covered in instant petition and having cost overrun | Nil
16|Prayer in brief Approval of Tariff for Mahan - Sipat
17|Key details and any Specific issue involved
18[Respondents
Name of Respondents
Central Transmission Utility of India Limited
Power grid Corporation of India Limited
Power system Operation Corporation Limited
Western Region Power Committee
M.P. Power Management Company Limited
Western Regional Load Despatch Centre
Mahan Energen Limited(formerly Essar Power M.P. Limited)
¥ ouuuner
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Summary of Capital Cost & Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) Claimed for ALL the assets covered in the present petition.

Name of the Petitioner Essar Transco Limited
Tariff Period 2019-24 2019-24
Name of the Transmission Project 400 kV D/C Mahan - Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

COD of the Project(if entire scope of project is completed)

A) Summary of Capital Cost as on COD and Additional Capital Expenditure claimed for all the assets Covered in the instant petition.

S N Asset cop Cut off — Summary of Actual / Projected Capital Cost Capal:a;nCost
No. date 2019 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 31.03.2024

1 Part-B 9/22/2018( 3/31/2021 33,779 - - - - - 33,779
Total Capital Cost Claimed 33,779
B) Summary of Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) claimed for all the assets covered in the instant petition.

Sr. No. A;Z“ 201920 | 202021 | 202122 | 202223 | 202324

1 Part-B 7,001 6,735 6,471 6,213 5,967
Total AFC for all

the Assets 7,001 6,735 6,471 6,213 5,967

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY20-FY24
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1/30428/2023 Annexure-6

T G Government of India
fa=y@ #=Ter ™/ Ministry of Power
¥ faega TTfa=F<01/ Central Electricity Authority
R ol s ua e R semr

Power System Engineering & Technology Development Division

Date: 20.09.2023
GEIE:R

<as per attached list>

fawa: Installation of Online Insulating Oil Dry Out System for Transformer of 400 kV
and above Voltage class-reg.

TR

A reliable and quality power supply is an essential requirement in today’s
environment. The availability of secure and reliable quality power supply is not only
essential but also instils the confidence in the minds of the investors from over the block to
establish their production houses and institutions in the country. A firm power supply also
improves the rating of India in Ease of Doing Business (EODB).

The moisture content over a permissible limit in the insulating oil of the
transformers/reactors is mainly responsible for the deteriorating dielectric properties of the
oil. The moisture-laden deteriorated oil in the transformer/reactor is the major cause of poor
insulating properties of the insulating and cooling oil, such oil leads to the failure of
transformers/reactors.

In view of the above, it is necessary that the moisture contents in the transformers be
continuously monitored and controlled through proper means. The “On-Line Transformer
Oil Drying Out System (One Line TODOS)” installed on the transformer measures and
controls the moisture contents in the transformer oil to the desired level. The system is
permanently installed with the Transformer and it continuously keeps on removing the
moisture while the transformer/reactor is in the charged stage, till the user-defined pre-set
moisture level condition is attained. The transformer/reactor oil is circulated through a
series of Cylinders filled with specially designed cartridges that absorb moisture as well as
remove solid contaminants from the oil. This process removes moisture from the
Transformer/ Reactor oil as well as the “cellulose insulation”. During the filtration process
moisture PPM level is continuously monitored

Online Insulating Oil Dry Out System is capable of returning meaningful benefits for
vet transformer which cannot be spared from its normal duty cycle since it does not
|uire transformer outage, the downtime is avoided while the moisture removal is still in
»gress. The benefits of Online Insulating Dry out Systems for transformers are well-

At Ao, & waw, 9T, %, -, 75 fieet-110066 =i 011-26732304 £ jeETEE.Www.cea.nic.in
3™ Floor, Sewa Bhawan, R.K Puram-1, New Delhi-110066 Telefax: 011-26732304 Emai bsite: www.cea.nic.in
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documented including enhanced reliability, reduced maintenance costs, and prolonged
transformer lifespan.

Clause 46(1)(a) of Central Electricity Authority (Technical Standards for
Construction of Electrical Plants and Electric Lines) Regulations, 2022 states that “Power '
transformer manufactured, tested and commissioned as per Central
Electricity autnoruy's “Standard Specifications and Technical Parameters for
Transformers and reactors (66 kV and above)”. Section-2.15 of Chapter-6 and Annexure-
U of Standard Specifications and Technical Parameters for Transformers and Reactors (66
kV and above), specifies the use of an Online Insulating Oil Dry Out System for 400 kV
and above class of Transformers and Reactors.

However, representations have been received in CEA that Utilities are not following
the requirement of the installation of an Online Insulating Oil Dry Out System. It is
highlighted here that Transformers are the main pillar of the Power System. Any failure of
the transformer would have an adverse impact on the power supply in the system.
Therefore, necessary equipment which are crucial for the health and reliability of the
Transformer needs to be mandatorily installed.

In fact, for the total health monitoring system of the transformer and other associated
equipment, an online electrical asset monitoring system need to be installed that can
monitor all medium voltage and high’ voltage electrical assets like GIS, AIS, Breakers,
Power Cables including Transformers for condition-based maintenance. TODOS system
shall be capable of monitoring and controlling the moisture contents of the oil in the
transformer and will form part of the integrated system, if not so it can function as it is also.

TODOS an
transformers, incluuiug varsuuyg anu new UAUSIVLIIETS; S04l SUPPOTT cloud {101) and on-
premise installation and provide access to electrical asset health dashboards on engineer’s
PC, Mobile, Laptops, or tablets. Utilities are advised to install the TODOS system even for
the transformers at a voltage lower than 400 kV also.

Regulations/Guidelines/Recommendations and report the status to CEA on regular basis.

This issues with the approval of the Competent Authority.

05 SO 1 A
fA2a+/Director

Py 4
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Attached list
Chairman & Managing Director, Managing Director,
owergrid Corporation of India Ltd., Himachal Pradesh Power Development
Saudamini, Plot No. 2, Sector-29, Corporation Ltd.
Gurgaon-122001 (Haryana) Barowalia House, Khalini
h - 01249871800 Shimia - 171004
Chairman Managing Director
Bhakra Beas Management Road, Sector - [Karnataka Power Transmission Corporation Ltd.,
19B. Madhva Mare Chandigarh — 160019|1st floor, Kaveri Bhawan, K. G. Road, Bangalore-
560009
Ph -NRN-77714247)

Chairman & Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director

Uttar Pradesh Power Transmission Transmission Corporation of Andhra Pradesh Limited
Corporation Ltd. Vidyut Soudha, Gunadala, Eluru Rd,

Shakti Bhawan, 14-A, Ashok Marg, Viiavawada. Andhra Pradesh 520004

T ucknow- 226001

Director (Operations) Managing Director

Maharashtra State Electricity Gujarat Energy Transmission Corporation Ltd. Sardar
Transmission Company Ltd., Patel Vidyut Bhawan,

C-19, E-Block Prakashganga, Bandra-  Race Course, Vadodara- 390 007

Kurla Complex Bandra(E), Ph.: 0265-2353085

Mumbai 400 051.

IPh - N27_7A47A0NQ

Chairman & Managing Director Director (Operations)

Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Prasaran Nigam Ltd. Vidyut
Bhawan, Jyoti Nagar

Jaipur (Raiasthan) Ph_: 0141-2740R14

Orissa Power Transmission Corporation

Ltd.
hanna‘rh Rhuhaneswar- 751 1272

CLIC.DdALULWWUPLIVL. LU, 1L

Chairman & Managing Director, Delhi  |[Managing Director

Transco. Ltd. Assam Electricity Grid Corporation Ltd. Bijulee
Shakti Sadan, Kotla Marg, New Delhi — [Bhawan,
110002 md@dtl.oov.in Paltan Bazar.

agmtoperation i .dti@gmail
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anaging Director,

Power Transmission Corporation
of Uttarakhand Ltd.

Vidyut Bhawan, Saharnpur Road,
Near [.S.B.T. Crossing, Dehradun
[Jttarakhand — 248002

Managing Director

TANTRANSCO

10th Floor/NPKRR Malikai, No. 144 Anna
Salai, Chennai-600002

IPh.: 044-28521057

Managing Director
Madhya Pradesh Power
Transmission Company Ltd.
Shakti Bhawan, Rampur,
Jabalpur(MP) - 482 008
Ph.: 0761-2661234

SdIyeeV.Srvastavaod(@gmail.co

Chief Engineer (Transmission)
Jharkhand Urja Sancharan Nigam Ltd.
(JUSNL) Engineering Buliding,

HFC Dhirwa Ranchi — 834004

West Bengal State Electricity
Transmission Company Ltd
(WBSETCL)

'Vidyut Bhawan, Block-DJ,
Sector-II. Ridhan Nagoar Kolkata-
700 091

Chairman
Haryana Vidyut Prasaran Nigam Ltd. Shakti
Bhawan Qartnr NIn A Panchlila _ 134109,

Haryanz

Chairman & Managing Director,
Punjab State Transmission
Corporation Ltd. The Mall, Mall
oad,

Patiala — 147001. Punjab

Chairman & Managing Director,
Transmission Corporation of
}Telangana Ltd.

'Vidyut Soudha, Khairatabad,
Hvderahad — SNNNK?D

Chairman & Managing Director,

SJVN Limited,

Shakti Sadan, Corporate Office,

Complex Shanan, Shimla - 171006 Himachal
[Pradesh

IVIANAZINg LIIECtor,

Bihar State Power Transmission Company
Ltd. Vidyut Bhawan, Bailey Road

Patna — R0ONO2 1

ivianaging pirector,
Jammu & Kashmir State Power
Transmission Corporation Ltd.

[Exhibition Ground, Srinagar
(TR _ 1QNnNNG

Chairman & Managing Director TANGEDCO
10th Floor/NPKR Ramasamy Malikai, No.
144, Anna Salai, Chennai — 600 002

Chairman & Managing Directar

| Chairman & Managing Director,
‘hhattisgarh State Power Transmission
.ompany Limited,
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Shillong- 793 001.

Chief Engineer (P)

Manipur Electricity Department
Govt. of Manipur,

Manipur Sectt.

South Block, Imphal, Manipur- 795
001. md.mspcl@gmail.com
ed.tech.mspcl@gmail.com

liallall & vlalagling 121recior,
M/s ReNew Transmission Ventures
Private Limited

Chief Engineer
Nagaland Deptt. of Power, Kohima
797 001 Naealand

Chairman & Managing Director
Tripura State Elecy. Corporation
Ltd. Govt. of Tripura, Bidyut
Bhawan Agartala- 799 001.
managing.director@tsecl.in
director.technical@tsecl.in

Lnier engineer (Power) Department of
Power

Govt. of Arunachal Pradesh Itanagar
(Arunachal PradeshY — 791 111

Lnairman
Assam Power Generation corporation
Ltd.,

Bijulee Bhawan, Paltan Bazar,
Guwahati

Assam.

cgm.ppd@acegcl.co.in
anjanjc.aegcl@gmail.com
gm.mpr@aegcl.co.in

Managing Director Chairman & Managing Director
Sikkim Power Development Block-1 Neyveli-607 801 NLC India
Corporation Ltd. Limited Cuddalare District, Tamilnadu
31-A, N.H. Way,

Gangtok- -737 101

Managing Director Secretary Puducherry Elecy.

Jammu & Kashmir State Power
Development Corporation Ltd,
PDD Building, Exhibition Grounds,
Opposite High Court, Jahangir
Chowk, Srinagar (J&K) 190009

Department Secretariat, Puducherry-
605001

Commissioner-cum-Secretary(P)
Andaman and Nicobar Electricity
Department,Secretariat, Andaman
and Nicobar Islands, Port Blair-
744101

Secretary Lakshadweep Elecy.
Department U.T. of Lakshyadeep
Kavaratti- 682555

Chairman & Managing Director
National Hydro Power Corporation
Ltd. Corporate Office, NHPC

Chairman & Managing Director
Damodar Valley Corp. Head Quarter
DVC Towers, VIP Road Kolkata-
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Office Complex, Sector 33, 700054
Faridabad- 121003, Haryana
Chairman & Managing Director Chairman

NPCIL Nabhikiya Urja Bhavan,
Anushaktinagar, Mumbai-400094

Jharkhand Urja Utpadan Nigam Ltd.
Engineering Building, HEC Dhurwa,
Ranchi-834004

Managing Director

Karnataka Power Corporation
Limited No. 82, Shakthi Bhavan,
Race Course Road, Bengaluru —
560001

Chairman & Managing Director West
Bengal Power Development
Corporation Ltd.(WBPDCL) Bidyut
Unnayan Bhaban, plot 3/C, LABlock,
Sector-I1I, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700
098

Chairman & Managing Director

U.P. Rajya Vidyut Utpadan Nigam
Ltd., Shakti Bhawan,14- Ashok
Marg, Lucknow226001

Chief Engineer(Elect.)

Goa Electricity Department Vidyut
Bhawan, Panaji, Goa- 403001

Chairman & Managing Director
Pragati Power Corporation Limited
Himadri, Rajghat Power House
Complex, New Delhi — 110002

Managing Director

Mabharashtra State Power Generation
Co. Ltd. Prakashgad, Plot No. G-9, 4th
Floor Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051

Managing Director

Madhya Pradesh Power Generating
Co. Ltd. Shakti Bhawan,
Vidyutnagar, P.O. Jabalpur- 482
00R

Managing Director

Chbhattisgarh State Power Generation
Company Ltd., Vidyut Seva Bhawan
P.O. Sunder Nagar, Danganiya, Raipur-
497 N13(Chhatticoarh)

Managing Director
Haryana Power Generation Corpn.
Ltd. Urja bhawan, C-7, Sector-6

Chairman & Managing Director,
Telangana State Power Generation
Corporation Limited, Vidyut Soudha,
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Pr. Secretary (Power), Government
of Assam, Assam Sachivalaya
Dispur — 781006 Assam

Spl. Secretary (Power),
Government of Chhattisgarh,
Mantralaya, Naya Raipur 492002,
(Chhatticoarh

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Bihar

Urja Vibhag, Daroga Prasad Rai Path
Patna — 800001. Rihar

Secretary (Power), Government of Goa,

Secretariat. Porvorim 403521, Goa

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Gujarat, Block
No.5/5, New Sachivalaya,
Gandhinacar IR?2010 Gaigrgt

Secretary (Power), Government of
Haryana, New Secretariat, Sector-
17

Chandigarh — 160017

Principal Secretary (Power),
Government of Haryana, New

Secretariat, Sector-17, Chandigarh —
160017

Secretary (Energy), Government of
Himachal Pradesh, H.P. Secretariat
Shimla — 171007 HP

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Jharkhand, MDI
Building, Dhurwa, Ranchi —
R34004. Tharlchand

Addl. Chief Secretary (Energy),
Government of Karnataka, Vikas
Soudha, Dr. Ambedkar Road,
Bangalore — 560001. Kamataka

Principal Secretary (Power),
Government of Kerala, Secretariat
Thiruvananthapuram - 695 001,
Kerala

Secretary (Energy), Government of
Madhya Pradesh, Mantralaya,
Vallabh Bhawan, Bhopal — 462001,
M.P.

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Madhya Pradesh,
Mantralaya, Vallabh Bhawan
Bhonal — 462001 M P

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Maharashtra,
Mantralava. Mumbai 400032

Secretary (Power), Government of
Manipur, New Secretariat, Imphal
795001. Maninur

Secretary (Power), Government of
Meghalaya, Meghalaya Civil

Qecrratariat Qhillana  702NN1

|

Secretary (Power), Government of

Mizoram, Mizoram Secretariat
Ai7zwal 796001 Mizaram

Secretary (Power), Government of
Nagaland, New Secretariat Complex
Kohima 797004. Nagaland
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Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Odisha, Secretariat,
Rhihanechwar 751001, Odisha

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Rajasthan,
Secretariat

Jaipur — 302005 Raiasthan

Principal Secretary (Energy),
Government of Punjab, Punjab Civil
Secretariat, Sector-9, Chandigarh
160009. Puniah

PCE-cum-Secretary (Power),
Government of Sikkim, Secretariat,
Kazi Road. Ganotak 737101 Sikkim

Addl. Chief Secretary (Energy),
Government of Tamil Nadu,

Secretariat
Chennat — ANNNNO

Secretary (Power), Government of

Tripura, New Secretariat Complex
A acartala _ 70QN1TN Trh—\nra

Secretary (Energy), Government of
Uttarakhand, Secretariat, Subhash

Road
Dehradun 7400 TTttarakhand

Secretary (Power), Andaman &
Nicobar, Administration Secretariat
Port Blair 744101

Secretary (Power), UT Admn. of
Dadra & Nagar Haveli and Daman
& Diu,

Secretariat. Moti Daman — 394220

Spl. Chief Secretary (Energy),
Government of Telangana,

Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Telangana
Secretariat, Hyderabad — 500033,
Telangana

Aaddl. Chiet Secretary {(Energy),
Government of Uttar Pradesh, U.P.
Secretariat, Bapu Bhawan, Lucknow —
226001_1].P.

Secretary (Power), Govt. of West
Bengal, Vidyut Unnayan Bhawan
Salt Lake City, Kolkata 700098, West
Bengal

Secretary (Power), Chandigarh UT
Administration, UT Secretariat, Sector-
9. Chandigarh 160009

Secretary (Power), Government of NCT
of Delhi, Delhi Secretariat, [.P. Estate,
New Detlhi — 110002

Pr. Secretary (Power), Government
of Jammu & Kashmir, Civil

Secretariat
Tammu — 180001

Secretary (Power), Union Territory of
Lakshadweep, Secretariat, Kavarati
682555

>ecretary (rower & NRE),
Union Terriroty of Ladakh, UT
Secretariat

Leh-T.adakh - 194001

Chairperson, CENTRAL

Secretary (Power),

Government of Puducherry,

Chief Secretariat, Goubert Avenue,
Puducherrv A05001

Chairperson, ANDHRA PRADESH
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ELECTRICITY REGULATORY ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION, 3rd & 4th Floors, COMMISSION, D.No.11-4-660, 4th
Chanderlok Building Floor, Singareni Bhavan, Red Hills

36 Tannath New DNelhi-110001

Khairatahad. Hvderahad-500 004 (A.P.)

Chairperson, ARUNACHAL
PRADESH STATE
ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION
(APSERC), O.T. Building, 2nd
Floor

Niti Vihar Market, T.T. Marg
Itanagar—791111, (Arunachal
Pradesh)

Chairperson, ASSAM ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION,
A.S.E.B. Campus.

Dwarandar, G.S. Road, Sixth Mile
Cuwahati=TR107 ( Aceam)

Chairperson,

BIHAR STATE ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION
Ground Floor, Vidyut Bhavan-II,

BSEB Complex, Bailey Road,
Patna—RNNN?1 (Rihar)

Chairperson, CHHATTISGARH
STATE ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION
Irrigation Colony, Shanti Nagar
Rainur—492001. (Chhattisgarh)

Lhnairperson
DELHI ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION
Viniyamak Bhawan, C-Block,
Shivalik, Near Malviya Nagar,
New Delhi-110017

cLhairperson
HARYANA ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION
Bays No.33-36, Sector — 4,
Panchkula -134117 (Harvana)

Chairperson, JHARKHAND
STATE

ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION, Ist Floor,
Jharkhand State Housing Board
(Old Head

Quarter), Harmu Housing Colony
Ranchi-R34007 (Tharkhand)

Chairperson,

GUJARAT ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION, 6th
Floor, GIFT ONE, Road 5C, Zone 5,
GIFT City,

Gandhinagar-382355 (Gujarat)

Chairperson, HIMACHAL RADESH
ELECTRICITY

REGULATORY COMMISSION
Vidyut Aayog Bhawan, Block No.37,

SDA Complex, Kasumpti
Shimla — 171009 (H P\

Cnatrperson, JUIN | ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION
(JERC) FOR STATE OF GOA & UTs
3rd & 4th Floor, Plot No.55-56,
Pathkind Lab Building, Sector- 18,
Udyog Vihar, Phase-1V, Gurugram—
122015 (Harvana)

Lnairperson, JULN
ELECTRICITY

Chairperson (V), JOINT
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
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REGULATORY COMMISSION COMMISSION FOR MANIPUR &
(JERC) FOR Uts OF J&K AND MIZORAM TBL Bhawan, 2nd — 5th
LADAKH Ambedkar Road, Floor, E-18, Peter Street, Khatla,

Panama Chowk Jammu-180016(J
& K)

Aizawl. Mizoram-796001

Lnairperson, KAKNA L AKA
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION No. 16C-1, Miller
Tank Bed Area, Vasanthanagar,
Rengalurmi-S60052

Chairperson, MADHYA
PRADESH

ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION Metro Plaza, 3rd &

4th Floor, E- 5, Arera Colony,
Rittan Market Rhanal _ AKz 016

Chairperson, KERALA STATE
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION K.P.F.C. Bhavanam
C.V. Raman Pillai Road
Vellayambalam, Thiruvananthapuram-
695010

Ln4lrperson, MAHAKASH | KA
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION World Trade Centre,
Centre No. 1, 13th Floor, Cuffee
Parade. Mumhai — 400 005

Lnairperson, MEGHALAYA
STATE

ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION New
Administrative Bldg., 1* Floor
(Front Block Left Wing), Lower
Lachumiere, East Khasi Hills
District Shillong—793001
(Meghalava)

Chairperson-cum-Member,
NAGALAND ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION

(NERC) Old MLA Hostel Complex,
Kohima—797001 (Naocaland\

Cnairperson, UDISHA ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION

Plot No.4, Chunokoli, Shailashree Vihar,
Chandrasekharpur, Bhubaneswar-751021
(Odisha)

Chairperson, PUNJAB STATE
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION (PSERC)

Site No.3, Madhya Marg, Sector 18-A

Mhandicarh_1ANN1R

Chairperson, RAJASTHAN
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION

Vidyut Viniyamak Bhawan,

(Near State Motor Garage) Sahakar Marg,
Taimir—3020071 (Raiacthan)

Chairperson, SIKKIM STATE
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION (SSERC) P.O. Deorali
Sikkim-737102

Chairperson,
TAMIL NADU ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION 4th Floor,

Chairperson,
TELANGANA STATE
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
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SIDCO Corporate Office Building, Thiru-
vi-ka

Industrial Estate, Guindy, Chennai — 600
032

COMMISSION (TSERC) No.11-4-660,
5th Floor, Singareni Bhawan, Red Hills,
Khairatabad. Hvderahad-500004

cnarrperson, 1KIPUKA eLECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION, Bidyut
Bhavan Buthoria, Choumuhani,
Agartala—799001 (Trimira)

Member (Law) / Chairperson Incharge
UTTARAKHAND ELECTRICITY
REGULATORY COMMISSION (UERC),
'VIDYUT NIYAMAK BHAWAN', Near
ISBT, P.O. Majra Dehradun—248171
(Uttarakhand)

Chairperson, UTTAR PRADESH
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION 'Vidyut Niyamak
Bhawan', Vibhuti Khand, Gomti Nagar,
Lucknow-226010 (1T P )

cnairperson, wes1 BeENGAL
ELECTRICITY REGULATORY
COMMISSION Plot No.AH/S (2nd &
4th Floor) Premises No.MAR 16-1111

Action Area-1A, Newtown
Raiarhat Kallrata_7NN1AR

CMD

Eastern Power Distribution Co. of
A.P. Ltd, P&T Colony,
Seethammdhara, Vishakhapatnam
530013. Andhra Pradesch

CMD

Southern Power Distribution Co. of
A.P. Ltd, House No. 19-13-65/A,
Sriniva Sapuram Triuchanoor Road,
Triupti Andhra Pradesh-517503

Advisor

Arunanchal Pradesh Department of
Power, Govt of Arunanchal
Pradesh, Vidyut Bhawan, NH 52A,
cona. Itanaear 791113

Chairman

Assam Assam Power Distribution Co.
Ltd.

Bijulee Bhawan, Paltan Bazar,
Guwahati - 7R1001

Chairman/ MD

South Bihar Power Distribution
Company Ltd

2nd Floor, Vidyut Bhawan, Bailey
Road, Patna-800001, Bihar

Chairman/ MD

North Bihar Power Distribution
Company Ltd

3rd Floor, Vidyut Bhawan, Bailey
Road. Patna-R0OONOT Rihar

Chairman
Chattisgarh State Power
Distribution Company Ltd

Managing Director

Dadar nagar haveli power distribution
corp Ltd

Vidhyut Bhavan, 66 KV Road, Near
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3rd Floor, Vidyut Sewa Bhawan,
Dangania, Raipur -492013,
(hatticoarh

Secreteriat, Amli, Silvassa — 396230,
Dadar Nagar Haveli

CEU

TATA Power Delhi Distribution
Co.Ltd.

NDPL House, Hudson Lines,
Kingswav Camn. Delhi- 110009

CE (Elec.)

Goa Electricity Department
Vidxmit Rhawran D"""iji, Goa

Chairperson

Dakshin Gujarat Vij Co. Ltd.

Urja Sadan, Nana Varachha Road,
Kapodara, Surat, Gujarat — 395006,

(iarat

Chairperson

Paschim Gujarat Vij Co. Ltd.

Nana, Mava Main Road, Laxminagar,
Raikot-360004 Guiarat

MD
Uttar Gujarat Vij Co. Ltd.
Visnagar Road, Mehsana-384001

Chairperson
Madhya Gujarat Vij Co. Ltd.

Sardar Patel Vidyut Bhawan, Race Course,
Vadadara- 200007

Secretary Power
Puducherry Electricity Department
Secretariat, Puducherry - 605001

Chairman/MD

Uttar Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam

Plot No. C-16, Vidyut Sadan, Sector 6,
Panchkula - 134109

Chairman/MD
Dakshin Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam
Vidvut Sadan Vidvut Nagar, Hisar-125005

MD
H.P. Statae Electricity Board
Vidvut Rahwan, Shimla-171004

Managing Director,
Jammu Power Distribution Corp. Ltd.
Ambedkar Chowk (Panama Chowk),

Managing Director, KPDCL (Kashmir Power
Distribution Corporation Ltd)
Exhibition Grounds, Power Development

Bangalore Electricity Supply Co. Ltd.
Corporate Office, K.R. Circle, Bangalore-
560001

Tammn Department, Second, Karan Nagar Jehangir
(Chowk RA Srinacar
MD Energy Secretary/ CMD

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Ltd.
Engineering Building, HEC, Dhurw
834004

R
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CMD

Kerala State Electricity Board
Board secretariat, Vidyut Bhavanam
Pattom. Thiruvanthapuram - 695004

Chairman

Mangalore Electricity Supply Co. Ltd.
Mescom Bhawan, Kavoor Cross Road, Bejai,
Mangalore - 575004

Chairman

M.P. Paschim Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Co.
Ltd.

Corporate Office, GPH Campus,
Polosround Tndare - 452003

MD
M.P. Madhya Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Co. Ltd.
Nishtha Parisar. Govindnuri, Bhopal - 462023

CMD

Mabharashtra State Electricity Distribution
Company Ltd.

Prakashgad, Anant Kanekar Marg, Bandra
(E). Mumbai - 400051

MD

M.P. Poorvi Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Co.Ltd.
Shakti Bhawan, Vidyut Nagar, Jabalpur -
482008

Chairman/ MD
Meghalaya Energy Corporation Ltd

Lumijingshai Short Round Road, Shillong-
792001

MD

Manipur State Power Company Ltd.

Govt of Manipur, Manipur Sectt. South Block,
Imphal. Manipur - 795001

manaiscom@gmail.com

CE(R&D)

Nagaland Department of Power
Electricity House, A.G. Colony, Kohima,
Nagaland-797005

MD

Southern Electricity Supply Company of
Orissa Ltd.

(Southco) Courtpela, Berhampur, Ganjam,
Orissa

E-in-C

Power and Electricity Department
KAWLPHETHA' New Secretariat Complex,
Khatla. Aizwal-796005

A.O. (Nesco Utility)

North Eastern Electricity Supply Company of
Orissa Ltd.

(NESCO) Januganj, Balasore- 756019

CEO

Central Electricity Supply Company of
Orissa Ltd.

2nd floor, IDCO Tower, Janpath, P.O.
Bhoinagar, Bhubaneswar- 751022

AO

Western Electricity Supply Company of Orissa
Ltd.

(WESCOY Rurla-768017 Sambalpur, (
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Managing Director
Ajmer Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd

Vidyut Bhawan, Panchsheel Nagar,
Makarwali Rnad Aimer. 3N5NNA4

CMD

Punjab State Power Corporation Ltd

The Mall, PSEB Head Office , Bardari, Patiala-
147001

Managing Director

Jaipur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd
Vidyut Bhawan, Janpath, Jyoti Nagar,
Tainur - 3072005

Managing Director

Jodhpur Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd

New Power House, Industrial Area, Jodhpur-
342003

Chairperson
Sikkim Power Development Corp. Ltd.
31-A_ N.H. Wav_Ganetok - 737101

PCE/Secy
Energy& Power Department
Gavt of Sikkim Kazi Raad Gangtok - 737101

CMD

Northern Power Distributton Co. of
Telangana Ltd.

H.No. 2-5-31/2, Corporate House, Vidyut
Bhawan, Nakkalgutta, Hanamkonda,
Waraneal-506001

CMD
Tripura State Electricity Corp. Ltd
Govt. of Trinura. Apcartala - 790001

MD

Dakshinanachal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd.
Urja Bhawan, Agra - Delhi by pass road
Sikandra Aora - 2R2M)7

CMD

TANGEDCO (Tamil Nadu Generation and
Distribution Corporation)/ TNEB (Tamil Nadu
Electricity Board)/ TANTRANSCO (Tamil
Nadu Transmission Corporation)

10th flooe/ NPKRR Maaligai, No. 144 Anna
Qalai. Chennai-600007

CMD

Southern Power Distribution Co. of Telangana
Ltd.

Corporate House #6-1-50 Mint Compound,
Hvderahad- 500063

MD
Kanpur Electric Supply Co. Ltd.
14/71_ Civil Iines KESA House, Kanpur

Chairman

Paschimanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd.
Urja Bhawan, Victoria Park, Meerut -
250001

Chairman
Madhyaanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd.
4A. Gokbhale Marg. T .ucknow- 226001

Chairman/pR. Secy. Energy

Uttarakhand Power Corp. Ltd

Victoria cross vijeyta gabar singh, Urja
Bhawan, Kanwali Road, Balliwala Chowk,

MD
Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam Ltd.

Varanasi
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DNehradun-248001

Principal Secy

Andaman & Nicobar Electricity Department
Secretariat, Andaman & Nicobar Island,
Port Blair- 744101

Secretary Power

Dadar & Nagar Haveli Electricity
Department

Dadar Nacar Secretariat. Silvassa - 396230
rxe. £ng.

Lakshyadeep Electricity Department

U.T. of Lakshvadeep, Kavaratti - 682555

CLEU
BSES Yamuna Power Ltd., 140 1st Floor, D
Block, Shakti Kirn Building, Karkardooma
Delhi 110092

CMD

West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Co.
Ltd.

Vidyut Bhawan, Block -DJ, Sector-II, Bidhan
Nagar. Kalkata- 700091

Principal Secy.

Chandigarh Electricity Department
4th Floor, U.T. Secretariat, Sector 9,
Chandigarh -160017

rxe. £ng.
Daman & Diu Electricity Department
Dadar Nagar Secretariat. Silvassa - 396231
Cnairman

BSES Rajdhani Power Ltd., BSES Bhavan,
Nehru place. new Delhi 110019

CEOUO&MD
The TATA Power company Ltd., Bombay
House?4 Homi Madv street Mimbai

CEO

TATA Power Delhi Distribution Company Ltd.,
NDPL House, Hudson Lines, Kingsway Comp,
Delhi-110009

MD&CEU

Noida Power Company Ltd

Commercial Complex,H-Block, Alpha-II
Sector. Greater Noida citv-201310

ED&CEO

TATA Power Group Companies

CGPL Complex, Block B,Tunda-Vandh Road,
Village-Tunda,Mundra, kutchh 370435

Chairman
Torrent Power Ltd.
Ashram Road Ahmedahad 380009

MD

Power Tech Global Pvt. Ltd.

Hi-Tech Chambers, 6th Floor, 84/1B, Topsia
Road Kolkata-700046

Director Ueneral
Sustainable Projects Developers Association
910, 9th Floor Surya Kiran Building KG
Mare. New Delhi. Delhi 110001

Director General,

Electric Power Transmission Association,
First Floor, 6 Basant Lok, Vasant Vihar,
New Delhi - 110070

President, Indian Electrical and Electronics
Manufacturers Association (IEEMA),
Rishyamook Building, First Floor, 85 A,
Panchkutan Road. New Delhi — 110001

Secretary General
Indian Wind Power Association
Door - E, 6th Floor, Shakti Towers-1

766, Anna Salai,
Chennai — 600 002
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President General Manager,
Indian Transformer Manufacturers Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited

Association 2F CS-11, Ansal Plaza,Sector-3 | Corporate Office, BHEL House,
Near Vaishali Metro Station (Opp. Bhushan | Siri Fort. New Delhi — 110049
Steel) Vaishali,
(Ghaziabad. 1J.P- 201 010
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Annexure-7A

Appendix-I

PART-III

TARIFF FILING FORMS (TRANSMISSION &
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM)

FOR DETERMINATION OF TARIFF
FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29



ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29

INDEX

Checklist of Forms and other information/ documents for tarifT filing for Transmission

PART-II1

lAa e .
Information/ t i
e rrnrmana e smmns s mernin —wasefiCate tor Cc “ e
1 Association, & Articles of Association (For New Project(s) setup by a company making NA
tariff application for the first time to CERC)
Region wise and Corporate audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts with all the
2 Schedules & annexures for the new Tr ission System & Cc ication System for NA
the relevant years.
3 Copies of relevant loan Agreements NA
4 Copies of the approval of Competent Authority for the Capital Cost and Financial package. NA
5 Copies of the Equity participation agr and y approval for the foreign NA
6 Copies of the BPTA/TSA/PPA with the beneficiaries, if any NA
Detailed note giving reasons of cost and time over run, if applicable.
List of supporting documents to be submitted:
a.  Detailed Project Report
7 b.  CPM Analysis NA
¢ PERT Chart and Bar Chart
d. lustification for cost and time Overrun
Transmission Licensee shall submit copy of Cost Audit Report along with cost accounting
records, cost details, hedules etc. for the tr: ission system as submitted to
8 the Govt. of India for first two years i.e. 2024-25 and 2025-26 at the time of mid-term true- NA
up in 2026~ 27 and for balance period of tarifY period 2024-29 at the time of final true-up
in 2029-30. In case of initial tariff filing the latest available Cost Audit Report should be
furnished.
BBMB is maintaining the records as per the relevant applicable Acts. Formats specified
9 herein may not be suitable to the available information with BBMB. BBMB may modify NA
formats suitably as per available information to them for submission of required
information for tariff purpose.
10 Any other relevant information, (Please specify)

Notel: Electronic copy of the pefition (in word format) and detailed calculation as per these formats (in excel
format) and any other information submitted has to be
in pen drive/Rash drive.

ploaded in the e-filing website and shall also be furnished
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Summary of Tariff

276

T PARTI

FORM- 1

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling S/S and associated bays

(Part-A)
a 4 i v o
[.1 [Depreciation Form 10A 6,224 6,239 6,281 6,307 6,307
1.2 |Interest on Loan Form 9E 7,280 6,407 5,585 4,726 3,812
1.3 [Retum on Equily' Form § 5,669 3,683 5,721 5,745 5,745
1.4 |Interest on Working Capital Form 11 334 351 361 308 300
1.5 |O & M Expenses Form 2 1,136 1,818 2,291 1,378 1,472
Total AFC 20,644 20,500 20,238 18,465 17,635
Note: This Form is a summary form and the Data to this from should flow from other base forms.

\rcuuuncr)

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-III
FORM- 1A

Summary of Asset Level Cost

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling S/S

f the t issi : .
Name of the transmission Asset and associated bays (Part-A)

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)
AY Summary af Manital Mact Maane nf Tinanan Aftha Accné
L1GIILIIIIIULL Luitin L1T,U10.07 - LUV.UY - - - 114,418.3Y
Substation egipments 3.860.87 - 380.00 1,000.00 - - 5,240.87
Free hold Land - - - - - - -
Leasehold Land - - - - - - -
PLCC - - - - - - -
Furniture / Fixture - - - - - - -
Building & Civil Works - - - - - - -
Office Equipments - - - - - - -

Total 117,879.26 - 580.00 1,000.00 - - 119,459.26

Note: This form is a summary form and the data to this form should flow from other base forms.

(Petitioner)

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-t1l
Form 2
Details o[ T i Lines, ions and Ci ion Svstem covered wn the project scope and O&M for jnstant asset
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV DrC (ransmission line from Maban Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling $/S and associated bays (Pan-A)
i P
M ition

|

Summal o _
O& M E for the Con ion System covered in the instant peti 5 i) 28
The ariginal project cost / Asset relaied 10 the communication sysiem P A P 0% .. ..., 0%
ariginal prejecy original projecy  original projecy original project
3.0% af the anginal project cos| cos! cosi| cos|| cosl
O&M expenses as per regulations (3% of Original Project Cost) - - - N
Estimated Q&M Expense ( Rupecs in Lukh}* 0 |
Note: L. The O&M expenses as per regulation shall be worked on based on estimated projeet cost.
2.Expenses in case of U-NMS shall be allowed on actual basis after due prudence check,
*The actual O&M expenses 10 be provided al the Lime of true op.
iculx) T 20252 2026- 0282
| |Transmission Line 330.16 347.55 365.71 385.14 403,35
2 |Substation 280.07 294.84 310.17 32641 34377
3 |Communication syswem - - - - -
Total Normative O&M 610.23 64239 675.88 7155 749.12
B) O&M Ciaimed under Regulation 36 (3)(d)
Security Expenses 420.00 462.00 508.20 559.02 614.92
Actual Capital Spare consumed' - 608.00 1.000.00 - -
Insurance Premium Paid® 106.09 106.09 106.61 107.51 107.51
Total 0&M Expenses claimed 1,136.32 1,812 28 7 70a £ 1v7ana 1471 %

Note: The security expenses and Capital Spares are lo be submitied on estimated basis [or the purposc of O&M expenses. In case of additional sec
petitioner shall indicate the same. The actual security and Capital Spares expenses Lo be provided at the time ol true up

1. List of Capital Spares to be provided al the time of iruing up. Further. no Capital Spares individuaily costing upto Rs. 10 lakh shall be claimed.
2. At the time of determination of taritY [nsurance Premium shoil be estimated which shall be subjeet to truing up on the basis of actuals,

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29



Name of the transmission Asset:
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PART-III
FORM-3
Normative Parameters considered for tariff calculations

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling
3/S and associated bays (Part-A)

Vear Endina March

1 Z 3 4 K [ /
Base Rate of Return on Equity % 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50%
Base Rate of Return on Equity on Additional %
Capitalization after Cut-off Date' °
Tax Rate % 17.472% 17.472% 17.472% 17.472% 17.472%
Effective Tax Rate’ %
Target Availability - HVDC System % 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%
Target Availability - AC System % 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%
Normative O&M per km Rs. Lakh
Normative O&M per bay Rs. Lakh As shown in Form 2
Normative O&M per MVA/MVAr Rs. Lakh
Spares for WC as % of O&M % 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%
Receivables in Days for WC Days 45 45 45 45 45
Reference Rate as on first day of financial year’ % 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90%

1. The additional capitalization to be equivalent to one year MCLR+350 bps subject to a ceiling of 14.00% in accordance with first Proviso

to Regulation 30(3).

2. To be supported by necessary documents and calculations. Effective tax rate is to be computed in accordanc
3. For Tariff Petition, it should be 1.4.2024, while for True-up Petition, it should be st April of the respective

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-1I
FORM-7
itahsation siter COD

Name of the

ransoissio Assets 100K DIC trnamission line from Mahan Thernral povier plint — Sipat Foaling $/5 and associated bays (#are-A)

COD: 22092048
b

Leasehold Land - - - -
Buiiding & Civil Works - - - -
Furniture & Fixiures - - - N
Olfice - - - -
T Line - - - N
Sub-Station - - - -
PLCC - - - B

Tatal - - - -
Leasehold Land - - - -
Building & Civil Warhs| - - - -
Fumiture & Fixuwres - - N N
Office L - - -
T Line 200,00 - B
Sub-Station 38000 - -
PLCC - - -

Toual 580.00 - -
Lensehold Land - - - .
Building & Civil Works| - - - -
Furniture & Fixiures - - - N
Gifice - - - -
T Line - - - -
Sub-Stauon 1.000.00 - - 1,000.00
PLCC - - - N

TFutal 1.800.00 - - 1,000.00
Leasehold Land - - - -

Building & Civil Works| - - - N

Furniture & Fixwres - - - -

Office Equipments - - - -
T Line - - - -
Sub-Station - - - -
PLCC - - - N

Total - - - N

Leasehold Land - - - -
Building & Civil Works| - N . N
Eurniture & Fistures - - - N
Ottice - - N N
i ion Line - - - -
Sub-Station - B N -
PLCC - - N -
Tousl - - - N
gulation s
sgeintion
Under R
5
V() Liabiluies 1o meel award uf arbitration ete
)by Change in law or campliance ol any exishng law
Y(dy iablities for works exueted prior Lo the cut-off date
Vel ‘orce Majeure Events
N Lisbilities for works admitted by the aiter the cut-olf date
2l Under Regulation 25 - - - - N
26 ACE withiu the original scope :

Yia Luabilities to meet award of arbitralion elg
1(b) Change in law or compliance of any cxisting faw: - SB0.00 1000.00 - -
Y(e) Farce Majeurs Events.
Yidy Need for higher securtty and safety of the plant. Change in law or fance of any existing law
260 Experatilure necossary for efficient opertion neluding works requircd
B towards projects acquired through NCLT process 5

Tatal Under Regulation 26 - 560.00 1,000.00 - -
[Tatal ACE claimed for tarifl
[Total Admitted ACE during Final taril',

Nog

1 I case the true up, provide the ACE allowed in final tarif¥ and enclose the copy of the taniff order(s)

2. Year wise details of the Work/Equipment proposed o be added alter COD upta Cut-0iT Date/ beyand Cut- ofT Date has to be provided alon,
3. In case of de-capitalisalion of assets detals 10 be furnished i Form 108,

4. Na ACE owards assets {ndividually costing below Rs. 20 lakh shail be claimed by the Petitioner.

5. The capilal cost as per books af accounls and liability should be supported by Auditor Certilicale

6. Claim to be substantiated with technical justification and cost bene{t unalysis
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Financing of Additional Capitalisation

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Poaling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

282

PART-IH
FORM- 7A

L v " K v . o > 1v I

Amount capitalised in Work/Equip 4 380.00] 1.000.00 E R - -
Fi ing Details - -
Loan- 1 431.46 743.90 - - - -
Laon -2

Loan-3 and so on - -
Total Loan 431.46 743.90 - - - -
Equity 148.54 256.10 - - - -
Internal Resources R .
Others - - - - - -
Total 580.00 1,000.00 - - - -
Note:

1. Year | refers to Financial Year of COD in case of new

For existing el

it is from 2024-25 and Year 2, Year 3 etc. are the subsequent financial years respectively.

2. Loan details for meeting the additional capitalisation requirement should be given as per FORM-9 or 9(A) whichever is relevant.

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29




Name of the transmission Asset:

283

T PART-II
FORM-8
Calculation of Return on Equity at Normal Rate

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling
S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

(Amount in Re T.a kil

tic 0 T o2 0272 | 02
1 2 > 4 5 6 )
No. of Days in the year 365 365 365 366 365
No. of days for which tariff claimed 365 365 365 366 365
1 Opening Normative Equity 30,184.66 30,184.66 30,333.20 30,589.30 30,589.30
2 Less: Adjustment in Equity* - - - - -
3 Adjustment during the year - - - - -
4 Net Opening Equity (Normal) 30,184.66 30,184.66 30,333.20 30,589.30 30,589.30
Add: Increase in Equity due to addition
5 during the year/period - 148.54 256.10 - -
Less: Decrease due to de-capitalisation
6 during the year/period. - - - - -
Add: Increase due to discharges during the
7 year/period - - - -
8 Closing Normative Equity 30,184.66 30,333.20 30,589.30 30,589.30 30,589.30
9 Average Normative Equity 30,184.66 30,258.93 30,461.25 30,589.30 30,589.30
11 Rate of Return on Equity (Base Rate ) 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50%
Reduced rate of 1% decided by commission
12 under Regulation 30 (2) (if any)
Effective tax rate / MAT rate for the
13 respective years 17.47% 17.47% 17.47% 17.47% 17.47%
14 Rate of Return on Equity (Pre Tax ) 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78%
Return on Equity on project cost till Cutoff
15 date (Pre Tax) 5,669.13 5,683.08 5,721.08 5,745.13 5,745.13
Note: 1 Adjustment of equity as per Proviso to Regulation 18(3) of 2024 Tariff Regulations.
2. In respect to Equity infusion the Transmission Licensee is required to substantiate with supporting
documents such as board resolutions, balance sheet/ reconciliation statement with balance sheet.
(Petitioner)

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-III
Calculation of Weighted Average Rate of Interest on Actual Loansl FORM- 9C

Name of the t ission Asset: 400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat
4 ¢ transmission Asset: Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

1 |Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC)

Net loan - Opening 469.62
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year -
Less: Net Loan Movement 469.62
Net loan - Closing -
Average Net Loan 234.81

Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest

paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of

Loan 14.30%
Interest on loan 8.40

2 [Power Finance Corporation (PFC)

Net loan - Opening 185.14
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year

Less: Net Loan Movement 185.14
Net loan - Closing -
Average Net Loan 92.57

Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of

Loan 14.50%
Interest on loan 331
3 |Axis Bank
Net loan - Opening 55.16
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year -
Less: Net Loan Movement 55.16
Net loan - Closing -
Average Net Loan 27.58

Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of

Loan 14.50%
Interest on loan 0.99
4 |OCD

Net loan - Opening - 67245 636.94 603.31 571.45
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year 709.93 - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement* 37.48 35.51 33.63 31.85 30.17
Net loan - Closing 672.45 636.94 603.31 571.45 541.28
Average Net Loan 336.22 654.69 620.12 587.38 556.37

Rate of Intcrest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of

Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 90.25 94.93 89.92 85.17 80.67
5 |Total Loan

Net loan - Opening 709.93 67245 636.94 603.31 57145
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year 709.93 - - - -
Less: Repayment (s) of Loans during the year 747.41 35.51 33.63 31.85 30.17
Net loan - Closing 672.435 636.94 603.31 571.45 541.28
Average Net Loan 691.19 654.69 620.12 587.38 556.37
Interest on loan 102.94 94.93 89.92 85.17 80.67
Weighted average Rate of interest on Loans 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%

Note:1. In case of Foreign Loans, the calculations in Indian Rupees is to be furnished as per Form 9(D). However,
the calculation in original currency is also to be furnished separately in the same form,

2. In case of already commissioned combined asscts the details may be provided asset w

3. Details of Financing Charges.
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PART-III
FORM-9E
Calculation of Interest on Normative Loan

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant - Sipat Pooling $/S and

Name of the transmission Asset: associated bays (Part-A)

LU, UL ays i wis yvar sus suo oo suv wow
No. of days for which tariff claimed 365 365 365 366 365
1 Gross Normative loan - Opening 87,694.60 87,694.60 88,126.06 88,869.96 88,869.96
) S:ar;lulative repayment of Normative Loan upto previous 34.377.08 40,601.11 16,840.45 53.121.50 59,428.94
3 Net Normative loan - Opening 53,317.52 47,093.49 41,285.62 35,748.47 29,441.02
4 Addition in Normative loan towards the ACE - 431.46 743.90, - -
5 Adjustment of Normative Gross loan pertaining to the - - - - -
decapitalised assset.
6 Normative Repayments of Normative Loan during the 6,224.02 6,239.34 6,281.05 6,307.45 6,307.45
year
7 Adjustment of Cum. repayment pertaining to the - - - - -
decapitalised asset.
8 Net Normative loan — Closing 47,093.49 41,285.62 35,748.47 29,441.02 23,133.57
9 Average Normative Loan 50,205.50 44,189.55 38,517.04 32,594.74 26,287.29
10 |Weighted average Rate of Interest of actual Loans 14.50% 14.50%. 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
11 Interest on Normative loan 7,279.80 6,407.49 5,584.97 4,726.24 3,811.66
\rclluuncr}
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Calculation of Depreciation Rate on original project cost

286

PART-III
FORM- 10

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant —
Sipat Pooling 5/S and associated bays (Part-A)

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

1 2 3 4 6=average(2,4) X 5
1 T ission Line 114,018.39 - 114,018.39 5.28% 6,020.17
2 Substation eqig 3.860.87 - 3.860.87 5.28% 203.85
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 L hold Land - - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Buildin, - - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equipments - - - 6.33% -
Total 117.879.26 - 117.879.26 5.28% 6,224.02
Weighted Average Rate of o
Depreciation (%) 5:28%
C
R
ol
0
1 2 3 +4 6=average(2,4) X §
I T ission Line 114,018.39 200.00 114,218.39 5.28% 6,025.45
2 Substati i 3,860.87 380.00 4.240.87 5.28% 213.89
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Buildin - - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equip - - - 6.33% -
Total 117.879.26 580.00 118.459.26 5.28% 6,239.34
Weighted Average Rate of o
Depreciation (%) 529%
1 2 3 4 6=average(2,4) X 5
1 T Line 114.218.39 - 114.218.39 5.28% 6,030.73
2 Sulk i 3ip 4,240.87 1,000.00 5,240.87 5.28% 250.32
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 Leaschold Land - - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Buildin, - - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equip - - - 6.33% -
Total 118,459.26 1,000.00 119,459.26 5.28% 6,281.05
Weighted Average Rate of’ B
Depreciation (%) $530%

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-LIL
FORM- 10

Caleulation of Depreciation Rate on original project cost

- ission [i M o -
Name of the transmission Asset: :lOO LY D/C (rgr?"smlslslon [|r-|e fr‘cxfn b Inlllan‘T.h‘cnnal power plant

1 2 3 4 5 6= average(2,4) X 5
1 Transmission Line 114,218.39 - 114,218.39 5.28% 6,030.73
2 Substation eqi 5,240.87 - 5,240.87 5.28% 276.72
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - - 3.34% -
3 PLCC - - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - - 3.34% -
8| Office Equif - - - 6.33% -
Total 119.459.26 - 119,439.26 5.28% 6,307.43
Weighted Average Rate of
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
1 2 3 4 5 6=average(2,4) X §
1 T ission Line 114,218.39 - 114,218.39 5.28% 6,030.73
2 Substation egi 5,240.87 - 3,240.87 5.28% 276.72
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 Leaschold Land - - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - - 3.34% -
8 | Office Equip - - - 6.33% -
Total 119.459.26 - 119.459.26 5.28% 6.307.45
Weighfcc! Average Rate of 528%
Depreciation (%)
Note:
1. Name of the Assets should confonm to the description of the assets mentioned in Depreciation Schedule appended to the Notification.
2. For Existing Project Depreciation Rate shail be as per Appendix-I while for New Project the rate shall be as per Appendix-1I.
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Name of the transmission Asset:

288

PART-III
FORM- 10A

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat Pooling S/S and associated bays

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29

(Part-A)
{fAwrnnnt in Do T alrh)

w) <} L] LG Wy .54 Ay

1 Opening Capital Cost 117,879.26 117,879.26 118,459.26 119,459.26 119,459.26
2 Closing Capital Cost 117,879.26 118,459.26 119,459.26 119,459.26 119,459.26
3 Average Capital Cost 117,879.26 118,169.26 118,959.26 119,459.26 119,459.26
4 Freehold land - - - - -

5 Rate of depreciation 5.28% 5.29% 5.30% 5.28% 5.28%
6 Depreciable value 106,091.33 106,613.33 107,513.33 107,513.33 107,513.33
7 Balance useful life at the beginning of the

period
8 Remaining depreciable value 71,714.25 66,012.22 60,672.89 54,391.84 48,084.39
9 Depreciation (for the period) 6,224.02 6,239.34 6,281.05 6,307.45 6,307.45
10 Depreciation ( lised) 6,224.02 6,239.34 6,281.05 6,307.45 6,307.45
1 se“r’i':;la“"e depreciation at the end of the 40,601.11 46,840.45 53,121.50 59,428.94 65,736.39
12 Less: Cumulative depreciation adjustment on
~  |account of de-capitalisation - - - - -
13 |Net Cumulative depreciation at the end of the 40,601.11 46,840.45 53,121.50 59,428.94 65,736.39
period
[P ,



Calculation of Interest on Working Capital

Name of the transmission Asset:

289

PART-III
FORM- 11

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat
Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

fAmannt in Re I.nl{h\l

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29

1I INO. o1 days tor which taritt 365 363 36> 366 365
claimed

1 O & M Expenses - one month 94.69 151.54 190.89 114.84 122.63

) Maintenance Spares 15% of O&M 170.45 272.77 343.60 206.71 220.73
Expenses

A Receivables equivalent to 45 days 2,545.11 2,527.35 2,495.14 2,270.33 2,174.23

°  |ofAFC

4 Total Working Capital 2,810.26 2,951.66 3,029.63 2,591.88 2,517.59
Reference rate as on 01.04.2024 or 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90%

5 as on 01st April of the COD year,
whichever is later.

6 Interest on Working Capital 334.42 351.25 360.53 308.43 299.59

(reutioner)



Summary of issue involved in the petition

Name of the Petitioner

Essar Transco Limited

Ll

Petition Category

Transmission

[

Tariff Period

2024-29

Name of the Project

400 kV D/C transmission line from Mahan Thermal power
plant — Sipat Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)

Investment Approval date

SCOD of the Project

Actual COD of the project

22-Sep-18

oo l-ajon ||

Whether entire scope is covered in the present petition.

O

No. of Assets covered in instant petition

10

No. of Assets having time over run

11

Estimated Project Cost as per [A

12

Is there any REC? if so, provide the date

13

Revised Estimated Project Cost (if any)

—
S

Completion cost for all the assets covered in the instant petition

No. of Assets covered in instant petition and having cost
overrun

Nil

Prayer in brief

Key details and any Specific issue involved

—
o0

Respondents

Name of Respondents

Central Transmission Utility of India Limited

Power grid Corporation of India Limited

Power system Operation Corporation Limited

Western Region Power Committee

M.P. Power Management Company Limited

Western Regional Load Despatch Centre

Mahan Energen Limited(formerly Essar Power M.P. Limited)

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-III
FORM A
Summary of Capital Cost & Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) Claimed for ALL the assets covered in the present petition.
Name of the Petitioner Essar Transco Limited
Tariff Period 2024-29 ) 2024-29
Name of the Transmission Project 400 kV D/C transmission line¢ from Mahan Thermal power plant — Sipat
Pooling S/S and associated bays (Part-A)
COD of the Project (if entire scope of project is completed) 22-Sep-18
A)S y of Capital Cost as on COD and Additional Capital Expenditure claimed [or all the assets Covered in the instant petition.
Summary of Actual / Projected Capital Cost Capital Cost
Sr. No. | Asset No. coD Cut off date A as on
son - 2 x X 31.03.2029

31.03.2024 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
1 Part-A 9/22/2018 3/31/2021 117.879.26 - 580.00 1,000.00 - - 119,459.26

Total Capital Cost Claimed 119,459.26
B)S y of Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) claimed lor all the assets covered in the instant petition.

S. No. | Asset No. 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
1 Part-A 20,643.70 20,499.63 20.238.32 18,465.34 17,635.38

Total AFC for ail
the Asscts 20,643.70 20,499.63 20,238.32 18,465.34 17,635.38

ETL - Part - A - Formats for FY25-FY29
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Annexure-7B

Appendix-I

PART-III

TARIFF FILING FORMS (TRANSMISSION &
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM)

FOR DETERMINATION OF TARIFF
FY 2024-25 to FY 2028-29

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29



ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29

INDEX

Checklist of Forms and other information/ documents for tariff filing for Transmission

Association, & Articles of Association (For New Project(s) setup by a company making
tariff application for the first time to CERC)

PART-II

NA

[N

Region wise and Corporate audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Accounts with all the
Schedules & annexures for the new Transmission System & Communication System for
the relevant years.

NA

Copies of relevant loan Ag

NA

Copies of the approval of Comp Authority for the Capital Cost and Financial package.

NA

Copies of the Equity participation ag and v approval for the foreign

NA

= [V [

Copies of the BPTA/TSA/PPA with the beneficiaries, if any

NA

Detailed note giving reasons of cost and time over run, if applicable.

List of supporting documents to be submitted:
a.  Detailed Project Report
b.  CPM Analysis
c.  PERT Chart and Bar Chart
d. Justification for cost and time Overrun

NA

Transmission Licensee shall submit copy of Cost Audit Report along with cost accounting
records, cost details, statements, schedules ctc. for the transmission system as submitted to
the Govt. of India for first two years i.e. 2024-25 and 2025-26 at the time of mid-term true-
up in 2026~ 27 and for balance period of tariff period 2024-29 at the time of final true-up
in 2029-30. In case of initial tariff filing the latest available Cost Audit Report should be
furnished.

NA

BBMB is maintaining the records as per the relevant applicable Acts. Formats specified
herein may not be suitable to the available information with BBMB. BBMB may modify
formats suitably as per available information to them for submission of required
information for tariff purpose.

NA

10

Any other relevant information, (Please specify)

Notel: Electronic copy of the petition (in word format) and detailed calculation as per these formats (in excel

format) aad any other information itted has to be upl in the e-filing website and shall also be furnished
in pen drive/flash drive.
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PART-III

FORM- 1
Summary of Tariff
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
—_ - s - w / o
1.1 |Depreciation Form 10A 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784 1,784
1.2 |Interest on Loan Form 9E 2,086 1,827 1,569 1,310 1,052
1.3 |Return on Equity[ Form 8 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625 1,625
1.4 ]Interest on Working Capital Form 11 88 92 80 77 73
1.5 |0 & M Expenses Form 2 135 332 146 152 158
Total AFC 5,716 5,660 5,203 4,947 4,691
Note: This Form is a summary form and the Data to this from should flow from other base forms.

(Petitioner)

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29



Name of the transmission Asset:

A Summarv af Manital Cact Maane af Kinanca nf tha A ccot

‘I'ransmission Line

33,778.98

Summary of Asset Level Cost

400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

295

PART-III
FORM- 1A

(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

33,778.98

Substation eqipments

Free hold Land

Leasehold Land

PLCC

Fumiture / Fixture

Building & Civil Works

Office Equipments

Total

33,778.98

33,778.98

Note: This form is a summary form and the data to this form should flow from other base forms.

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-IH
Form 2
Dejails of T isyion Lines, igns and C. ication System covered in the project scope aod O&M for instant asset
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipal Transmission Line (Pan-B)
™
ol
Y .
Summary _ _ _ _
D&M £x5 Trammission I tred iu the tnsta 024 6 i B
Normative rate of O&M as per Regulation - Double Circuit (Bu
with four or mare sub-conductors) ( Rupees in Lakh ¥ 1.29 1.36 143 L3t 159
Length in km 337 337 337 337 337
O&M Claimed { Rupees in Laki ) 434.42 457.30 481.20 306.77 53335
2) Substations
Summ e - - . _ -
O&M the instant peté 5 b ¢ r u
Normative rate of O8M a8 pe. .oop.o.e.. ,.pecs in Lakh) L ,
No. of Bays I- [- |B 1- [- 1
O&M Claimed (Rupees in Lakh) | 1 | | [ |
Note: 1. Number of bays is inclusive of line bays. ICT bays, reactor bays etc. Each ICT bays, line bays. reactor bays shail be consdercd separately for purpose of O&M expenses

I
2. The MVA Capacity shall exclude the capacily of reactor, FSE. Stat Com
3, 0&M expenses for Transmission Licensees whose transmission assets ar¢ loeated solcly n NE Regron (including Sikkim), States of Ultarakhand, Himachal Pradesh, the Union Teritories of

ETL - Part - B - Formals for FY25-FY29



PART-IIL
Form 2
Detajly of T Lings, ians and C ication System covered in the project scope and O&M for instant asyet
Name of the (ransmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line {Pan-01)
]
itia
N L

297

Summar, . _ _ _ B
0& M E: 3¢ the e nib i 5
The original project cost / Asset relaled 10 we communication sys Groveon  cPuvien s
original project| original project| original praject|  otiginal praject| original project
cosl cos| cosl cost cast
0&M expenses as per fons (2% of Original Project Cast) . N B - N
Estimated O&M Expense { Rupees in Lakh}* o
Note : 1. The O&M cxpenses as per regulation shall be worked on based on estimaied project cost.
2.Expenses in case of U-NMS shail be allowed on actoal basis atler due prudence check.
*The actuoi O&M expenses (0 be provided at the time of true up.
4) Sur _ _ sit
Sr. N 5 3 . 8
1 ITr:msmissiun Line 104.26 109.75 L1549 121.62 128.00
Substalion - - - - -
3 __|Communication system - - - - -
Total Normative O&M 104.26 109.75 11549 121.62 128.00
B) O&M Claimed under Regulation 36 (3)(d)
Security Expenses - - - - -
Actual Capital Spare consumed’ - 192.00 - - -
Insurance Premium Paid® 3040 3040 30.40 3040 30.40
Total O&M Expenses claimed 134.66 332.15 145.89 152.03 13841

Note: The security expenses and Capital Spares are to be submitted an estimated basis for b purpose of O&M expenses. In case of additional security
deployed, the petitiones shall indicate the same. The actual security and Capital Spares expenises (o be provided at the time of true up
1. List of Capital Spares o be provided at the lime of truing up. Further, nio Capital Spares individually costing upto Rs. 10 lakh shall be claimed.
2. At the time ol determination of tarifY [nsurance Premium shalt be estimated which shall be subject to truing up on the basis of actuals.

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-IIX
FORM-3
Normative Parameters considered for tariff calculations
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
1 Z 3 4 B [ /

Base Rate of Return on Equity % 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50%

Base Rate of Return on Equity on Additional %

Capitalization after Cut-off Date' °

Tax Rate % 17.472% 17.472% 17.472% 17.472% 17.472%

Effective Tax Rate’ %

Target Availability - HVDC System % 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Target Availability - AC System % 98% 98% 98% 98% 98%

Normative O&M per km Rs. Lakh

Normative O&M per bay Rs. Lakh As shown in Form 2

Normative O&M per MVA/MV Ar Rs. Lakh

Spares for WC as % of O&M % 15% 15% 15% 15% 15%

Receivables in Days for WC Days 45 45 45 45 45

Reference Rate as on first day of financial year’ % 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90%

1. The additional capitalization to be equivalent to one year MCLR+350 bps subject to a ceiling of 14.00% in accordance with first Proviso

to Regulation 30(3).

2. To be supported by necessary documents and calculations. Effective tax rate is to be computed in accordance with Regulation 31.

3. For Tariff Petition, it should be 1.4.2024, while for True-up Petition, it should be 1st April of the respective financial years.
Petitioner
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Name of the
transmissica Assel:
cob:

Leasehald Land

Statement of Additional Capitalisation after COD

400 k¥ D/C Mahan-Siput Transmission Line (Part-B)

22.09.201%

Building & Civil Works|

Furniture & Fistures

Office Equipments
Ti Line

Sub-Stativn

PLCC

Total

Leasehold Land

Building & Civil Works

Furniture & Fixiures

Office Eguipments

T Line - - -
Sub-Station - - N
PLCC - - -

Total - - -

Leasehold Land

Building & Civil Warks|

Fumiture & Fixiures

Office Equipments

Bk Line

Sub-Station

PLCC

Total

Leasehoid Land

Building & Civil Works

Fumniture & Fixtures

OtYice Equipments.

T Line - - -
Sub-Station - - -
PLCC - - -

Totat - N N

l.easehoid Land

Building & Civil Works|

Fumilure & Fixtures

Office Equipment

T Tine - - -
Sub-Station - - -
PLCC - - -
Total N - -
slation ¥
[ulation
nder Re
Reg 25
25 (D@ Liabilities to meet award of arbitration ete.
[ Change in law or compliance alany existing law
|ESTTIE) Liabifities for works exueted prior to the cut-off date
P'S( 3e) Force Majeure Events
23 (1N Lisbitities (or works admitted by the sfter the cur-olf
‘vial Under Regulation 28 - - -
3 ACE withia the origlas scope :
(D) Ligbilities o meel award of arbitration cic,
(N {b) Change in law or compliance of any existing law. - - N
(hg) Force Majeure Events.
4y ‘Need for higher security and safety of the plant Chunge in law or of any existing law
s 0 Expenditure necessary for efficient operation ncluding works

required towardy projects aequired through NCLT process §

Total Under Regulali

16

[ Total ACE clsimed for wsriflf

[ Total Admitted ACE Juring Final tariff'.

Note

1. In case the rue up, provide the ACE allowed in final tanif and enclose the copy of the tanu¥ erder(s).
2. Year wise details of the Work/Equipment praposed to be added after COD upto Cut-oft Date/ beyond Cule off Drta k<= 1= b =

3. In case of de-capitalisation of assets details a be fumnished in Form 108,

4. No ACE lowards assets individually costing below Rs. 20 lakh shall be claimed by the Petitioner.
5. The capital cos as per boaks o accounts and liability should be supported by Auditor Cenificate

6 Claim 1o be substanuiated with technical justification and cost benefit analysis
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Name of the transmission Asset:

Financing of Additional Capitalisation

400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

300

PART-1II
FORM- 74

Amount capitalised in Work/Equipment

Fi ing Details

Loan- 1

Laon -2

Loan-3 and so on

Total Loan

Equity

Internal Resources

Others

Tatal

Note:

L. Year | refers to Financial Year of COD in case of new elements. For existing elements it is from 2024-25 and Year 2, Year 3 etc. are the subsequent financial vears recnactivaly
2. Loan details for meeting the additional capitalisation requirement should be given as per FORM-9 or 9(A) whichever is relevant,

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29




Calculation of Return on Equity at Normal Rate

Name of the transmission Asset:

!

400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

301

"~ PART-II

FORM- 8

(Amnuntin Re Talkhl

a1
2 2 ) 4 > o 7
No. of Days in the year 365 365 365 366 365
No. of days for which tariff claimed 365 365 365 366 365
1 Opening Normative Equity 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59
2 Less: Adjustment in Equity* - - - - -
3 Adjustment during the year - - - - -
4 Net Opening Equity (Normal) 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59
Add: Increase in Equity due to addition
5 during the year/period - - - - -
Less: Decrease due to de-capitalisation
6 during the year/period. - - - - -
Add: Increase due to discharges during the
7 year/period - - - -
8 Closing Normative Equity 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59
9 Average Normative Equity 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59 8,649.59
11 Rate of Return on Equity (Base Rate ) 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50% 15.50%
Reduced rate of 1% decided by commission
12 under Regulation 30 (2) (if any)
Effective tax rate / MAT rate for the
13 respective years 17.47% 17.47% 17.47% 17.47% 17.47%
14 Rate of Return on Equity (Pre Tax ) 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78% 18.78%
Return on Equity on project cost till Cutoff
15 date (Pre Tax) 1,624.52 1,624.52 1,624.52 1,624.52 1,624.52

Note:

1 Adjustment of equity as per Proviso to Regulation 18(3) of 2024 Tariff Regulations.
2. In respect to Equity infusion the Transmission Licensee is required to substantiate with supporting

documents such as board resolutions, balance sheet/ reconciliati sheet.

(Petstioner)

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-LI
Calculation of Weighted Average Rate of Interest on Actual Loansl FORM- 9C
Name of the transmission Asset:
1 |Rural Electrification Corporation Limited (REC)
Net loan - Opening 469.62
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year -
Less: Net Loan Movement 469.62
Net loan - Closing -
Average Net Loan 234.81
Rate of [nterest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of
Loan 14.50%
Interest on loan 8.40
2 |Power Finance Corporation (PFC)
Net loan - Opening 185.14
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year -
Less: Net Loan Movement 185.14
Net loan - Closing -
Average Net Loan 92.57
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of
Loan 14.50%
Interest on loan 331
3 |Axis Bank
Net loan - Opening 55.16
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year -
Less: Net Loan Movement 55.16
Net loan - Closing -
Average Net Loan 27.58
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of
Loan 14.50%
Interest on loan 0.99
4 |OCD
Net loan - Opening - 672.45 636.94 603.31 57145
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year 709.93 - - - -
Less: Net Loan Movement* 37.48 3551 33.63 31.85 30.17
Net loan - Closing 672.45 636.94 603.31 571.45 541.28
Average Net Loan 336.22 654.69 620.12 587.38 556.37
Rate of Interest on Loan on derived basis based on interest
paid divided by Average of Opening and Closing Balance of
Loan 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
Interest on loan 90.25 94.93 89.92 85.17 80.67
5 |Total Loan
Net loan - Opening 709.93 672.45 636.94 603.31 571.45
Add: Drawal(s) during the Year 709.93 - - - -
Less: Repayment (s) of Loans during the year 74741 3551 33.63 31.85 30.17
Net loan - Closing 672.45 636.94 603.31 57145 541.28
Average Net Loan 691.19 654.69 620.12 587.38 556.37
Interest on loan 102.94 94.93 §9.92 85.17 80.67
Weighted average Rate of interest on Loans 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%

Note:1. In case of Foreign Loans, the calculations in Indian Rupees is to be furnished as per Form 9(D). However,
the calculation in original currency is also to be furnished separately in the same form.

2. In case of already commissioned combined assets the details may be provided as

3. Details of Financing Charges.

ETL - Part - B - Formats for FY25-FY29
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PART-III
FORM-9E
Calculation of [nterest on Normative Loan
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
five ve ssaya ss ey gvan Jus Jus Jus S 203
No. of days for which tariff claimed 365 365 365 366 365
1 Gross Normative loan - Opening 25,129.40 25,129.40 25,129.40 25,129.40 25,129.40
2 )(?:an:ulanve repayment of Normative Loan upto previous 9,850.94 11,634.47 13.418.00 15.201.53 16.985.06
3 Net Normative loan - Opening 15,278.46 13,494.93 11,711.40 9,927.87 8,144.34
4 Addition in Normative loan towards the ACE - - - - -
5 Adjustment of Normative Gross loan pertaining to the - - - - -
decapitalised assset.
6 Normative Repayments of Normative Loan during the 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53
year
7 Adjustment of Cum. repayment pertaining to the - - - - -
decapitalised asset.
8 Net Normative loan — Closing 13,494.93 11,711.40 9,927.87 8,144 .34 6,360.81
9 Average Normative Loan 14,386.69 12,603.16 10,819.63 9,036.10 7,252.57
10 |Weighted average Rate of Interest of actual Loans 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50% 14.50%
11 Interest on Normative loan 2,086.07, 1,827.46 1,568.85 1,310.24 1,051.62
(Petitioner)



Name of the transmission Asset:

Calculation of Depreciation Rate on original project cost

304

PART-UI
FORM- 10

400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)

{Amount in Rs. Lakh)

1 2 4 6= average(2,4) X §
| T ission Line 33.778.98 33.778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
2 bstation eqif - - 5.28% -
3 Free hoid Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
3 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Fumiture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Buildin, - - 3.34% -
8 Office E - - 6.33% -
Total 33,778.98 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.33
Weighted Average Rate of < 300,
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
1 2 4 6= average(2,4) X 5§
[ T ission Line 33,778.98 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
2 Substation eqip - - 5.28% -
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
5 PLCC - - 6.33%, -
6 Fumniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
1 Civil Works & Building - - 3.34% -
) Office E: - - 6.33% -
Total 33,778.98 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
Weighted Average Rate of o
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
1 2 4 6= average(2,4) X 3
1 T ission Line 33,778.98 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
2 [ Substation eqip B N 5.28% N
3 Free hold Land - - 0.00% -
4 Leasehold Land - - 3.34% -
3 PLCC - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - 3.34% -
8 Office E - - 6.33% -
Total 33,778.98 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
Weighted Average Rate of o
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
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PART-IIT
FORM- 10
Calculation of Depreciation Ratc on original project cost
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
1 2 3 4 5 6= average(2,4) X 5
1 T ission Line 33.778.98 - 33,778.98 5.28% 1.783.53
2| Substation eqip - - - 5.28% N
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 L hold Land - - - 3.34% -
3 PLCC - - - 6.33%, -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Buildin - - - 3.34% -
8 Office Equip - - - 6.33% -
Total 33,778.98 - 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
Weighted Average Rate of
Depreciation (%) 5.28%
1 2 3 4 5 6=average(2,4) X 5
1 Tr ission Line 33,778.98 - 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
2 Substation - - - 5.28% -
3 Free hold Land - - - 0.00% -
4 Leaschold Land - - - 3.34% -
3 PLCC - - - 6.33% -
6 Furniture / Fixture - - - 6.33% -
7 Civil Works & Building - - - 3.34% -
8| Office Equip - - - 6.33% -
Total 33,778.98 - 33,778.98 5.28% 1,783.53
Weighted Average Rate of o
Depreciation (%) 528%
Note:
|. Name of the Assets should conform to the description of the assets ioned in Depreciation Schedul ded to the Notification.

2. For Existing Project Depreciation Rate shall be as per Appendix-I while for New Project the i

£ CanwnG
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PART-II
FORM- 10A
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
s s L2 AvS v ) \90)
1 Opening Capital Cost 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98
2 Closing Capital Cost 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98
3 Average Capital Cost 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98 33,778.98
4 Freehold land - - - - -
5 Rate of depreciation 5.28% 5.28% 5.28% 5.28% 5.28%
6 Depreciable value 30,401.08 30,401.08 30,401.08 30,401.08 30,401.08
7 Balance useful life at the beginning of the
period
8 Remaining depreciable value 20,550.14 18,766.61 16,983.08 15,199.55 13,416.02
9 Depreciation (for the period) 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53
10 |Depreciation (annualised) 1,783.53 1,785.53 1,783.53 1,783.53 1,783.53
jp  |Cumulative depreciation at the end of the 11,634.47 13,418.00 15,201.53 16.985.06 18,768.59
period
12 Less: Cumulative depreciation adjustment on
~  |account of de-capitalisation - - - - -
13 ;“r‘iii“m”l‘“”e depreciation at the end of the 11,634.47 13,418.00 15,201.53 16,985.06 18,768.59

L suLune
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PART-III
FORM- 11
Calculation of Interest on Working Capital
Name of the transmission Asset: 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
| (Ammnunt in De T alinl
I No. of days for which tarift 365 365 365 366 365
claimed
1 O & M Expenses - one month 11.22 27.68 12.16 12.67 13.20
) Maintenance Spares 15% of O&M 20.20 49.82 21.88 22.80 23.76
Expenses
3 Receivables equivalent to 45 days 704.76 697.80 641.49 608.23 578.38
of AFC
4 Total Working Capital 736.18 775.30 675.53 643.70 615.34
Reference rate as on 01.04.2024 or 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90% 11.90%
5 as on 01st April of the COD vyear,
whichever is later.
6 Interest on Working Capital 87.61 92.26 |0 0 T4 RO 73.23

U vuuener y
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PART-III
FORM- 15
Summary of issue involved in the petition
1|Name of the Petitioner Essar Transco Limited
2|Petition Category Transmission
3| Tariff Period 2024-29 .
Name of the Project 400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
4
5|Investment Approval date
6|SCOD of the Project
7|Actual COD of the project 22-Sep-18
8| Whether entire scope is covered in the present petition. Yes
9{No. of Assets covered in instant petition 1
10[No. of Assets having time over run Nil
11{Estimated Project Cost as per IA
12{Is there any REC? if so, provide the date No
13{Revised Estimated Project Cost (if any) Nil
14|Completion cost for all the assets covered in the instant petition
No. of Assets covered in instant petition and having cost
15{overrun Nil
Approval of Tariff for Mahan - Sipat Transmission line (Part-
16|Prayer in brief B)
17|Key details and any Specific issue involved
18|Respondents
Name of Respondents [

Central Transmission Utility of India Limited

Power grid Corporation of India Limited

Power system Operation Corporation Limited

Western Region Power Committee

M.P. Power Management Company Limited

Western Regional Load Despatch Centre

Mahan Energen Limited(formerly Essar Power M.P. Limited)
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PART-III
FORM A
Summary of Capital Cost & Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) Claimed for ALL the assets covered in the present petition.
Name of the Petitioner Essar Transco Limited
Tariff Period 2024-29 2024-29
Name of the Transmission Project
400 kV D/C Mahan-Sipat Transmission Line (Part-B)
COD of the Project (if entire scope of project is completed) 22-Sep-18
A)S y of Capital Cost as on COD and Additional Capital Expenditure claimed for all the assets Covered in the instant p
. . Capital Cost
Sr. No. | Asset No. CcoD Cut off date Summary of Actual / Projected Capital Cost as on
Ason COD | 202425 | 2025-26 | 202627 | 2027-28 | 202829 | 31.03.2029
1 Part-B 9/22/2018]  3/31/2028]  33.778.98 | - - -] -] - 33.778.98
Total Capital Cost Claimed 33,778.98
B)S y of Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) claimed for all the assets covered in the instant petition.
S. No. | Asset No. 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29
1 Part-B 5,716.3% 5,659.93 5,203.18 4,946.91 4.691.31
Total AFC for all
the Assets 5,716.39 5,659.93 5,203.18 4,946.91 4,691.31
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